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The Hon’ble National Company Law Board (“NCLT”), Kolkata Bench, vide order dated June 
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NOTICE TO THE MEMBERS 
 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code 2016 (IBC) in terms of Order passed by the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench with 
effect from 10th June 2022. Mr. Anil Agarwal, originally appointed as Interim Resolution Professional by NCLT vide its Order 
dated 10th June 2022. Further, the members of the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) in its first meeting held on 08.07.2022 
has approved the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in place of erstwhile Mr. Anil Agarwal Interim 
Resolution Professional of Eastern Silk Industries Limited. The appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli was confirmed as Resolution 
Professional vide order of Hon’ble NCLT passed on July 29, 2022. The affairs, business and assets are being managed by 
the Resolution Professional. 
 
In view of same, the Annual General Meeting is being convened by the Resolution Professional. 
 
Under Section 17 of the IBC 2016 the powers of the Board are suspended and the same are vested in the Resolution 
Professional, Mr. Anil Kohli. 
 
The appointment/re-appointments of the Directors are recommended only for the sole purpose of complying with the 
applicable provision(s) of the Companies Act, 2013 (as amended) and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
Further, pursuant to Section 17 of the IBC, the powers the Board of Directors shall stand suspended during the continuance 
of the CIRP. 
 
The Seventy Seventh Annual General Meeting of M/s. Eastern Silk Industries Limited (CIN:L17226WB1946PLC013554) will 
be held on Friday, the 29th September, 2023 at 03:30 P.M. through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual 
Means(“OAVM”), to transact the following business: 
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 
 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Statement of Profit & Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023 and the Balance Sheet 
as at that date together with the report of the Directors and Auditors thereon and in this regard, pass the following resolution 
as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023 and the 
reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon laid before this meeting, be and are hereby considered and adopted.” 
 
2. To appoint Mr. Sundeep Shah, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment as a Director 
and in this regard, pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sundeep Shah (DIN. 
00484311), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered himself for re-appointment, be and is hereby 
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation.” 
 
3. To appoint Ms. Megha Shah, who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers herself for re-appointment as a Director and 
in this regard, pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Ms. Megha Shah (DIN, 
07172597), who retires by rotation at this meeting and being eligible has offered herself for re-appointment, be and is hereby 
re-appointed as a Director of the Company, liable to retire by rotation. 
 
Registered Office:                                                            By Order of the Board 
19, R. N. Mukherjee Road                                                                           Sd/- 
 Kolkata – 700 001                                                                                                                                            Rahul Jaiswal 
Dated: 2nd September 2023                                                                                                                   Company Secretary 
                                                                                                                                                                           Mr. Anil Kohli 
                                                                                                                                                                    (Taken on Record) 
                                                                                                  Resolution Professional – Eastern Silk Industries Limited 
                                                                                                                  Regn No. IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00112/2017-18/10219         
CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554 
Email: investors@easternsilk.com 
Registered Office:                                                                  
19, R. N. Mukherjee Road                                                               
Kolkata – 700 001                                                                                  
CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554                                                                                                   
Email: investors@easternsilk.com                                                                    
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NOTES: 
 
1. The relevant details with respect to Item No. 2 and 3 pursuant to Regulation 36 (3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulation”) and Secretarial Standard on General 
Meeting issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India, in respect of Director seeking re-appointment at this 
AGM are also annexed. 
 

2. In view of the COVID-19 pandemic, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India (“MCA”) issued General 
Circular Nos. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, No. 20/2020 dated May 5, 2020, No. 
02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 2022 and No. 
10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to as ‘MCA 
Circulars’) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023; 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022; SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated January 15, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020. (“SEBI 
Circulars”) has allowed to conduct AGMs through Video Conferencing / Other Audio-Visual Means (“VC /OAVM”) 
facility on or before September 30, 2023. Hence, in compliance with the Circulars, the AGM of the Company is being 
held through VC/OAVM. 

 
Hence, Members can attend and participate in the AGM through VC/ OAVM only, the detailed procedure for 
participating in the meeting through VC/OAVM is annexed herewith and available at the Company’s Website 
www.easternsilk.com 
 
In compliance with these Circulars, provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations, the 77th AGM of the Company is 
being conducted through VC / OAVM facility, without the physical presence of Members at a common venue. The 
deemed venue for the 77th AGM shall be the Registered Office of the Company. 

 
3. As the AGM shall be conducted through VC/OAVM, there is no requirement of appointment of proxies, pursuant to 

the Circulars. Accordingly, the facility for appointment of proxy by the members is not available for this AGM and 
hence the proxy form is not annexed to this Notice. Also, the Attendance Slip including Route Map is not annexed to 
this Notice.  

 
4. In case of Joint-holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names as per the Register 

of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote during the AGM. 
 
5. Authorised representatives of the corporate members intending to participate in the AGM pursuant to Section 113 of 

the Act, are requested to send to the Company, a certified copy (in PDF/JPG format) of the relevant Board 
Resolution/Authority Letter, etc. authorising them to attend the AGM, by email to investors@easternsilk.com. 

 
6. The Members can join the AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure below in the Notice. The facility of participation at the AGM 
through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not include large 
Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on 
account of first come first served basis. 

 
7. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
8. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs dated April 08, 2020, April 13, 2020 and May 05, 2020 the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to 
its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into 
an agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as 
the authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as venue 
voting on the date of the AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 
9. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling the 

AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at www.easternsilk.com. The Notice can also be accessed 
from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e., BSE Limited and National Stock Exchange of India Limited at 
www.bseindia.com and www.nseindia.com respectively and the AGM Notice is also available on the website of NSDL 
(agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
10. AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with MCA Circular No. No. 14/2020 dated April 8, 2020, No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, No. 20/2020 dated 
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May 5, 2020, No. 02/2021 dated January 13, 2021, No. 21/2021 dated December 14, 2021, No. 2/2022 dated May 5, 
2022 and No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 2022 issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (collectively referred to 
as ‘MCA Circulars’) and SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023; 
SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2022/62 dated May 13, 2022; SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD2/CIR/P/2021/11 
dated January 15, 2021 read with SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1/CIR/P/2020/79 dated May 12, 2020. 

 
11. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number 

(PAN) by every participant in Securities Market. Members holding shares in electronic form are therefore requested 
to submit PAN to their depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. Members holding 
shares in physical form can submit their PAN details to Company's RTA i.e. ABS Consultants Private Limited. 

 
12. SEBI has also made amendment to Regulation 40 of SEBI LODR Regulations with respect to mandatory 

dematerialization for transfer of securities. Pursuant to the aforesaid amendment to SEBI LODR Regulations, Listed 
Companies and their Registrars and Transfer Agents (“RTAs”) are advised to ensure that shares which are lodged for 
transfer are mandatory in dematerialized form with effect from April 1, 2019. Therefore, shareholders are requested 
to get their physical shareholding dematerialized for any further transfers. 

 
13. Pursuant to Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, shareholders holding shares in physical form may file their 

nomination in the prescribed Form SH-13 with the Company's Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. In respect of 
shares held in electric/demat form, the nomination form may be filed with the respective Depository Participant. 

 
14. All documents referred to in the Notice and the Explanatory Statement/Annexure shall be made available for inspection 

by the Members of the Company, without payment of fees upto the date of AGM. Members desirous of inspecting the 
same may send their requests not later than Tuesday, September 26, 2023 at 11:00 A.M. at 
investors@easternsilk.com from their registered e-mail addresses mentioning their names and folio numbers/demat 
account numbers. In accordance with the MCA Circulars, the Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 
and their shareholding maintained under section 170 of Companies Act, 2013 and Register of Contracts or 
arrangements in which directors are interested maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and 
Relevant documents referred to in this Notice of AGM and explanatory statement will be available for inspection on 
the date of AGM in electronic mode and shall remain open and be accessible to any Member. 

 
15. Members of the Company holding shares either in physical form or in Dematerialised forms as on Friday, August 25, 

2023 will receive Annual Report and AGM Notice through electronic mode. 
 

            Process for dispatch of Annual Report and registration of email id for obtaining copy of Annual Report 
 

16. In compliance with the aforementioned Circulars, Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the financial 
year 2022-23 is being sent only through electronic mode to those members whose email addresses are registered 
with the Company/ Depository Participants (DPs). 
 
In case any member is desirous of obtaining physical copy of the Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 and 
Notice of the 77th AGM of the Company, he/she may send a request to the Company by writing at 
investors@easternsilk.com or ABS Consultants Private Limited (ABS), Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents at 
absconsultant99@gmail.com, mentioning their DP ID and Client ID/folio no.  
 
Members may note that the Notice and the Annual Report for the financial year 2022-23 will also be available on the 
Company’s website at www.easternsilk.com, websites of the Stock Exchanges on which the equity shares of the 
Company are listed i.e. BSE Limited (www.bseindia.com)  and National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
(www.nseindia.com ), and on the website of National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) at www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
17. Process for registration of email addresses for obtaining Notice of the AGM along with the Annual Report for the 

financial year 2022-23: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned 
copy of Aadhaar Card) by email to absconsultant99@gmail.com  or investors@easternsilk.com  

  
2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary 

ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN 
card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhaar Card) to absconsultant99@gmail.com or 
investors@easternsilk.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode, you are 
requested to refer to the login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual 
meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

 
3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password 

for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 
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4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID 
correctly in their demat account in order to access e-Voting facility.Shareholders holding shares in physical mode 
can also register/update their email address by sending a duly signed request letter including their name and folio 
no. to ABS Consultants Private Limited at 99, Stephen House 6th Floor, 4, B. B. D BAG (East) Kolkata – 700 001, 
Shareholders holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to register/update their email address with 
their respective DPs. 

 
18. Shareholders holding shares in physical mode can also register/update their email address by sending a duly signed 

request letter including their name and folio no. to ABS Consultants Private Limited at 99, Stephen House 6th Floor, 
4, B. B. D BAG (East) Kolkata – 700 001, Shareholders holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to 
register/update their email address with their respective DPs. 
 

19. Members seeking any information with regard to any matter to be placed at the AGM, are requested to write to the          
Company at investors@easternsilk.com. 
 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 
UNDER:- 
 
The remote e-voting period begins on Tuesday,26th of September, 2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on Thursday, 
28th of September, 2023 at 05:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 
thereafter. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the 
record date (cut-off date) i.e. Friday 22nd of September, 2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting 
right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company 
as on the cut-off date, being Friday 22nd of September, 2023. 
 
Only those Members who are present in the Meeting through VC or OAVM facility and have not cast their 
votes on resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be allowed 
to vote through e-Voting system during the AGM. However, Members who would have cast their votes by 
remote e-Voting may attend the Meeting, but shall neither be allowed to change it subsequently nor cast 
votes again during the Meeting and accordingly, their presence shall also be counted for the purpose of 
quorum under Section 103 of the Act. The Members, whose names appear in the Register of Members/list of 
Beneficial Owners as on cut-off date Friday, 22nd September, 2023 are entitled to vote on the Resolutions 
set forth in the Notice. The voting rights of the Members shall be in proportion to their share(s) of the paid-
up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date. 
 
The Company has appointed CS Garima Gupta (ACS No: 23738 CoP : 9308) Practicing Company Secretaries 
as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the e- voting at the meeting and remote e-voting process in a fair and 
transparent manner. 
 
The Scrutinizer shall, immediately after the conclusion of voting at the AGM, first count the votes cast during 
the AGM, thereafter unblock the votes cast through remote e-voting and make, not later than 48 hours of 
conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated Scrutinizer's Report of the total votes cast in favour or against, if any. 
Thereafter, the Results of e-Voting shall be declared forthwith by the Chairman or a person authorised by 
him, in writing, in this regard. The Results along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the 
website of the Company (www. easternsilk.com) immediately. The Company shall simultaneously forward 
the results to National Stock Exchange of India Limited, where the shares of the Company are listed and also 
to BSE Limited. 
 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below:  
 
Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 
 
A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities 

in demat mode 
 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with 
Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id 
in their demat accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
 

7



 

      
                                        

 
 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

 
Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 
Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 
mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 
under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will prompt you 
to enter your existing User ID and Password. After successful 
authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under Value added 
services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-Voting services and you will 
be able to see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL 
for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 
 

2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 
available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 
Portal” or click at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 
 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 
following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 
Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 
launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold with 
NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository 
site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-
Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.  
 

4. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 
“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 
seamless voting experience. 

 

 
 

Individual Shareholders 
holding securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 
through their user id and password. Option will be made available to reach 
e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for users to login 
to Easi / Easiest are https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or 
www.cdslindia.com and click on New System Myeasi. 
 
2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 

see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 
provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

 
3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 
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4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 
providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 
www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user by 
sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the demat 
Account. After successful authentication, user will be provided links for the 
respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting is in progress. 

 
Individual Shareholders 
(holding securities in demat 
mode) login through their 
depository participants  

 
You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company 
name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-
Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 
period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID and 
Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 
 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related 
to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 
 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with NSDL Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL 

helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free 
no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  

Individual Shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact CDSL 
helpdesk by sending a request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or 
contact at 022- 23058738 or 022-23058542-43  

 
 
 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 
shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical 
mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 
using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 
electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat (NSDL 
or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 
For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 
ID is 12****** then your user ID is 
IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in demat 
account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 
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For example if your Beneficiary ID is 
12************** then your user ID is 
12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in Physical 
Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 
registered with the company 
For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 
is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 
and cast your vote. 

 
b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 

password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 
 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you 
from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf 
file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process 
for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account with 

NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your 
name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the 
e-Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 
 

 
 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 
 

 
How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding 
shares and whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and 
casting your vote during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” 
link placed under “Join General Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares 
for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  
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6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation 
page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

8. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy 
(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature 
of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to 
garimagupta.acs@gmail.com with a copy marked to evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

9. Any person holding shares in physical form and non-individual shareholders, who acquires shares of the 
Company and becomes member of the Company after  the notice is send through e-mail and holding 
shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September 2023, may obtain the login ID and password by sending 
a request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or Issuer/RTA. However, if you are already registered with NSDL for 
remote e-voting, then you can use your existing user ID and password for casting your vote. If you forgot 
your password, you can reset your password by using “Forgot User Details/Password” or “Physical User 
Reset Password” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no. 1800 1020 990  and  
1800 22 44 30 . In case of Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode who acquires shares 
of the Company and becomes a Member of the Company after sending of the Notice and holding shares 
as of the cut-off date i.e. 22nd September 2023 may follow steps mentioned in the Notice of the AGM 
under Step 1: “Access to NSDL e-Voting system”(Above). 

10. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to 
keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful 
attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User 
Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to 
reset the password.  

11. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-
voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call 
on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send a request to to Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior 
Manager and /or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager at evoting@nsdl.co.in    
          

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 
 
1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for 

remote e-voting. 
 
2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not 

casted their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, 
shall be eligible to vote through e-Voting system in the AGM. 

 
3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the AGM. However, they will 

not be eligible to vote at the AGM. 
 
4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting 

on the day of the AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 
 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 
 
1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-

Voting system. Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-
Voting system. After successful login, you can see link of “VC/OAVM link” placed under “Join General 
meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on VC/OAVM link placed under Join 
General Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login where the 
EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and 
Password for e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the 
remote e-Voting instructions mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 
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3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any 
disturbance during the meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via 

Mobile Hotspot may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is 
therefore recommended to use Stable Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 
5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register 

themselves as a speaker may send their request mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at (investors@easternsilk.com) latest by Tuesday 26th September 2023. 

 
6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance 

mentioning their name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at 
(investors@easternsilk.com ) Tuesday 26th September 2023. 

 
7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their 

views/ask questions during the meeting. 
 
8. When a pre-registered speaker is invited to speak at the meeting but he / she does not respond, the next 

speaker will be invited to speak. Accordingly, all speakers are requested to get connected to a device with 
a video/ camera along with good internet speed. 

 
9. The Company reserves the right to restrict the number of questions and number of speakers, as appropriate, 

for smooth conduct of the AGM. 
 
10. Members who need assistance before or during the AGM, can contact Mr. Amit Vishal, Senior Manager, 

NSDL and / or Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, Manager, NSDL at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call  1800 1020 990 / 1800 22 
44 30. 
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Annexure to Notice dated 2nd September 2023 

 
 Details of the Director seeking appointment / re-appointment in the 77th Annual General Meeting to be held on Friday, 
 September 29th, 2023 pursuant to Regulation 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
 and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 read with applicable Secretarial Standard: 

 
Particulars Mr. Sundeep Shah Ms. Megha Shah  

Category of Director / Designation / 
Position in the Company 

Chairman & Managing Director 
/ Executive. 

Wholetime Director / Executive. 

Din 00484311 07172597 

Date of Birth/Age September 14,1962/61 years December 2, 1986 /36 years 

Date of Appointment   
on the Board 

01.09.2006 01.04.2015 

Qualification B.Com. B.Com. 

Experience  Wide experience in textile field 
and handling overseas 
customers 

Designing of fabrics & Textile 
goods 

Directorship held in other  
Public Companies None  None  

Memberships / Chairmanships of 
Committees of Other Public 
Companies 

None  None  

Shareholding of  
Non-Executive Directors 

None None 

Relationship with any Director(s) of 
the Company 

Father of Megha Shah Daughter of Sundeep Shah (MD) 

Number of shares held in Eastern 
Silk Industries Limited 

16,64,000 33,750 

No. of Board Meetings attended / 
entitled to attend during the year During FY 2022-23: 1 out of 1 

meeting 
During FY 2022-23: 1 out of 1 
meeting 

Percentage of shareholding in 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited 

Representing 2.11% of the 
paid-up share 
capital of the Company. 

Representing 0.04% of the paid-
up share 
capital of the Company. 

Other Activities Associated with charitable 
trusts and educational 
institutions. 

– 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 
The members 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited (herein after referred as “the Company”) 
(Company Under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process) 
 
The Resolution Professional/Suspended Board of Directors present the Seventy Seventh Annual Report and the Financial Statements 
of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 
INITIATION OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP): 
 
The Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e., National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, has admitted the Company Petition i.e. C.P. 
No. (IB) No.588/KB/2020 on 10.06.2022, filed by the Financial Creditor, Export-import Bank Of India initiating Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (hereinafter referred to as “Code”) in the matter of M/s. 
Eastern Silk Industries Ltd. (“Corporate Debtor”). The Adjudicating Authority appointed- Mr. Anil Agarwal as Interim Resolution 
Professional (IRP) vide its said order dated 10.06.2022.  
 
The Committee of Creditors in its first meeting of Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) held on 08.07.2022 approved the appointment of 
undersigned as Resolution Professional (“RP”). Thereupon an application was filed by the CoC, before Hon’ble NCLT, for the 
appointment of undersigned as Resolution Professional in the captioned matter. Subsequently, the Hon’ble NCLT allowed the 
application and appointed the undersigned as Resolution Professional in this matter vide its Order dated 29.07.2022 (copy of the 
same was received on 04.08.2022). 
 
The Resolution Professional pursuant to the approval of Resolution No. 2 i.e. Resolution plan submitted by Ajay Bikram Singh through 
Baumann Dekor Pvt. Ltd. in the last COC Meeting, filed an application seeking exclusion of the period of CIRP from 07.12.2022 till 
30.01.2023 i.e. 54 days, before Hon’ble NCLT on 07.03.2023. The RP thereafter filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT on 
09.03.2023 seeking approval of the Resolution plan submitted by Ajay Bikram Singh through Baumann Dekor Pvt. Ltd under Section 
31(1). The said application is pending before Hon’ble NCLT. 
 
The Company is under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 

( . in Lacs) 
Particulars  2023 2022 
Profit/(Loss) before depreciation/Exceptional 
Items and taxation 

(1,147.37) (284.50) 

Less/Add: Depreciation 296.05 402.00 
Profit/(Loss) for the year before taxation (1,443.42) (686.50) 
Add/ (Less): Provision for Current/Earlier Year 
Taxation 

0.01 0.00 

Profit/(Loss) for the year (1,443.43) (686.50) 
Add: Balance b/f of Retained Earnings of 
Previous Years 

(20,551.81) (19,865.31) 

Balance to be Carried Forward to the Next 
Year 

(21,995.24) (20,551.81) 

 
PERFORMANCE REVIEW 
 
Highlights of performance during the financial year 2022-23 are: 
 
 Total Revenue from Operation of the Company is . 3,801.29 Lacs as against . 7,314.03 Lacs in the previous year. 
 Operating Profit / ((Loss) is . (1,147.37) Lacs as against . (284.50) Lacs in the previous year. 
 Profit/Loss before taxation is . (1,443.42) Lacs for the year as against the profit of . (686.50) Lacs in the previous year. 
 Profit/Loss after Tax is . (1,443.43) Lacs as against the Loss of . (686.50) Lacs in the previous year. 
 
The performance of the Company during the year under review showed decrease in the sales due to the non-supportive markets and 
varied changes in the customer preferences and initiation of CIRP from 10th June 2022 which effected the marketability of the 
Company. As the global textile market is interconnected, this outbreak has a global impact on business. 
 
A detailed review of the operations of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023 is given in the Management 
Discussion and Analysis Report, which forms a part of this report. 
 
STATUS OF CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS UNDER INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE 2016 
(IBC) AFTER INITIATION 
 
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) was 
initiated the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 7 of the 
IB Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Adjudicating Authority vide the order of the same date appointed Mr. CA Anil Agarwal 
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IPP00270/2017-2018/10514 as the Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to conduct the CIRP of the 
Corporate Debtor. Later, in the first CoC Meeting of the Corporate Debtor held on 8th July 2022, Mr. Anil Kohli was appointed as the 
Resolution Professional (“RP”) to run the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor. 
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Resolution Professional had issued invitation for Expression of Interest (hereinafter referred as ‘’EOI’’) in FORM G on August 24, 
2022 in compliance with Regulation 36A of CIRP Regulations, 2016 in the newspaper in English and one in Hindi language and other 
in Kannda language for the submission of a resolution plan in accordance with the provision of the code.  
 
As per the published FORM G, the last date for submission of EOI was stipulated as September 9, 2022, and last date stipulated for 
submission of resolution plan was October 31, 2022. 
 
The Resolution Professional received three Resolution plans which were opened in presence of the COC Members in its 6th COC 
Meeting. 
 
The RP with the approval of committee of creditors of the Company has filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata seeking 
an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) days in terms of section 
12(2) of the insolvency and Bankruptcy code 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT Kolkata had granted an extension of the CIRP Period of the 
Company by further period of Ninety (90) days with effect from December 7, 2022 vide its order dated January 30,2023. 
 
One of the Promoters of the Company Mr. Sundeep Shah had filed the application under section 12A of the IB Code 2016 which was 
place before the COC members in the 10th meeting held on February 13, 2023. The said in-principal letter was put to vote before the 
COC members which could not attain the requisite votes and was Rejected by the members of COC. 
 
All 3 (three) resolution plans were put to vote before the COC members for their consideration and approval out of which the Resolution 
plan submitted by Baumann Dekor through Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh was approved by the Committee of Creditors (COC) in its 11th 
(COC) meeting held on March 03, 2023 with 88.30%  of voting shares. 
 
Subsequently, on March 09, 2023 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Person) 
Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its 
approval which is still pending. 
 
In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the 
Board of Directors of ESIL stands suspended and the same are being exercised by Mr. Anil Kohli, Resolution Professional. The 
management of the affairs of ESIL has been vested with Mr. Anil Kohli. 
 
DIVIDEND 
 
As the Company has incurred losses during the period under review, the Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend on 
Equity Shares for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023. The Board of Directors does not also declare dividend on Redeemable 
Cumulative Preference Shares for the financial year ended on 31st March 2023. 
 
TRANSFER TO RESERVES  
 
During the year under review, the Company has made no transfer to reserves. 
 
MATERIAL CHANGES AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE COMPANY 
 
No Material Changes has been occurred which affects the financial position of the Company which have occurred between the 
F.Y.2022-23 and the date of this report: 
 
CHANGES IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 
The Company is engaged in the manufacture of silk yarn, fabrics and made-ups, home furnishings, fashion fabrics, handloom fabrics, 
double width fabrics, scarves, laces and belts, and embroidered fabrics. There has been no change in the nature of business of the 
company during the year under review and the Company continues to carry on its existing business. 
 
CHANGES IN CAPTIAL STRUCTURE 
 
There was no change in the authorised share capital and paid-up share capital of the Company during the year under review. 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted any stock options or 
sweat equity and none of the Directors of the Company hold instruments convertible into equity shares of the Company. 
 
PUBLIC DEPOSIT SCHEME 
 
During the year, your Company has not accepted any deposits. There are no outstanding deposits as on date. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES & ASSOCIATES COMPANIES 
 
The Company does not have any associate and joint venture, neither any subsidiary company have been liquidated or sold, during 
the year under review. 
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
In view of the order of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, dated June, 10 2022, the powers of the Board of Directors of the 
Company stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with the Resolution Professional.  
 
During the year under review there is no change in the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the company. The details of the 
Directors and Key Managerial as on March 31, 2023 are given below:- 
 
DIRECTORS 
 
Mr. Sundeep Shah (DIN.00484311), Chairman Cum Managing Director, 
Ms. Megha Shah (DIN: 07172597), Executive Director, 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma (DIN: 01836989), Non-Executive Independent Director, 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah (DIN: 03426417), Non-Executive Independent Director and  
Mr. G.D. Harnathka (DIN: 01360829), Non-Executive Independent Director. 
Mr. Abhishek Haralalka (DIN: 08836412) Non-Executive Independent Director. 
 
KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 
 
There is no change in the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company during the year under review. 
 
Following are the Key Managerial Personnel of the Company: 
Mr. Sundeep Shah – Managing Director 
Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia – Chief Financial Officer (CFO) 
Mr. Rahul Jaiswal – Company Secretary 
 
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 
 
Since your Company is under the CIRP, the powers of the Board of Directors are suspended, and such powers are vested with the 
Resolution Professional, pursuant to Section 17 of the IBC Code. 
 
In light of the aforesaid and pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(3)(c) and 134(5) of the Act with respect to Directors' 
Responsibility Statement, it is hereby confirmed by the Chief Financial Officer and the Resolution Professional that: 
 
i) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the year ended March 31, 2023, the applicable accounting standards read with  
               requirements set out under Schedule III to the Act, have been followed and there are no material departures from the same. 
 
ii) appropriate Accounting Policies have been selected and applied consistently. Judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company as on 31st March, 2023 and of the Profit 
and Loss Account for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2023. 
 

iii) Proper and sufficient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, for safeguarding the assets of the Company and preventing & detecting fraud and 
other irregularities. 
 

iv) The Annual Accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis. 
 

v) The Internal Financial Controls were in place and that there are adequate and were operating effectively. 
 

vi) Proper systems are in place to ensure compliance of all laws applicable to the Company and that such systems are adequate 
and operating effectively. 

 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 
 
During the period under review but prior to the commencement of the CIRP, the Board of Directors met one times. The details 
regarding the attendance and the date of Board Meetings are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. After the 
Commencement of CIRP, the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in 
accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. Hence, no meetings of the 
Directors were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022. 
 
DETAILS OF COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 
 
i) AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
During the period under review but prior to the commencement of the CIRP, the Audit Committee met one times. The details regarding 
the composition, attendance and the date of Audit Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. After the 
Commencement of CIRP the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in 
accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC Code and powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. Hence, no meetings of the 
Audit Committee were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022. 
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ii) STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP/GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE 
 
During the period under review but prior to the commencement of the CIRP, the Stakeholders Relationship/Grievance Committee not 
met any meeting during the year. The details regarding the composition, attendance and the date of Stakeholders 
Relationship/Grievance Committee are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. After the Commencement of CIRP the role 
and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 
of IBC Code and powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Stakeholders Relationship/Grievance 
Committee were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022. 
 
iii) NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
During the period under review but prior to the commencement of the CIRP, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee not met any 
meeting during the year The details regarding the composition, attendance and the date of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. After the Commencement of CIRP the role and responsibilities of the Board of 
Directors are being fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC Code and powers of the 
Board of Directors are suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee were held after the 
Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022. 
 
iv) SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE 
 
During the period under review but prior to the commencement of the CIRP, the Share Transfer Committee not met any meeting 
during the year.. The details regarding the composition, attendance and the date of Share Transfer Committee are provided in the 
Corporate Governance Report. After the Commencement of CIRP the role and responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being 
fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of IBC Code and powers of the Board of Directors are 
suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Share Transfer Committee were held after the Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022. 
 
PERFORMANCE EVALUATION OF BOARD 
 
As specified the Company has been admitted under CIRP under Section 7 of the Code w.e.f 10th June 2022. Thereafter, in 
accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution 
Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Accordingly, due to the suspension of the powers of the board, no Board 
evaluation has been carried out during the year under review. 
 
DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 
Declarations pursuant to the Sections 164(2) and 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16(1)(b) of SEBI (LODR) 
Regulations, 2015 and that they have registered their names in the Independent Directors’ Databank, as well as affirmation of 
compliance with the Code of Conduct, by all the Independent Directors of the Company have been made. In the opinion of the Board, 
the Independent Directors hold highest standard of integrity and possess the requisite qualifications, experience, expertise, and 
proficiency. 
 
NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 
 
The Board has, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, framed nomination and remuneration Policy 
for selection and appointment of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their remuneration as well as policy on the appointment 
and remuneration of other employees. The Remuneration Policy is stated in the Corporate Governance Report that forms part of this 
Annual Report. 
 
HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
The Company has a workforce of 289 employees with a mix of people from different social, economic, and geographic backgrounds. 
The Company has maintained healthy, cordial, and harmonious industrial relations at all levels through proactive ER, development 
initiatives, gender diversity and community development. 
 
Performance of the Company is anchored on its capabilities and productivity, customer-centric culture through a strong service 
orientation; happiness through purposeful behavior by high-quality talent; value-oriented through a deep commitment to the values of 
the Company. 
 
FUTURE OUTLOOK 
 
Within the limited scope and under restricted market condition, your management is very positively responding to matching situation 
in the global market.  To bring down the cost of production, your Company will have to increase the scale of operation which further 
requires infusion of machineries and technology. However the Company hopes to turn around its performance once the new 
Resolution Applicant is on board the Company and the adequate funding to run the plant is introduced. 
 
DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 
EARNING AND OUTGO 
 
The particulars required to be furnished under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Disclosure of 
particulars of Board of Directors) Rules, 1988 are set out in “Annexure I”, which forms part of the report. The manufacturing units of 
the Company are environment regulations complaint. 
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PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q) AND SECTION 197 (12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) 
RULES, 2014 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are annexed to this report and 
Marked as “Annexure II”. 
 
Further, the disclosure pursuant to Section 197(14) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of remuneration or commission received 
from any holding or subsidiary company of the company by any Managing Director or Whole Time Director who is also in receipt of 
commission from that company is not available with the company. 
 
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 or any statutory modification or amendment in these Rules, a statement 
showing the name of top ten employees in terms of Remuneration drawn forms part of the Report and annexed to this report and 
marked as “Annexure II”. Further, there was no employee in the Company who drawn the remuneration in excess of the limits set 
out in the said Rules. Therefore, the disclosure for the same is not required. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  
 
The Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and adhere to the corporate governance 
requirements set out by SEBI. The report on Corporate Governance as stipulated under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirement) Regulations, 2015 forms an integral part of this Report. The requisite certificate from the Auditors of the Company 
confirming compliance with the requirements of Corporate Governance is attached to the report on Corporate Governance. 
 
A separate section on Corporate Governance and Management Discussion and Analysis together with the Auditor’s Certificate 
confirming the compliance of conditions on Corporate Governance as Schedule V (Part E) of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange form part of the Annual Report as “Annexure III”. 
 
CODE OF CONDUCT 
 
As per the Listing Regulations, 2015, the Board of the Company has laid down Code of Conduct for all the Board members of the 
Company and Senior Management Personnel as well and the same has been posted on Website of the Company which can be 
access by the following link www.easternsilk.com. 
 
The certificate pertaining to the compliance to the Code of Conduct is also annexed to the report and marked as “Annexure- IV” 
 
PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GURANTEES, INVESTMENTS AND SECURITIES MADE 
 
The particulars of loans, guarantees given, security provided and investments made during the year as per Section 186 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, if any, form part of the notes and schedules of the Financial Statements provided in this Annual Report. 
 
CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and were in the ordinary 
course of business. Related Party Policy is also uploaded on the website of the Company & can be accessed on www.easternsilk.com. 
 
Since all related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm's length basis and were in the 
ordinary course of business and there was no material related party transactions entered into by the Company during the financial 
year, accordingly, the disclosure of Related Party Transactions as required under Section 134(3)(h) of the Companies Act, 2013 in 
Form AOC-2 is not required. 
 
Your Directors draw attention of the members to Note 47 to the financial statement which sets out related party disclosures. 
 
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 
 
The Company formulated the Corporate Social Responsibility Committee (CSRC) in consultation with the Board during the F.Y 2014-
15 pursuant to introduction of Section 135 under the Companies Act, 2013. Mr. Sundeep Shah, Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma and Mr. 
G.D. Harnathka are the members of the CSRC. Since the Company had incurred cash losses in the immediately preceding financial 
year, the Board does not recommend any amount to be spent on the CSR activities. However the Board ensures that once the 
Company will start earning cash profits, they shall after taking into account the recommendations of the CSRC, than board will be 
frame and approve the Corporate Social Responsibility Policy of the Company and shall disclose contents of such policy in its report 
and will also place the same on the Company’s website www.easternsilk.com. 
 
No Meeting of Corporate Social Responsibility Committee was held during the year. 
 
NOTES TO ACCOUNTS 
 
They are self-explanatory and do not require any explanations. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The Company has been addressing various risks impacting the Company and the policy of the Company. During the year, your 
Directors and RP made sure that all the risks that the organization faces such as strategic, financial, credit, market, liquidity, security, 
property, IT, legal, regulatory, reputational and other risks have been identified and assessed and there is an adequate risk 
management infrastructure in place capable of addressing those risks. 
 
The Company monitors, manages and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its strategic long term objectives. 
The risk management process is reviewed periodically in order to keep it aligned with the emerging risks across the globe. Various 
programs involve risk identification, assessment and risk mitigation planning for strategic, operational, and financial compliance 
related risks across various levels of the organization. 
 
The Board is successfully, identifying the elements of risks involved along with its severity and their impact on the existence of the 
Company. 
 
Furthermore, In terms of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company is not require 
to form Risk Management Committee. 
 
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 
 
The Company has established Internal Financial Control System for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the business 
including adherence to Company's Policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable Financial Statements. 
 
The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements. During the year, such controls 
were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or operation were observed. 
 
AUDITORS  
 
M/s B.K. Shroff & CO, Chartered Accountants, Kolkata (Firm Regn. No. 302166E)  was  appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company, for a period of 5 years, commencing from the conclusion of 76th AGM till the conclusion of the 81st AGM to be held in the 
year 2027. 
 
Audit Observations and Suspended Board response for the Standalone Financial Statements for the Financial Year ended 
on 31.03.2023 
 
Statutory Auditors have expressed qualified opinions. The details of the audit qualification and the response of the Suspended Board 
are furnished below:- 
 

Sr. No Qualified Opinion Reply of Management 
1. (a) Material Uncertainty Related to Going 

Concern, Basis for Qualified Opinion and 
the Emphasis of Matter paragraphs.  On 
10th June, 2022, the National Company 
Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, 
directed to Initiate Corporate Insolvency 
Resolution Process (CIRP) against the 
Company by admitting the application 
under section 7 of Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Act, 2016 filed by Export-
import Bank of India one of the Financial 
Creditors as stated in Note 37 (a) to the Ind 
AS financial statements. Further, 
Resolution Plan submitted by one of the 
Prospective Resolution Applicant was also 
approved by the Committee of Creditors 
(COC) members in their meeting held on 3rd  
March 2023 and the application for 
approval of said Resolution Plan was filed 
with Hon'ble National Company Law 
Tribunal on 9th March 2023 and the same 
is pending for approval as stated in Note 
37 (e) to the Ind AS financial statements. 
 
 
 
 

 The Board of Directors ( Power under  
Suspension) have vast experience to 
run the industry. The Company have 
come to this position due to Covid 19 
outbreak which was declared a global 
pandemic by world health 
Organization & affect world economy 
as well as Indian economy. To boost up 
the business company required 
financial assistance for upgrading the 
plant and machinery and working 
capital, for funding requirement we 
approach the bankers to sale non-core 
asset of the Company but bankers have 
not issued the noc for the same which 
are pledge to bank. 
 

1. (b) Note No. 52 to the Ind AS financial 
statements also indicate that the Net 

The Company considering the 
continuing substantial losses incurred 
by the Company, its net worth has been 
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worth of the Company has been fully 
eroded 

eroded. However, having regard to 
better operational performance 
expected in future and ongoing CIRP, 
the financial statements of the 
Company have been prepared on the 
basis of going concern and no 
adjustments are made to the carrying 
value of assets and liabilities. 
 

1. (c) The above conditions indicate the 
existence of material uncertainty that 
may cast significant doubt about the 
company’s ability to continue as a going 
Concern. However, the financial 
statements of the company have been 
prepared on a going concern basis for the 
reason stated in Note No. 37 (f) to the Ind 
AS Financial Statements, in view of 
ongoing CIRP, the outcome of which 
cannot be presently ascertained 

The Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern is dependent upon many 
factors including continued support 
from the Company 
Officials/Management, employees, 
operational creditors, customers and 
submission of viable resolution plan by 
the prospective Investor. Under the 
CIRP, the resolution plan has been 
approved by the COC and thereafter 
was filed with Hon’ble NCLT for 
seeking their approval. Whereupon, in 
accordance with the CoC & NCLT 
approved plan, the Company will be 
handed over to the successful 
resolution applicant upon full 
implementation of approved Plan. In 
view of the opinion of the management, 
CoC approved resolution Plan, the 
revival of the Company is possible in 
the foreseeable future. Accordingly, 
the financial statements of the 
company have been prepared on going 
concern basis as plant is working and 
the decision of Hon'ble NCLT on 
approval of Resolution Plan is pending. 

2. Note No. 35 (a) to the Ind AS financial 
statements which states that the company 
has not provided interest to lenders 
amounting to Rs. 4,852.38 Lakhs for the 
period upto 31stMarch’2023 as per the 
management estimates 

The Company has been categorised as 
Non-Performing Asset and stopped 
debiting interest on their outstanding 
debts by the existing lender 
banks/financial institution as per the 
Prudential Norms on Income 
Recognition issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India. Accordingly, the 
Company has not recognised interest 
expense on such borrowings amounting 
to Rs. 4,852.38 Lakhs till 31st March, 
2023 as per the management 
estimates. 

3. Note No. 35(b) to the Ind AS financial 
statements which states that the company 
has not provided interest on borrowings 
from ARC’s amounting to Rs. 3,183.69 
lakhs for the period up to 31st March 2023. 

In terms of the Settlement 
Arrangement arrived with the ARC’s, 
the Company failed to meet certain 
scheduled payment of Instalments 
within the stipulated time. However, 
the management were continuously 
discussing the present position of the 
Company with the ARC’s for waiver of 
interest before initiation of CIRP 
process against the Company (Refer 
Note 37). Consequently, provision for 
interest amounting to Rs.3,183.69 
lakhs for the period up to 31st March 
2023 has not been made in the books 
of accounts as per the management 
estimates. 

4. Note No. 41 to the Ind AS financial 
statements which states that total 
deferred tax assets (DTA) for the period up 

In terms of Ind AS-12, further Deferred 
Tax Assets (DTA) of Rs. 3,010.99 Lakhs 
(P.Y. Rs. 4,289.23 Lakhs)  is required to 

20



 

 
 

to 31st March, 2023 is Rs. 7,583.97 Lakhs 
out of which Rs.4,572.98 lakhs have been 
recognized in these accounts and balance 
Rs. 3,010.99 Lakhs has not been 
recognised in these accounts. As there are 
existence of indicators of material 
uncertainty about company’s ability to 
continue as going concern as stated above 
in “Material Uncertainty Related to Going 
Concern” paragraph, in our opinion, the 
earlier recognized DTA of Rs. 4,572.98 
lakhs required to derecognized by the 
Company. 

be recognized during the year. The 
Company has so far recognized DTA 
aggregating Rs. 4,572.98 Lakhs. 
Earlier recognitions were made based 
on future profitability and projections. 
The management is of the opinion that 
net DTA of     Rs. 4,572.98 Lakhs as 
recognized in the books is sufficient for 
future income and as such, the current 
year’s DTA has not been recognized. 

 
COST AUDITORS 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company, pursuant to Section 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with Rule 14 of Companies 
(Audit and Auditor Rules), 2014, has appointed M/s. N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountant for conducting the audit of cost records 
of the Products ‘Silk fabrics’, ‘Cotton Fabrics’, ‘Linen Fabrics’ and ‘Polyester Fabrics’ maintained by the Company for the Financial 
Year 2022-23. 
 
The Company maintained the cost records as specified by the Central Government under Sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. 
 
The cost audit report of M/s N. Radhakrishnan & Co., Cost Accountant, for the financial year 2022-23 does not contains any adverse 
qualification or remarks. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR 
 
The Board has appointed Ms. Garima Gupta, Practicing Company Secretary, to conduct Secretarial Audit for the Financial Year 2022-
23. The Secretarial Audit Report for the financial year ended March 31,2023 is annexed herewith marked as “Annexure V” to this 
Report. The Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark.  
 
COMPLIANCE OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS 
 
Yours Company has complied with the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India. 
 
WEB LINK OF ANNUAL RETURN 
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 134(3)(a) and Section 92(3) of the Act, the draft Annual Return of the Company for the Financial 
Year 31st March, 2023 is uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.easternsilk.com .The final Annual 
Return shall be uploaded in the same web link after the said Return is filed with the Registrar of Companies.  
 
VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 
 
The company in pursuance to the provisions of section 177(9) & (10) of the Companies Act, 2013 has formulated  a vigil mechanism 
(whistle blower policy)  for its Directors and Employees  of the Company to report their genuine concerns about unethical behavior, 
actual or suspected fraud or violation of the company’s Code of Conduct. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism. In exceptional cases, Directors and employees have direct 
access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Vigil Mechanism (Whistle Blower Policy) is available on the company’s website  
www.easternsilk.com. 
 
SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS 
 
The application filed by the Exim Bank of India Limited against the company under Sec. 7 of The Insolvency Bankruptcy Code 2016, 
has been approved by the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench ('NCLT') dated June, 10, 2022. The Committee 
of Creditors meeting was conducted and a Resolution Professional was appointed. 
 
Consequent to an order of the Honorable National Company Law Tribunal, Hyderabad Bench ('NCLT') dated June, 10, 2022, the 
Company is currently under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process ('CIRP') as per the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016 (IBC) and as per Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board of Directors of Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Corporate 
Debtor) stands suspended and such powers shall be vested with Mr. Anil Kohli, Resolution Professional.  
 
To the best of our knowledge, there seems to have been no significant and material orders passed by the regulators or courts or  
tribunals impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations. 
 
LISTING OF SHARES 
 
The Equity Shares of your Company are listed on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE). The Listing fee for the financial 
year 2022-23 was duly paid. 
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DISCLOSURES UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 
 
The Company has zero tolerance towards discrimination and harassments including sexual harassment and always strives to create 
and provide a healthy environment in the workplace(s). It has in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the Workplace 
in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal) Act, 2013. 
All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint on sexual harassment was 
received during the Financial Year 2022-2023. The details are as under: 
 
The details of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given below:- 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment Cases pending 
in the beginning of the 
Financial Year i.e.01.04.2022 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases received 
during the Financial year 
2022-23 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases disposed 
off during the Financial year 
2022-23 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases pending 
at the end of Financial year 
2022-23 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 

 
GENERAL 
 
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions on these 
items during the period under review:  
1. Details relating to deposits covered under Chapter V of the Act. 
2. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise. 
3. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and       
               except ESOP referred to in this report. 
4. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or       
                commission from any of its subsidiaries. 
5. None of the directors of the Company have resigned. 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 
 
The Resolution Professional / Directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and cooperation received 
from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers, vendors and members during the year under review. The 
Resolution Professional/Directors also wish to place on record their deep sense of appreciation for the dedication of the employees 
at all levels, which has been require for the Company's success. The Directors/Resolution Professional of the Company look forward 
to their continued support in future. 
 
Note: The Company is undergoing CIRP and the powers of Board are suspended. Hence this report has been initialed by 
RP in order to meet the compliance. 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
Registered Office:                               By Order of the Suspended Board 
19 R N Mukherjee Road                                                                                                                                                     
Kolkata 700 001  
Dated:  29th August 2023                                                                                  
                                                                                                                                                                   Sd/-  
                                                                                                                                             SUNDEEP SHAH 
                                                                                                                                                     Din: 00484311 
                                          Chairman & Managing Director 
                                                                                                                               (Power under Suspension during CIRP)                                                  
                                                                                                                                                     
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                     Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                        MEGHA SHAH 
                                                                                                                                                        Din:07172597 
                                                                                                                                                   Wholetime Director 
                                                                                                                             (Power under Suspension during CIRP) 
 
 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                        ANIL KOHLI 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                            (Resolution Professional of Eastern Silk Industries Limited) 
Dated: 29th August 2023                                                                                                          Taken on record 
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ANNEXURE TO DIRECTORS’ REPORT 

“Annexure I” 
 

Particulars of Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and Outgo required under the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are as follows: 
 
 
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

FORM A 
 
The Company is engaged in the continuous review of energy costs, reduction in energy generation cost through improved operational 

and maintenance practices. 

(A) Power and Fuel Consumption 
 

  
(B) Consumption  per unit of products: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Electricity  Current 
Year 

    Previous 
   Year 

 (a) Purchased Units 21,11,832.00  22,40,203.00 

  Total Amount 1,98,51,226.00  2,00,29,481.00 

  Rate/Unit  9.40  8.94 

       

 (b) Own Generation through     

  Diesel Generator Units 27,384.00  70,812.00 

  Total Amount  9,37,619.00  19,61,236.00 
  Cost/Unit  34.24  27.70 

       
2. (a) Briquettes     

  Quantity Kgs 6,73,695.00  15,21,545.00 

  Total Amount  57,49,153  91,72,368 
  Cost/Unit  8.53  6.03 

       

 (b) Fire Wood     

  Quantity Kgs. 8,68,480.00  31,110.00 

  Total Amount 
Cost/Unit  

26,18,205.00 
3.01 

 1,18,218.00 
3.80 

 

Fabrics Mtrs  5,42,032.50   5,41,210.41  
Electricity  36.62  37.10  
Briquettes  10.61  16.95  
Fire Wood  4.83  0.22  
Diesel  1.73  3.62  
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TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

Form B 
 

Research & Development 
 

1. Specific areas in which R&D carried out by the 
Company 
 

 R&D activities are carried out for development of new 
products. 

2. Benefits derived as a result of above R&D 
 
 

 Improvement in quality and customer satisfaction. 

3. Future plan of action  Development of new varieties of products. 

4. Expenditure on R & D  Capital                           .   Nil 
Recurring                       .   Nil 
R&D Expenditure                  - 
as a percentage of 
turnover 
 

 
Technology Absorption, Adaptation & Innovation 
 

1. Efforts in brief, made towards technology 
Absorption, adaptation and innovation 
 

 Latest software’s are used for better design development. 

2. Benefits derived as a result of the above  Improved products. 

3. Details of imported technology 
 

 Not Applicable. 

 
Foreign exchange earnings & outgo 
 

(a) Activities relating to exports, initiatives taken to 
increase exports, development of new export 
markets for product and services and export plans. 

 Participating in the international trade fairs to showcase the 
company’s new developments and also invite the different 
company’s selling agents as well as customers to provide a 
platform of interaction in order to procure orders for the 
Company’s product as well as scout for new customers. 
 
Travelling expenses in respect of such activities are also 
expensive. Travelling by the sales personnel also brings in 
order for the Company’s products. 
 

(b) i) Overseas Travelling  The information on foreign exchange earnings and outgo is 
contained in the Note No. 56 & 57 of Notes on Financial 
Statements.  
 

 ii) Commission to Agents  
 iii) Consultation Fees  
 iv) Others  

                                                        By Order of the Suspended Board 
                                                                                                                                                    Sd/-                                                                                                        
19 R N Mukherjee Road                                    SUNDEEP SHAH 
Kolkata 700 001                                                                                 Din:00484311    
Dated:  29th August 2023                                                                    Chairman & Managing Director                           
                                                                                                                     (Power under Suspension during CIRP)                                                  
                                                                                                                                                    Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                            MEGHA SHAH 
                                                                                                                                            Din:07172597 
                                                                                                                                         Wholetime Director 
                                                                                                                             (Power under Suspension during CIRP) 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                        Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                                 ANIL KOHLI 
Place: New Delhi                                                                                      (Resolution Professional of Eastern Silk Industries Limited) 
Dated: 29th August 2023                                                                                                     Taken on record 
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                                                                                                                                                                                          “Annexure II” 
 
DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ 
WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 
 

Rule Particulars 
i. The Ratio of the remuneration 

of each Director to the median 
remuneration of the employees 
of the Company for the financial 
year. 

a. Mr. Sundeep Shah, Chairman & 
Managing 
Director 

1.1:1(Please refer Note 1) 
 

b. Ms. Megha Shah, Wholetime 
Director 

0.41:1(Please refer Note 1) 

ii. The percentage increase in 
remuneration of each Director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief 
Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary in the financial year. 

 Mr. Sundeep Shah, Chairman & 
Managing 
Director 

(Please refer Note 1) 

 Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia , 
Chief Financial Officer 

14.88% 

 Mr. Rahul Jaiswal, 
Company Secretary 

(Please refer Note 2) 

iii. The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the 
financial year. 

10.15% 

iv The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company. 289 
v. Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other 

than the managerial personnel in the last financial year and its comparison with 
the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof 
and point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for increase in the 
managerial remuneration 

Average percentage increase made 
in the salaries of employees other 
than the managerial personnel in 
the last financial year was 12%. 
There has been a increase in the 
remuneration of the chief financial 
officer due to revision in their 
remuneration structure made effect 
from 1st November 2022. 

vi. It is hereby affirmed that the remuneration is as per the Remuneration policy of the Company. 
 
Note: 
**1. No remuneration was paid to Managing Director and Wholetime Director Executive Directors during the CIRP period initiated by 
the order of NCLT dated 10th June, 2022 onwards hence, ratio and percentage increase are not comparable for the financial year 
2022-23. 
 
2. The appointment of Mr. Rahul Jaiswal Company Secretary at the current designation as stated above with effect from 16th 
November 2021 during the financial year 2021-22 and hence, percentage increase is not comparable for the financial year 2022-23. 
 
3. For calculation of median remuneration of employees for the current and previous year, the remuneration of employees who were 
on the payroll as on 31st March of each year respectively, have only been considered. 
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                                                                                                                                                                                          “Annexure II” 
 
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO THE PROVISIONS OF SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULES 
5(2) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014, A 
STATEMENT SHOWING THE NAME OF TOP TEN EMPLOYEES IN TERMS OF REMUNERATION DRAWN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

SL. 
No. 

Employee 
Name 

Designation Nature of 
Duties 
 

Qualification Joining 
date 

Age 
 (In 
Years) 

Experience 
(Yrs) 

Gross 
Salary 
(In Rs.) 

Previous 
Employment 
Designation 

1 Vishalakshi S Weaving 
Manager  

Weaving 
Designer 

Diploma 
textile 

01/04/2013 
 

40 10 1221324 
 

N.A. 

2 Prateek 
Chhawchharia 

Chief 
Financial 
Officer 

(Managing 
Financial, 
Commercial, 
Administration, 
Legal 
Activities) 

Graduate, CA 
Inter 

01/11/2016 
 

34 7 965000 
 

Primarc 
Projects 
Private 
Limited 

3 Srinivasan H Velvet 
Manager 

Velvet 
Designer 

Diploma 
designing 
and weaving 

23/04/2007 
 

43 16 924000 
 

N.A. 

4 Manu Rustagi Sale 
Manager 

Sales and 
marketing 
management 

Graduate, 
Diploma 
export 
management 

01/09/2008 
 

43 15 906648 
 

N.A. 

5 Abhinay Todi Sale 
Manager 

Sales and 
marketing 
management 

Graduate 01/04/2012 
 

42 11 900000 
 

N.A. 

6 Rahul Jaiswal Company 
Secretary 

Secretarial 
Compliance, 
Lodrs, 
Companies 
Act 2013  

Company 
Secretary, 
Graduate 

16/11/2022 
 
 

37 8 875060 
 

B. 
Chhawchharia 
& Co, 
Chartered 
Accountant 

7 Dilip Shah Vice 
President 

Finance & 
Accounts, 
Sales And 
Marketing 
Management 

Chartered 
Accountant, 
Graduate 

01/06/2003 
 

49 20 840000 
 

N.A. 

8 Kodandarama 
A 

Planning 
Manager 

Planning Of 
Production 

MBA, Post 
Graduate 

01/01/2005 
 

45 18 840000 
 

N.A. 

9 Ravindra 
Kumar 

Purchase 
Manager 

Purchase And 
Marketing 
Management 

Under 
Graduate 

01/10/2015 
 

38 7 810120 
 

N.A. 

10 Mallikarjun 
Nidagundi 

Weaving 
Master 

Managing and 
controlling  the 
entire 
production of 
fabrics  

Diploma 
textile and 
technology 

01/06/2022 
 

48 1 800000 
 

Sankhla 
Industries 
Limited 
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                                                                                                                                                                                         “Annexure III” 
 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 
 
In accordance with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 with the Stock 
Exchange, a Report containing the details of Corporate Governance of Eastern Silk Industries Limited for the year 2022-23 is given 
below. 

 
I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF GOVERNANCE: 
 
The Company lays emphasis on good corporate practices which will enable the management to conduct the affairs of the Company 
in a transparent manner and culminate in optimum use of its resources for achieving highest standards of corporate governance and 
the principles of integrity, transparency, accountability and commitment to values. The framework is driven by the objective of 
enhancing long term stakeholder value without compromising on ethical standards and corporate social responsibilities. The 
Company believes in transparency, empowerment, accountability and integrity in its operations having duly delegated authority to the 
various functional heads who are responsible for attaining the corporate plans with the ultimate purpose of enhancement of 
“stakeholder value”. 
 
II.            CORPORATE INSOLVENCY RESOLUTION PROCESS (CIRP) 
 
The Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/ Corporate Debtor”) was 
initiated the Hon'ble National Company Law Tribunal, Principal Bench at Kolkata (“Adjudicating Authority”) under Section 7 of the 
IB Code vide its order dated 10th June 2022. The Adjudicating Authority vide the order of the same date appointed Mr. CA Anil Agarwal 
IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IPP00270/2017-2018/10514 as the Resolution Professional (“IRP”) to conduct the CIRP of the 
Corporate Debtor. Later, in the first CoC Meeting of the Corporate Debtor held on 8th July 2022, Mr. Anil Kohli was appointed as the 
Resolution Professional (“RP”) to run the CIRP of the Corporate Debtor. 
 
Resolution Professional had issued invitation for Expression of Interest (hereinafter referred as ‘’EOI’’) in FORM G on August 24, 
2022 in compliance with Regulation 36A of CIRP Regulations, 2016 in the newspaper in English and one in Hindi language and other 
in Kannda language for the submission of a resolution plan in accordance with the provision of the code.  
 
As per the published FORM G, the last date for submission of EOI was stipulated as September 9, 2022, and last date stipulated for 
submission of resolution plan was October 31, 2022. 
 
The Resolution Professional received three Resolution plans which were opened in presence of the COC Members in its 6th COC 
Meeting. 
 
The RP with the approval of committee of creditors of the Company has filed an application before the Hon’ble NCLT, Kolkata seeking 
an extension of the period of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) of the Company by Ninety (90) days in terms of section 
12(2) of the insolvency and Bankruptcy code 2016. The Hon’ble NCLT Kolkata had granted an extension of the CIRP Period of the 
Company by further period of Ninety (90) days with effect from December 7, 2022 vide its order dated January 30,2023. 
 
One of the Promoters of the Company Mr. Sundeep Shah had filed the application under section 12A of the IB Code 2016 which was 
place before the COC members in the 10th meeting held on February 13, 2023. The said in-principal letter was put to vote before the 
COC members which could not attain the requisite votes and was Rejected by the members of COC. 
 
All 3 (three) resolution plans were put to vote before the COC members for their consideration and approval out of which the Resolution 
plan submitted by Baumann Dekor through Mr. Ajay Bikram Singh was approved by the Committee of Creditors (COC) in its 11th 
(COC) meeting held on March 03, 2023 with 88.30% of voting shares. 
 
Subsequently, on March 09, 2023 the Application for Approval of Resolution Plan under section 30(6) and section 31(1) of the 
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with regulation 39 of IBBI (Insolvency Resolution Process for Corporate Person) 
Regulation, 2016 was filed by the Resolution Professional with Honorable National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) Kolkata for its 
approval which is still pending. 
 
In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the 
Board of Directors of Eastern Silk Industries Limited (ESIL) stands suspended and the same are being exercised by Mr. Anil Kohli, 
Resolution Professional. The management of the affairs of ESIL has been vested with Mr. Anil Kohli and as per Securities and 
Exchange Board of India Notification dated 31 May, 2018 on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third 
Amendment) Regulations, 2018, The provisions as specified in regulations 17, 18,19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable during the 
insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 

In terms of Section 17 of the Code, on commencement of the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the powers of the 
Board of Directors of ESIL stands suspended and the same are being exercised by Mr. Anil Kohli, Resolution Professional. The 
management of the affairs of ESIL has been vested with Mr. Anil Kohli. 
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As per Securities and Exchange Board of India Notification dated 31 May, 2018 on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, The provisions as specified in regulations 17 shall not be applicable during 
the insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 
 
SIZE AND COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD 
 
The Suspended Board comprises of six directors including two executive and four Non-Executive Independent directors as on 31st 
March, 2023. The composition of the Board of Directors and also the number of the Board of Directors or Board Committees of which 
they are Member / Chairperson are as under: 
 

Name of the Director Category 
No. of other 
Directorship 

No. of 
Membership of other 

Board Committee 

No. of other Board 
Committee for 

which Chairperson 

Mr. Sundeep Shah 
Chairman & Managing 

Director 
2 – – 

Ms. Megha Shah Executive Director – – – 

Mr. G.D. Harnathka 
Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
– – – 

Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma 
Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
1 – – 

Mr. Pankaj Kumar 

Deorah 

Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
1 – – 

Mr. Abhishek Haralalka 
Non-Executive, 

Independent Director 
– – – 

 
The Company through periodical presentation to Board of Directors and various committee of Directors and individually provides an 
opportunity to independent directors to facilitate their active participation and familiarise the Company’s business 
 
Attendance of Directors at the meetings of Board and at last Annual General Meeting 
 
During the year under review, One Board Meetings were held on 30th May, 2022.After the Commencement of CIRP the role and 
responsibilities of the Board of Directors are being fulfilled by the Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of 
IB Code and powers of the Board of Directors are suspended. Hence, no meetings of the Directors were held after the 
Commencement of CIRP i.e. June 10, 2022.The attendance of the Directors for the Board Meeting and the last Annual General 
Meeting (AGM) was as follows: 

Name of the Director Date of Board Meeting Meeting Attended Whether attended the last AGM 
Mr. Sundeep Shah 30/05/2022 1 out of 1 Yes 
Ms. Megha Shah 30/05/2022 1 out of 1 Yes 
Mr. G.D. Harnathka 30/05/2022 1 out of 1 No 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma 30/05/2022 1 out of 1 Yes 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah 30/05/2022 1 out of 1 No 
Mr. Abhishek Haralalka 30/05/2022 1 out of 1 Yes 

 
Number of other Directorships and Chairmanship/Membership of Committees and Name of the listed entities & Category of 
directorship of each Director in various Companies are as hereunder: 

 
The number of Directorships and Committee memberships including name of listed entities and category of Directorship in other 
Companies as on March 31, 2023 are given hereunder: 
 

Name of the Director Directorship in other Companies Committee Memberships held 
in other Companies (Note 2) 

No. of 
Directorship 
(Note 1) 

Name of Listed 
entities 
& Category of 
Directorship 

Member Chairman 

Mr. Sundeep Shah 0 None 0 None 
Ms. Megha Shah 0 None 0 None 
Mr. G.D. Harnathka 0 None 0 None 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma 0 None 0 None 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah 0 None 0 None 
Mr. Abhishek Haralalka 0 None 0 None 
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Note 1: Number of Directorships in other Companies excludes Directorships in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies and 
Companies incorporated under Section 25/8 of the Companies Act, 1956/2013. 
 
Note 2: Board Committee Chairmanships/Memberships in other Companies includes only Chairmanships/ Memberships of Audit 
Committees and Stakeholders Relationship Committees. 
 
Note 3: Board Committee Memberships in other Companies includes Chairmanships in Committees of other Companies. 
 
Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se: 
 
Mr. Sundeep Shah, Chairman & Managing Director is related to Ms. Megha Shah, Wholetime Director as per Section 2(77) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. Ms. Megha Shah is the daughter of Mr. Sundeep Shah. No other Directors are related to each other in terms 
of the definition of “relative” given under the Act. 
 
Number of Shares and Convertible instruments held by Non-executive directors: 
 

Name of the Director No. of Shares and Convertible instruments held 
Mr. G.D. Harnathka Nil 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma Nil 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah Nil 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah Nil 

 
Web link where details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors is disclosed. 
 
The details of familiarization programmes imparted to Independent Directors are duly disclosed on the website of the Company. 
 
The web link of the same is as follows: http://www.easternsilk.com/InvestorRelations/FamiliarizationProgramme 
 
List of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business. 
 
The relevant skill/expertise/competencies of the Board of Directors of the Company in the context of its multifaceted activities like 
manufacture of silk yarn, fabrics and made ups, home furnishings, fashion fabrics, double width fabric, scarves, laces, melts and 
embroidered fabrics. Shall be finance, industry experience, law, risk management and corporate governance and these are available 
with the Board. 
 
The Board of Directors of the Company possesses the requisite skill/expertise/competencies in the context of its business to function 
effectively. The core skill/expertise/ competencies that are available with respective directors are as under: 
 

Names of Directors who have 
such skills/ expertise/ 
competence 

Core skills/expertise/ competencies identified by the Board of 
Directors as required in the context of its business 

Mr. Sundeep Shah Corporate Governance, Entrepreneur & Leadership  
Mr. Ghanshyam Das Harnathka Corporate Governance, Account & Industry Experience 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma Corporate Governance, Finance, Account, Taxation & Law 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah Corporate Governance, Risk Management & Leadership 
Ms. Megha Shah Corporate Governance, Entrepreneur, Blending & Designing 
Mr. Abhishek Haralalka Corporate Governance, Export and Import of Textile and Allied 

Products 
 
The Company has in place a system of preparation of the legal compliance report on quarterly basis of all applicable laws to the 
Company, and a system to ratify any instance of non-compliance. The Board also reviews the compliance reports periodically. The 
terms and conditions of appointment of independent director is also available on the Company’s website: http://www.easternsilk.com 
 
Independent Directors 
 
Independent Directors play a significant role in the governance processes of the Board by enriching the Board’s decision making and 
preventing possible conflicts of interest that may emerge in such decision making. 
 
The Company has appointed Independent Directors as per the requirements of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and Securities & 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, (hereinafter referred to as “SEBI Listing 
Regulations”). The Nomination and Remuneration committee identifies candidates based on certain laid-down criteria and considers 
the need for diversity of the Board, and makes recommendations to the Board accordingly. 
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Confirmation with respect to the Independent Directors 
 
None of the existing Independent Directors serves as Independent Director in more than seven listed companies in line with the 
requirements of SEBI Listing Regulations. The said Independent Directors have also confirmed that they meet the criteria of 
independence as laid down in the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended and they are not aware of any circumstance or 
situation, which exist or may be reasonably anticipated, that could impair or impact their ability to discharge their duties with an 
objective independent judgment and without any external influence. In the opinion of the Board, the Independent Directors fulfill the 
conditions specified in the SEBI Listing Regulations and are independent of management.  
 
In compliance with rule 6(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014, the Independent Directors 
have also registered themselves on the Independent director’s data bank maintained by the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs. 
 
Meeting of Independent Directors and Attendance Record: 
 
Independent Directors are required to meet at least once in a year to deal with matters listed out in Regulation 25 of Securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV to the Companies 
Act, 2013 which inter-alia includes, review of the performance of non-independent directors, Chairman and the Board as a whole and 
assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Management and the Board that is necessary to perform 
the duties by the Board of Directors. After the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP), the Independent 
Directors had no Meeting during the period. 
 
Further after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) shall be fulfilled by Resolution Professional in 
accordance with sections 17 and 23 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended. 
 
Reasons for the Resignation of Independent Director 
 
During the Financial Year 2022-23 there were no resignation from the Independent Directors of the company. 
 
Code of Conduct for Board Members and Senior Management 
 
The Board of Vedant Fashions Limited had laid down a Code of Conduct for all the Board members and Senior Management of the 
Company. The Code of Conduct is posted on the website of the Company (weblink 
http://www.easternsilk.com/InvestorRelations/CodeOfConduct). 
 
All Board members and Senior Management have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct and the Managing Director of the 
Company has confirmed the same. The same is annexed to the Report. 
 
The Directors of the Company have expertise and skills in diverse fields and are well versed to guide the team in the core areas as 
mentioned above and lead the Company in the coming years. 
 

III. AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
(a)          Brief description of the Audit Committee.   
As per Securities and Exchange Board of India Notification dated 31 May, 2018 on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, The provisions as specified in regulation 18 shall not be applicable during the 
insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is undergoing corporate insolvency resolution process under 
the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC) so as per the circular the composition of the Audit committee is in accordance with 
the requirements of the Regulation under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Regulations) 
2015 and also Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 6 and 7 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 
2014 shall be fulfilled by Resolution Professional and powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended. 

As per the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, dated 31st May, 2019 the 
role and responsibilities of Audit Committee after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) shall be 
fulfilled by Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016. 
 
The Audit Committee of the Company was constituted to exercise powers and discharge functions as stipulated in Section 177 of the 
Companies Act, 2013, under Part C of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 
with Stock Exchange and other relevant statutory / regulatory provisions. 
 
(b) Responsibilities of Audit Committee 

The Audit Committee is, inter alia, entrusted with the following responsibilities by the Board of Directors of the Company: 
 

(i) Overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to ensure that the 
financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible; 
 

(ii) Reviewing with the management quarterly, half yearly, nine months and annual financial statements i.e. Standalone, 
before submission to the Board for approval; 
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(iii) Reviewing the Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and results of operations; 
 

(iv) Reviewing with the Management, the annual financial statements and auditor’s report thereon before submission to 
the Board for approval; 

 
(v) Recommending the appointment, remuneration, terms of appointment and scope of Statutory Auditors of the Company 

and approval for payment towards any other service;  
 

(vi) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit process; 
 

(vii) Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function and discussing with the internal auditors on the significant findings 
and further course adopted; 
 

(c)          Composition, Name of Members , Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises of two Non-Executive (Independent) Directors and one Executive Director having 
knowledge of corporate finance, accounts and company law. The Chairman of the Committee is an Independent Director, elected by 
the members of the Committee.  

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. Besides the Committee members, Chief Financial Officer and 
partners / representatives of the firm of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are permanent invitees at the meetings of the 
Committee.  
 
During the financial year ended 31st March 2023, One Audit Committee meetings were held on 30th May 2022 respectively which were 
attended by all the members of the Committee. After the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) on  
10th June 2022, the Audit Committee had no Meeting during the period. The composition of the Audit Committee and details of their 
attendance at the meetings are as follows: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Internal Auditors 
 
During the FY 2022-23, the Company had appointed Mr. Dilip Raj Kumar Shah as the Internal Auditors of the Company. 

IV. NOMINATION & REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 
 
(a)          Brief description and terms of reference of Nomination & Remuneration Committee.   
The Board of Directors has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors. The role of the committee is to 
perform all such matters as prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 and Schedule II - Part D about Role of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of Directors under Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) 19 Regulations, 2015, as may be amended / modified from time to time which inter-alia includes recommendation to 
Board of Directors remuneration policy for the Company, formulation of criteria for performance evaluation of Directors, Chairman, 
Board and Committee of Directors, appointment of Director, appointment and remuneration of Managing Director and Key Managerial 
Personnel. The Committee will also deal with matters as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors. 

The Committee comprises of one Non-Executive Independent Director as Chairman, one Non-Executive Independent Director and 
one Non-Executive-Independent Director as member The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee. 

(b)          Composition, Name of Members, Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

The Members of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee are Mr. Abhishek Haralalka (Chairman) Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma and 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah being the members of the Committee. 

The role and responsibilities of the Committees after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) shall 
be fulfilled by Resolution Professional and powers of the Board of Directors stand suspended. 

During the review in the financial year 2022-23 had no meeting conducted. 

Name of the Director 
Position 

 
Category 

No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma Member Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Abhishek Haralalka Chairman Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah Member Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Name of the 
Director 

 
Position 

 
Category 

No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Date of Meeting held 
on  

Mr. Abhishek 
Harlalka  

Chairman 
Non-Executive Independent 

Director 
1 

30/05/2022 

Mr. Sundeep Shah Member Executive Promoter Director 1 30/05/2022 
Mr. Madhu Kant 

Sharma 
Member 

Non-Executive Independent 
Director 

1 
30/05/2022 
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(c) Performance evaluation criteria by Independent Directors 
 
The Companies Act, 2013 and Listing Regulations, 2015 has enabled an evaluation mechanism to appraise the performance of the 
Independent Directors. In terms of that, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Company has laid down the criteria for the 
evaluation of the Independent Directors of the Company. The performance of Independent Directors shall be done by the entire Board 
of Directors (excluding the Director being evaluated) and on the basis of evaluation, it shall be determined whether to extend or 
continue the term of appointment of the Independent Director. 
 
AREAS OF EVALUATION 
 
1.  Frequency of meetings attended 
2. Timeliness of circulating Agenda for meetings and descriptiveness 
3. Quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information to the Board 
4. Promptness with which Minutes of the meetings are drawn and circulated 
5. Opportunity to discuss matters of critical importance, before decisions are made 
6. Familiarity with the objects, operations and other functions of the company 
7. Importance given to Internal Audit Reports, Management responses and steps towards improvement 
8. Avoidance of conflict of interest 
9. Exercise of fiscal oversight and monitoring financial performance 
10. Level of monitoring of Corporate Governance Regulations and compliance 
11. Adherence to Code of Conduct and Business ethics by directors individually and collectively 
12. Monitoring of Regulatory compliances and risk assessment 
13. Review of Internal Control Systems 
14. Performance of the Chairperson of the company including leadership qualities. 
15. Performance of the Whole time Director 
16. Overall performance of the Board/ Committees 
 
V. STAKEHOLDER REALTIONSHIP COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 
 
(a)          Brief description and terms of reference of Stakeholder Relationship Committee.   
The role and responsibilities of the Committees after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) shall 
be fulfilled by Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers 
of the Board of Directors and their Committees stand suspended. 
 
The Board of Director has constituted a Stakeholder Relationship / Grievance Committee of Directors. The role of the Committee is 
to consider and resolve the grievances of security holders and perform such roles as may require under the Companies Act, 2013 
and the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015. Continuous 
efforts are made to ensure that grievances are expeditiously redressed to the satisfaction of investors. A status report of shareholders 
complaints and redressed thereof is prepared and placed before Stakeholders’ Relationship/ Grievance Committee of Directors. 

 
(b)          Composition, Name of Members , Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

The Committee comprises of two non-executive independent directors namely Mr. Abhishek Haralalka (Chairman), Mr. Madhu Kant 
Sharma, and one Executive Director namely Mr. Sundeep Shah.  
 
The Secretary of the Company Mr. Rahul Jaiswal is appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance officer of the Company with 
effect from 16th November, 2021. 
 
No meeting of Stakeholder Relationship Committee was held during the year under review. As specified above that w.e.f 10th June 
2022 the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 7 of the IB Code. Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the 
Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution 
Professional. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Name of the Director Position 
 

Category No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma Member Non-Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Abhishek Haralalka Chairman Non -Executive Independent Director - 

Mr. Sundeep Shah Member Executive Promoter Director - 
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Status of Investor complaints received by the Company during the year under review is as follows: 
 
Number of complaints received and resolved during the year: 

Number of complaints pending at the beginning of the financial year 2022-23 Nil 
Number of complaints received during the year 2022-23  3 
Number of complaints redressed during the year 2022-23  3 
Number of complaints pending at the end of the financial year 2022-23 Nil 
Number of complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders Nil 

 
VI. SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 
 
(a)     Brief description Terms of reference of Share Transfer Committee 
The role and responsibilities of the Committees after the Commencement of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) shall 
be fulfilled by Resolution Professional in accordance with sections 17 and 23 of Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code 2016 and powers 
of the Board of Directors and their Committees stand suspended. 
 
The role of the Committee is to deal with issuance of duplicate of share certificates, transmission of shares, and transfer of shares 
and supervision of transfer of shares delegated to officers of the Company. The delegated authorities attend share transfer formalities 
at least thrice in a month. Transfer of shares are processed and registered within the stipulated time, provided all the documents are 
valid and complete in all respect. Share transfers approved by the delegated authorities are placed before the Share Transfer 
Committee/Board for its review. As on 31st March, 2023 no shares were pending for transfer. As per Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, with effect from 1st April, 2019 except in case of 
transmission or transposition of securities, requests for effecting transfer of securities shall not be processed unless the securities are 
held in the dematerialized form with a depository. The Board of Directors has appointed the Company Secretary as Compliance 
Officer of the Company to monitor the share transfer process. 
 
(b )   Composition, Name of Members , Chairperson, Meeting and Attendance 

The members of the Committee are Mr. Sundeep Shah, Ms. Megha Shah and Mr. Rahul Jaiswal. Mr. Sundeep Shah acts as the 
Chairman of the Committee. 

No meeting of Share Transfer Committee was held during the year under review. As specified above that w.e.f 10th June 2022 the 
Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 7 of the IB Code. Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the 
powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution Professional until replaced by Resolution 
Professional. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
VII.   Details of remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 

i) Executive Directors 
Name of Director Salary (In 

Rupees) 
Other benefits 
(In Rupees) 

Company’s 
contribution 
to P.F (In 
Rupees) 

Advance 
taken (In 
Rupees) 

Performance 
linked 
incentive/ 
Annual Pay 

Total 
Remuneration 
( excluding 
Advance)  
 
(In Rupees) 

Mr. Sundeep Shah 2,50,000 13,000 30,000 - -  2,93,000 
Ms. Megha Shah 95,000 5,000 11,400 68,200 - 1,11,400 
Total 3,45,000 18,000 41,400 68,200 - 4,04,400 

 
Payment of remuneration to the Executive/Whole Time Directors of the Company is governed by the terms and conditions of their 
appointment as recommended by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approved by the Board at their respective 
meetings subject to the approval of the Shareholders. 
 
No remuneration paid to Executive Directors of the Company during the CIRP period initiated by the order of NCLT dated 
10th June 2022 onwards.     
 
 
 

Name of the Director Position 
 

Category No. of Meeting 
Attended 

Mr. Sundeep Shah Chairman Executive Director - 

Ms. Megha Shah Member Executive Director - 

Mr. Rahul Jaiswal Member Compliance Officer - 
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ii) Non-Executive Directors 
 
Sitting fees for attending Board/Committee meetings are paid to the Non-Executive Directors. The Company pays the following sitting 
fees to its Directors for every Board meeting attended by them and Committee meetings: 
 

Meeting Amount of Sitting Fees(Rs). 
Board Meeting 5000 
Audit Committee Meeting 1000 
Nomination and Remuneration Committee Meeting 1000 
Stakeholders Relationship Committee Meeting 1000 

 
During the period under review there is no Pecuniary Relationship or Transactions of the Non- Executive Directors with the company. 
 
The criteria for making payments to non-executive Directors is available on the Company’s website (weblink: 
http://www.easternsilk.com/InvestorRelations/CriteriaPayments) 
 
During the financial year 2022-2023, no stock options were granted to any of the directors of the Company. The Company does not 
pay any performance incentives or severance fees. 
 
But no sitting Fees paid to Non- Executive Directors of the Company during the CIRP period initiated by the order of NCLT dated 
10th June 2022 onwards.     
 
The details of notice period for the Directors are mentioned herein below: 
 

Name of the Director Notice period 
Mr. Sundeep Shah 6 Months 
Ms. Megha Shah 6 Months 
Mr. G. D. Harnathka - 
Mr. Madhu Kant Sharma - 
Mr. Pankaj Kumar Deorah - 
Mr. Abhishek Haralalka - 

 
VIII.           GENERAL BODY MEETING 
 
i) General Meetings: 

The last three Annual General Meeting of the Company were held as under:- 

Date Time Venue ParƟculars of special resoluƟon passed 

28th September 
2020 

 
11:00 A.M. 

 

Held through Video conferencing /other 
Audio-visual means 

1. For the Re-appointment of Mr. 
Madhu Kant Sharma as Independent 
Director 

8th September 
2021 

11:00 A.M. 
Held through Video conferencing /other 
Audio-visual means 

1. For the re-appointment of Mr. 
Sundeep Shah as Managing Director 

2. For the re-appointment of Ms. Megha 
Shah as Whole Time Director 

15th July 2022 11:00 A.M. 
Held through Video conferencing /other 
Audio-visual means 

No Special Resolution Passed 

 
ii) Resolutions Passed through Postal Ballot 

There were no resolutions passed in the financial year 2022-23 by postal ballot. 
 
iii)            Procedure for postal ballot: 
 

Serial No. Procedure 
1. After obtaining consent to act as Scrutinizer the Board of Directors appoints Scrutinizer to conduct 

Postal Ballot process in true, fair and transparent manner. 
2. Cut Off date is fixed for identifying shareholders entitled to receive notice of the postal ballot. 
3. Postal Ballot Notice along with explanatory statement and Postal Ballot form with instructions are 

dispatched to shareholders. As per requirements of Listing Agreement, e-voting facility was also 
provided to Shareholders of the Company 

4. Company advertises dispatch of postal ballot in one English Newspaper and one Vernacular 
language. 

5. The postal ballot form duly completed and signed should be sent to the Scrutinizer appointed by the 
Company at the registered office of the Company on or before the close of the Business hours on 
specified date. 
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6. After due scrutiny of all the Postal Ballot forms received & considering the voting through electronic 
mode upto the close of working hours scrutinizer submitted his report to the company on the 
specified date 

7. Result of the postal ballot is declared at the registered office of the company and the same is notified 
to stock exchanges as well as published on the website of the company. 

 
IX. MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 
 

i) Quarterly results/Annual results/Notices/Other important announcements: 
 
The financial results of the Company are published in Financial Express (English) and Arthik Lipi (Regional) newspapers in India. 
These results are also posted in the Company’s website https://www.easternsilk.com/ . As per SEBI requirements, quarterly and 
annual results of the Company are intimated to the Stock Exchanges as per the prescribed timelines after the same is approved by 
the Board. Further, the quarter-end shareholding pattern, quarterly Corporate Governance Report, and other Corporate Disclosures 
are also intimated to the Stock Exchanges within the prescribed time limit. The Company is filing the above necessary announcements 
to stock exchanges through NSE Electronic Application Processing System (NEAPS) and BSE Listing Centre. 
 

ii) Annual Report: 
 

Annual Report containing, inter alia, Audited Annual Accounts, Board’s Report, Auditors’ Report, and other important information is 
circulated to members and others entitled thereto through permitted mode(s). 
 

iii)  Media Releases:  
 

Official news releases are given directly to the press and to National Stock Exchange of India Limited and BSE Limited. The media 
releases are uploaded on the website of the Company: https://www.easternsilk.com/. 
 
   iv)                 SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):  
 
The investor complaints are processed in a centralized web based complaints redress system. 
 
    v)                  Website:  
 
The Company’s website is https://www.easternsilk.com/.. Quarterly and annual results as well as shareholding pattern, Corporate 
Governance, and other necessary statutory disclosures are posted on the website. 
 
X. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 
 
i) Seventy Seventh  Annual General Meeting 
 
  Venue : At the Registered Office of the Company, 
                              through Video Conferencing (VC)/ Other Audio Visual Means (“OAVM”)     
   Date : 29th September, 2023 
   Time : 03:30 P.M. 
 
ii) Financial Year: 1st April 2022 to 31st March 2023 
             

Adoption of un-audited quarterly results and Annual Results Adoption on 
Unaudited 1st  quarter results Within 45 days of the end of the quarter, except the 4th  

quarter (60 days) Unaudited 2nd  quarter results 
Unaudited 3rd  quarter results 
Audited 4th quarterly results and annual results 

 
iii) Dividend Payment Date: The Company has not declared any dividend during the financial year under review. 

 
iv)           Book Closure: The date of book closure is from 23rd September 2023 to 29th September 2023 (both days inclusive). 
 
v)            Listing on Stock Exchange: 
 

NAME OF EXCHANGE AND ADDRESS SECURITIES DEMAT ISIN NO STOCK CODE 
National Stock Exchange of India Limited 
Exchange Plaza, Bandra Kurla Complex, 
Bandra (East), Mumbai-400051 

Equity NSDL and CDSL 
INE962C01027 

EASTSILK 

 
vi) Listing Fess: The equity shares of your company are listed on National Stock Exchange (NSE) only. The listing fee for the  
                                       financial year 2022-23 has been paid to NSE only. 
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vii)          Stock Market Data  
 
The Company’s high and low prices recorded on National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE) and BSE Limited during the financial 
year 2022-23 are given below: 
 
Stock market price data and Performance in comparison to Nifty 50 for the year 2022-23 (NSE) 
 
 
 

MONTH HIGH ( .) LOW ( .) QUANTITY TRADED 
(NO. OF SHARES) 

NIFTY 50 

HIGH LOW 

APRIL 2022 8.05 6.15 2050654 18114.65 16824.70 

MAY 2022 6.70 5.05 1604622 17132.85 15735.75 

JUNE 2022 5.70 3.90 910717 16793.85 15183.40 

JULY 2022 5.00 3.80 507089 17172.80 15511.05 

AUGUST 2022 4.80 3.65 880955 17992.20 17154.80 

SEPTEMBER 2022 4.20 3.60 903737 18096.15 16747.70 

OCTOBER 2022 4.05 3.55 443122 18022.80 16855.55 

NOVEMBER 2022 4.10 3.40 772987 18816.05 17959.20 

DECEMBER 2022 4.20 3.50 764208 18887.60 17774.25 

JANUARY 2023 4.15 3.40 673498 18251.95 17405.55 

FEBRUARY 2023 3.65 2.75 426929 18134.75 17255.20 

MARCH 2023 3.00 1.95 738535 17799.95 16828.35 
 
Stock market price data and Performance in comparison to BSE Sensex for the year 2022-23 (BSE) 
 
 

MONTH HIGH ( .) LOW ( .) QUANTITY TRADED 
(NO. OF SHARES) 

BSE Sensex 

HIGH LOW 

APRIL 2022 8.10 6.13 524288 60845.10 56009.07 

MAY 2022 6.71 5.02 383103 57184.21 52632.48 

JUNE 2022 5.84 3.93 421054 56432.65 50921.22 

JULY 2022 5.12 3.73 199026 57619.27 52094.25 

AUGUST 2022 4.83 3.55 620110 60411.20 57367.47 

SEPTEMBER 2022 4.28 3.54 643359 60767.12 56147.23 

OCTOBER 2022 4.08 3.53 266464 60786.70 56683.40 

NOVEMBER 2022 4.09 3.40 300479 63303.01 60425.47 

DECEMBER 2022 4.29 3.42 459910 63583.07 59754.10 

JANUARY 2023 4.34 3.37 242951 61343.96 58699.20 

FEBRUARY 2023 3.64 2.75 182939 61682.25 58795.97 

MARCH 2023 3.07 1.87 342395 60498.48 57084.91 
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viii)Stock Performance chart in comparison to broad- based indices (NSE) :-. 
 

 
 
 
 Stock Performance chart in comparison to broad- based indices (BSE) :- 
 

 
 
ix) Details relating to Suspension of Securities and reasons thereof 
 
During the year under review no such case reported for the suspension of securities. 
 
x) Registrar and Share Transfer Agents: 
 
The Company’s has appointed ABS Consultant Pvt. Ltd., Room No. 99, Stephen House, 6th Floor, 4 BBD Bag (East), Kolkata – 700 
001 as Registrar and Share Transfer Agents for effecting transfer/transmission of shares etc. in physical and demat form. 
 
xi) Share Transfer System: 
 
Share Transfers are registered and returned within a period of fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt, if the documents are clear in 
all respects. The authority for transfer of shares has been delegated to the Managing Director for transfer of shares up to a fixed 
number beyond which the matters are placed before the shareholders Committee, which meets as and when required. As reported 
by Company's RTA all valid requests for transfer during the year under review were transferred within stipulated time limit. 

 -
 1.00
 2.00
 3.00
 4.00
 5.00
 6.00
 7.00
 8.00
 9.00

 16,000.00

 16,500.00

 17,000.00

 17,500.00

 18,000.00

 18,500.00

 19,000.00

 19,500.00

 20,000.00

Apr-22 May-22 Jun-22 Jul-22 Aug-22 Sep-22 Oct-22 Nov-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23

The graph is made on the basis of monthly high price of Eastern Silk share and NSE Nifty 50

NSE Nifty 50 Column1

0.00
1.00
2.00
3.00
4.00
5.00
6.00
7.00
8.00
9.00

55,000.00
56,000.00
57,000.00
58,000.00
59,000.00
60,000.00
61,000.00
62,000.00
63,000.00
64,000.00
65,000.00

Ap
r-

22

M
ay

-2
2

Ju
n-

22

Ju
l-2

2

Au
g-

22

Se
p-

22

O
ct

-2
2

N
ov

-2
2

De
c-

22

Ja
n-

23

Fe
b-

23

M
ar

-2
3

The graph is made on the basis of monthly high price of Eastern Silk  share and S & P BSE 
SENSEX 

S & P BSE Sensex Column1

37



 
 

 

  

 
xii) Distribution of shareholding as on 31st March 2023: 
 

No. of Shares Number of 
Share Holders 

% To Total 
Holders 

No. of 
Shares held 

% To total 
Holding 

Upto     500 19,750 73.25 31,57,132 4.00 
501  -  1000 3,240 12.13 28,21,513 3.57 
1001 – 2000 1,736 6.50 27,47,976 3.48 
2001 – 3000 689 2.58 18,03,018 2.28 
3001 -  4000 309 1.16 11,05,071 1.40 
4001 –  5000 317 1.19 15,11,610 1.91 
5001 – 10000 457 1.71 34,36,652 4.35 
10001 & above 397 1.49 6,23,69,648 79.00 
TOTAL 26,715 100.00 7,89,52,620 100.00 

 
Categories of Equity Shareholding as on 31st March, 2023 
  

Category No. Shares % age of 
Holding 

Promoters including NRI Promoters 4,04,88,351 51.28 

Financial Institutions, Banks, Mutual Fund Etc. 15,13,000 1.92 

Non Resident Indians / OCBs / FIIs 10,66,638 1.35 

Private Corporate Bodies 35,73,237 4.53 

Public Corporate Bodies 39,19,807 4.96 

Indian Public 2,76,03,119 34.96 

Trust 5 0.00 

IEPF Account 7,88,463 1.00 

TOTAL 7,89,52,620 100.00 

 
xiii)   Dematerialization of Shares and Liquidity 
 
As directed by Securities Exchange Board of India (SEBI) Equity Shares of the Company are being traded in compulsory 
dematerialised form by all the investors. 

The Company has entered into an agreement with both depositories viz., National Security Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central 
Depository Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL) enabling the investors to hold shares of the Company in electronic form. 
 
The ISIN of Eastern Silk for transactions of shares in depository mode is INE962C01027. 
 
As on 31.03.2023 the dematerialised shares were 7,78,19,861 which represents 98.37% of the total subscribed capital. The equity 
shares of the Company are regularly traded on the National Stock Exchange. 
 
xiv) Outstanding GDRs / ADRs / Warrants or any other Convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 
 
The Company has not issued any GDRs, ADRs, Warrants or any other convertible instruments. 
 
xv) Disclosure Of Commodity Price Risk Or Foreign Exchange Risk And Hedging Activities 
 
The Company has no material commodity price risks and accordingly has not entered into Commodity hedging. 
 
xvi)   Plant Location 
 

Unit 1 : 411, Telugarahalli Road 
Anekal, Bangalore – 562 106 

 
Unit 2 : #39, Kammansandra Agrahara Kasaba Hobli 

Anekal, Bangalore – 560 106 

 
Unit 3  : 11A, 2nd Cross Industrial Area  

Nanjangud, Karnataka – 571 301 (Not in operation) 
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Unit 4 : Falta Special Economic Zone 

24 Parganas (South), West Bengal (Not in operation) 

 
xvii) Address for Correspondence 

Eastern Silk Industries Limited (CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554)  19, R. N. Mukherjee Road Kolkata – 700 001 

Phone: 033 4064 5731 Fax: 2248 – 2486 Email: investors@easternsilk.com Website: www.easternsilk.com 

 
xviii)  List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant financial year, for   
          all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme or proposal of the listed entity    
          involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad. 
 

          Not Applicable  

 

XI.   OTHER DISCLOSURE  

 
i.  Disclosures on materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests of the 

Company at large. 
 

The Company has the Related Party Transactions Policy of the Company as approved by the Board. The Policy Related Party 
Transactions has been uploaded on the website of the Company and can be accessed on http://www.easternsilk.com. There is 
no materially significant related party transactions during the period under review which may have potential conflict with the 
interests of the listed entity at large. 

 
ii. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the listed entity by stock exchange(s) or 

the board or any statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years. 
 

During the last three financial years, the Company has duly complied with all the various applicable requirements and regulations 
of the erstwhile Listing Agreement entered with the Stock Exchange and the Listing Regulations. No penalty has been imposed 
or strictures have been issued by SEBI or any other Stock Exchange or any statutory authority, on matters related to Capital 
Market, in the last three (3) years. 
 

iii.  Details of establishment of vigil mechanism / whistle blower policy and affirmation that no personnel has been denied 
access to the audit committee. 

 
The Company has established and adopted a Vigil Mechanism/Whistle-Blower Policy which is uploaded on the website and can 
be access through the link: http://www.easternsilk.com. Further, the company has affirmed that no personnel has been dined 
access to the Interim Resolution Professional/ Resolution Professional. (as specified above that w.e.f 10th June 2022 in 
accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution 
Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional.) 

 
iv. Details of Compliance with mandatory requirements and adoption of the non-mandatory requirements. 
 

(a) Compliance with mandatory requirements. 
 

The Company has duly complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements as stipulated in the Listing Regulations, 
Companies Act, 2013, and other applicable laws in force. 
 
(b) Adoption of non-mandatory/discretionary requirements..  

 
The status of adoption of the non-mandatory requirements as specified in sub–regulation 1 of Regulation 27 of the Listing 
Regulations are as follows: 
 
(i) Reporting of Internal Auditor: The Internal Auditors of the Company have direct access to the Audit Committee. 

 
      As Specified above that the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 7 of the Code w.e.f. 10th June 2022. Thereafter, 

in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution 
Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Securities and Exchange Board of India Notification dated 31 May, 2018 
on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, The provisions as specified 
in regulations 17, 18,19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 
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v.  Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed. 
 
      Pursuant to Regulation 16(1)(c) and 24 of the Listing Regulations, the Company had no material subsidiary as on March 31, 2023.  
      The Company has formulated a policy for determining “material subsidiary”. The policy is disclosed on the website of the Company 

via the link: http://www.easternsilk.com 
 
vi.  Web link where policy on dealing with related party transactions is disclosed. 
 
     The Company has a Policy on Related Party Transactions and Materiality of Related Party Transactions, as amended from time 
     to time in-line with various amendments in Regulation 23 of the Listing Regulations. The same is disclosed on the website of the 
     Company via the link: http://www.easternsilk.com. 
 
vii. Disclosure of commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities. 
      
      The Company has no material commodity price risks and accordingly has not entered into Commodity hedging. 
 
viii. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under   
       Regulation 32 (7A). 
 

The Company has not raised funds through preferential allotment or qualified institutional placement as specified under Regulation 
32(7A). 

 
   ix. Certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the Board of the company have been 

debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Board/Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. 

 
The Company has obtained a certificate from Garima Gupta, Company Secretary in Practice that none of the Directors on the 
Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as a Director of the Company by 
the Board/ Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority. The same is annexed to this report. 

 
 x.  Acceptance of recommendations of the Committees of the Board. 
 
      There were no such instances during the financial year 2022-23, wherein the Board had not accepted recommendations made 

by any Committees of the Board. 
 
xi. Fees paid to the Statutory Auditor for the FY 2022-2023. 
 

The tenure of M/s Suresh Kumar Mittal & Co, Chartered Accountants, as Statutory Auditors of the Company, expired at the 
conclusion of 76th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Company held on 15th September, 2022. The Limited Review Report 
on the Financial results of the Quarter ended June 30, 2022 was issued by M/s B.K. Shroff & Co, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 
302166E). M/s B.K. Shroff & Co, Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 76th 
AGM held on 15th July 2022. They have issued the limited review reports of the subsequent three quarters of FY 2022-23 and the 
Audited/Review Report on the Financial Statement/Results for the quarter and year ended 31st March, 2023. 

 
Particulars  Amount (Rs.in Lakh) 
Services as statutory auditors (including quarterly 
audits) 

5.20 

Services for other matters 0.80 
Total 6.00 

       
      There is no subsidiary company/ network firm/ network entity. 
 
xii.  Disclosures Under Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And Redressal) Act, 2013 
 
      The Company has zero tolerance towards discrimination and harassments including sexual harassment and always strives to 

create and provide a healthy environment in the workplace(s). It has in place a Policy for prevention of Sexual Harassment at the 
Workplace in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & 
Redressal) Act, 2013. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. No complaint 
on sexual harassment was received during the Financial Year 2022-2023. The details are as under: 

 
       The details of the sexual harassment cases received, disposed of and pending are given below:- 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment Cases 
pending in the beginning of 
the Financial Year 
i.e.01.04.2022 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases 
received during the 
Financial year 2022-23 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases 
disposed off during the 
Financial year 2022-23 

Number of Sexual 
Harassment cases pending 
at the end of Financial year 
2022-23 

NIL NIL NIL NIL 
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xiii.  Disclosure by listed entity and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to firms/companies in     
        which directors are interested by name and amount’: 
    

Sl.No Name of Party Amount of Loan Rate of Interest Purpose 
Not Applicable 

 
xiv. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity; including the date and place of incorporation and the name and date       
       of appointment of the statutory auditors of such subsidiaries. 
  
        Not Applicable. 
 
XII. Non- Compliance of any requirements of Corporate Governance Report of Sub-paras (I) to (X) above with reasons  
      thereof shall be disclosed. 
 
      There is no such non-compliance during the year 2022-23 of any requirements of Corporate Governance Report of Sub-paras   
      (I) to (X) mentioned as above. 
 
XIII. The disclosure of the Compliance with the requirements stipulated under Regulation 17 to 27 read with Schedule V  
        and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.   
 
        The Company is in compliance with the above requirements, as applicable, with regard to corporate governance. 
 
         As Specified above that the Company has been admitted to CIRP under Section 7 of the Code w.e.f. 10th June 2022. Thereafter,  
         in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended and be exercised by the Interim Resolution  
         Professional until replaced by Resolution Professional. Securities and Exchange Board of India Notification dated 31 May, 2018  
         on SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, The provisions as specified     
         in regulations 17, 18,19, 20 and 21 shall not be applicable during the insolvency resolution process under the Insolvency and   
         Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (IBC). 
 
XIV.  Insider Trading 
 
        The Company has in place various Codes/Policies pursuant to the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as   
        amended. The same are disclosed on the website of the Company via the link http://www.easternsilk.com 
 
 XV.  MD and CFO Certification 
 

The MD, Chief Financial Officer (CFO) have issued certificate and taken on record by the Resolution Professional pursuant to 
the provisions of Regulation17(8) of the Listing Regulations certifying that the "Financial Statements" do not contain any 
materially untrue statement and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Company's affairs. The said certificate is 
annexed and forms part of the Annual Report “Annexure VI.” 

    
XVI.  Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of conditions   
         of corporate governance shall be annexed with the Directors Report. 
 

   As required by Part E of Schedule V of the Listing Regulations, a certificate from Garima Gupta, Practicing Company   
Secretaries, confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, is attached to this report forming part of the  

         Annual Report “Annexure VII.” 
 
XVII. Disclosures with respect to demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account. 
 
         The Company do not have any unclaimed suspense account. 
 
XVIII. CODE OF PROFESSIONAL CONDUCT 
      

The Company has always encouraged and supported ethical business practices in personal and corporate behavior by its 
directors and employees. The Company has framed a Code of Conduct for the members of the Board of Directors and Senior 
Management Personnel of the Company. All members of the Board of Directors and Senior Management personnel affirm on 
annual basis the compliance of the code of conduct. In addition to that a Code of Conduct for dealing in equity shares and 
other listed securities of the Company is also in place. The Code of Conduct is available on the website of the Company 
http://www.easternsilk.com
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                                                                                                                                                                      Annexure IV 

CERTIFICATE OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CONDUCT 
Schedule V (D) of Regulation 34(3) of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 

 
 

As required under Regulation 34(3) read with Part D of Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations 2015, I hereby declare that all the Board Members and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have complied 
with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2023. 

  
   For Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Under CIRP)   

 
 
 
    Sd/- 
   Sundeep Shah 
   Managing Director 
   (Power Under Suspension) 
   
  Place: Kolkata 
  Date: 30th May 2023 
 
   For Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Under CIRP) 
   (Taken on Record)  
 
 
 
   Sd/- 
   Anil Kohli 
   Resolution Professional in the matter of Eastern Silk Industries Ltd 
   Reg. No.: IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00112/2017-2018/10219 
 
  Place: New Delhi 
  Date: 30th May 2023 
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Annexure V 

Annexure III” 
Form No. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2023 

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 24A of SEBI (Listing 

Obligations Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended] 
 
To, 
The Members 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Company Under CIRP) 
19 R.N Mukherjee Road 
Kolkata – 700 001 
 
I have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence 
to good corporate practices by Eastern Silk Industries Limited, (CIN: L17226WB1946PLC013554) 
(hereinafter called ‘the Company”) for the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, (‘the year’/’audit 
period’/’period under review’).  
 
Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating the 
company’s corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 
 
Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 
records maintained by the Company  and provided either as hard copies or scanned copies by email or through 
permitted access to the Company’s in-house portal and also the information provided by the Company, its 
officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit,  I hereby report that in 
my opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 
(‘Audit Period’) complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper 
Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting 
made hereunder: 
 
I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by 
the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of: 
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder. 
(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of 
India Act, 1992 

(‘SEBI Act’): — 
 
a. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)     
       Regulations, 2011; 
b. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015, as 

amended; 
c. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993    regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;  
d. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015, as amended; 
e. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018;  
f. The Securities Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 

2018 and amendments from time to time; (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
g. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); 
h. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 

(Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period) 
i. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period);  
j. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not 

applicable to the Company during the Audit Period); and 
k. The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Non-Convertible and Redeemable 

Preference Shares) Regulations, 2013 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period). 
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(vi) The management of the Company has informed that there is no industry specific law which is 
applicable to the Company. However, laws as identified by the management and applicable to the Company 
are mentioned in “Annexure-B” 

 
I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:  

(i)  Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings 
(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.  

(ii)  The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015. 

 
During the period under review, the Company has generally complied with the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, and their Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards, to the extent applicable, as mentioned 
above subject to the following observations: 
 
1. The Company is under Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency and 
Bankruptcy Code. On a petition filed by Exim Bank of India against the Company, which was admitted vide an 
Order dated September 10th June 2022 of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Kolkata, 
under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (“the Code”). 
 
The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order dated 10th June 2022 allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. Anil 
Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IPP00270/2017-2018/10514 was appointed as the Interim 
Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company. Further, the members of the Committee of Creditors 
(“CoC”) in its first meeting held on 08.07.2022 has approved the appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli as 
Resolution Professional in place of erstwhile IRP. The appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli IP Registration No. 
IBBI/IPA-001/IP-P00112/2017-18/10219 was confirmed as Resolution Professional vide order of Hon’ble 
NCLT passed on July 29, 202. 
 
As per Section 17 of the Code, from the date of appointment of the IRP/RP the management of affairs and 
powers of the board of directors of the Company were suspended and stood vested with IRP/RP of the 
Company. 
 
Further state here that as provided under sub-regulation 2A and 2B in Regulation 15 of securities and 
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the 
provisions as specified in Regulation 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, shall not 
applicable during the insolvency resolution process period in respect of a listed entity which is under 
going corporate insolvency resolution process under the insolvency code. 
 
Further all the Roc form filing of the Company has been done through Form GNL – 2 as per the MCA 
circular no. 08/2020 dated 06.02.2020 as informed by the management of the Company. 

 
I further report that  
 
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and Independent Directors. There is no changes in the composition of the Board of 
Directors that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of 
the Act. 
 
Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 
were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information 
and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting till 
10th June 2022 after that the application bearing C.P (IB) No. 588/KB/2020 filed by Export-Import Bank of 
India, the Financial Creditor, under section 7 of the Code for initiating CIRP against Eastern Silk Industries 
Limited (the Corporate Debtor), is admitted by Hon'ble NCLT vide order dated 10.06.2022. Upon initiation of 
CIRP against corporate debtor, its management shall be vest with the interim resolution professional/resolution 
professional, in terms of section 17 of the IBC, 2016. Accordingly, the powers of the board of directors of the 
Corporate Debtor are under suspension from the CIRP initiation order dated 10.06.2022 passed by Hon'ble 
NCLT. 
 
All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as recorded in the 
minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committee of the Board, as the case may be. None of 
the Directors in any meeting dissented on any resolution and hence there was no instance of recording any 
dissenting member’s view in the minutes till 10th June 2022 after that the application bearing C.P (IB) No. 
588/KB/2020 filed by Export-Import Bank of India, the Financial Creditor, under section 7 of the Code for 
initiating CIRP against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (the Corporate Debtor), is admitted by Hon'ble NCLT 
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vide order dated 10.06.2022. Upon initiation of CIRP against corporate debtor, its management shall be vest 
with the interim resolution professional/resolution professional, in terms of section 17 of the IBC, 2016. 
Accordingly, the powers of the board of directors of the Corporate Debtor are under suspension from the CIRP 
initiation order dated 10.06.2022 passed by Hon'ble NCLT. 
  

 
I further report that there has been delay in transferring amounts which are required to be transferred to the 
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company due to closure of Dividend Account for the Year 2009 
& 2010 by the HDFC Bank Ltd. during the F.Y. 2016-17 resulting in non-transfer of the unclaimed amount for 
the year 2009 & 2010 to the Investors Education & Protection Fund. At the instance of Indian Bank (erstwhile 
Allahabad Bank), HDFC Bank Ltd. closed all the bank accounts of the Company during the F.Y. 2016-17 which 
included closure of the Dividend Account for the year 2009 and 2010 also. The Company was pursuing the 
matter with The Reserve Bank of India & HDFC Bank Ltd to reinstate the Dividend Accounts in order to facilitate 
the Company to deposit the Unclaimed Dividend amount for the year 2009 and 2010 with Investor Education 
and Protection Fund to comply with the required provision of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company has 
received the Manager’s Cheque for the balances held in the said account for the year 2009 and 2010 are still 
shown under Bank Balances (Others) reported under Note No.8. The Company has been pursuing the matter 
with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for depositing the said Manager’s Cheque to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund. 
 
I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size 
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 
guidelines. 
 
*This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as “Annexure – A” and forms 
an integral part of this report. 

 
 
 

      
                                                                                                                                           Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                           Garima Gupta 
                                                                                                                                           Practicing Company Secretary 
Place: Kolkata                                                      Mem. No. A23738 C. P. No. 9308 
Date: 30th May 2023                                                                                                           UDIN:A023738E000423051 
                                                                                                                                            Peer Review No:3519/2023 
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“Annexure A” 
To, 
The Members 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Company Under CIRP) 
19 R.N Mukherjee Road 
Kolkata – 700 001 
 
I further report that: 
 
In my report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 
 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the company. My responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 
 

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about 
the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to ensure 
that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. I believe that the process and practices, I followed provide 
a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and books of Accounts of the 
company. 
 

4. Where ever required, I have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules 
and regulations and happening of events etc. 
 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the 
responsibility of Management. My examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis. 
 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor the efficacy 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the company.  
 

“Annexure B” 
List of applicable laws other than the laws listed above: 
I. Employees’ Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952 
II. Employees’ Sate Insurance Act, 1948 
III. Income Tax Act, 1961 
IV. Goods & Service Tax Act (GST) 
V. Factories Act, 1948 
VI. Industrial Dispute Act, 1947 
VII. Industrial Relation Act 
VIII. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 
IX. The Customs Act,1962 
X. The Central Excise Act,1944 
XI. Shops & Establishment Act, 1963 
XII. Minimum Wages Act, 1948 
XIII. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
XIV. Payment of Bonus Act, 1965 
XV. Payment of Wages Act, 1936 
XVI. Compulsory Notification of Vacancies Act, 1959  

 
 
 

 
          
                                                                                                                                           Sd/- 
                                                                                                                                           Garima Gupta 
                                                                                                                                           Practicing Company Secretary 
Place: Kolkata                                                      Mem. No. A23738 C. P. No. 9308 
Date: 30th May 2023                                                                                                           UDIN:A023738E000423051 
                                                                                                                                            Peer Review No:3519/2023 
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                                                                                                                          Annexure VI 
 
                                                                   CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule II Part B of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations 2015, We the 

undersigned, in our respective capacities as Mr. Sundeep Shah Managing Director ( Powers under suspension 

under CIRP)  and Mr. Prateek Chhawchharia Chief Financial Officer of Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“the 

Company”) to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that: 

a. We have reviewed financial statements and the cash flow statement for the year ended March 31, 2023 

and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that: 

i. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

ii. these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

b. We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the 

Company during the year, which are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct. 

 

c. We are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that we 

have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial 

reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors, deficiencies in the design or operation of 

internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify 

these deficiencies. 

 

d. We have indicated to the Auditors: 

i. significant changes, if any, in internal control over financial reporting during the year; 

ii. significant changes, if any, in accounting policies during the year and that the same have been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and 

iii. instances of significant fraud of which they have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, 

of the management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control 

system over financial reporting. 

For Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Under CIRP) 
  
 
 

Date: 30th May 2023 
Place: Kolkata 

SD/- 
  Sundeep Shah 

   Managing Director (Power under Suspension) 
 
 
 

 
 

SD/- 
Prateek Chhawchharia 
Chief Financial Officer 
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                                                                                                                                                       Annexure VII 
 

CERTIFICATE ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE CONDITIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERANCE UNDER SEBI 
(LISITNG OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 

 
To 
The Members 
Eastern Silk Industries Limited (Under CIRP) 
 
I have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Eastern Silk Industries Limited 
(“the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2023, as stipulated in Regulation 17-27, Clauses (b) to (i) of 
Regulation 46 (2) and paragraphs C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as amended from time to time (“Listing 
Regulations”). 

 
The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. My examination 
was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the 
Compliance with the conditions of the Corporate Governance as stipulated. It is neither an audit nor an 
expression of opinion on the Financial Statements of the Company. 
 
In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the explanations given to me as, I certify that 
the Company has complied with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned 
Listing Regulations, as applicable. 
 
Pursuant to commencement of the CIRP process of the Company, the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal, 
Kolkata bench, vide its order dated 10th June 2022 had ordered the commencement of the corporate insolvency 
resolution process (“CIRP”) in respect of the company under the provisions of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code, 2016. Thereafter, in accordance with Section 17 of the Code, the powers of the Board stood suspended 
and are exercised by interim resolution professional / resolution professional as the case may be for the 
management of the affairs of the Company. Further, in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
Requirements) (Third Amendment) Regulations, 2018, a company undergoing CIRP process is not required to 
comply with relevant Regulations of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015 dealing with the requirements of, amongst others, composition of board of directors including that of 
independent director, constitution, meetings and terms of reference of the audit committee, constitution, 
meetings and terms of reference of the nomination and remuneration committee, constitution, meetings and 
terms of reference of the stakeholders’ relationship committee. 
 
I further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor the efficiency 
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

 

 
                                                                                                                                           SD/- 
                                                                                                                                           Garima Gupta 
                                                                                                                                           Practicing Company Secretary 
Place: Kolkata                                                      Mem. No. A23738 C. P. No. 9308 
Date: 30th May 2023                                                                                                           UDIN:A023738E000422818 
                                                                                                                                            Peer Review No:3519/2023 
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
 

(In terms of Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 
 
1. OVERALL REVIEW, INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 
 
The Company is principally engaged in the business of manufacturing of textile and allied products currently from 
developing yarn to producing premium fashionable fabrics and related products. The factory operations in the year under 
review had been severely impacted due to the initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (CIRP) against the 
Company.  
 
The overall performance of the Company for the year under review has significantly gone down wherein “Revenue from 
Operations” of the Company registered decrease in the sales, compared to the previous year. The performance of the 
Company during the year under review showed decrease in the sales due to the non-supportive markets and varied 
changes in the customer preferences and impacted due to the initiation of Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process 
(CIRP). The infusion of the new machineries and technology would be required to bring down the cost of production. The 
company is developing standard designs in common warps for regular products to reduce cost and it is hoped that these 
measures will bring the positive results for the future. The equilibrium in demand supply will take some time.  
 
2. OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 
 
The Company is engaged in manufacturing of textile and allied products currently from developing yarn to producing 
premium fashionable fabrics. Keeping itself updated on fashion and market trends worldwide, the company is today 
globally recognized for its deep understanding of silk.  
 
The threat is from small players who will enter the market and existing players creating competition in these segments 
due to which the margins will be under pressure in the future. 
  
Company Status: 
 
The Hon’ble Adjudicating Authority, i.e., National Company Law Tribunal, Kolkata Bench, has admitted the Company 
Petition i.e. C.P. No. (IB) No.588/KB/2020 on 10.06.2022, filed by the Financial Creditor, Export-import Bank Of India 
initiating Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) under Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 (hereinafter 
referred to as “Code”) in the matter of M/s. Eastern Silk Industries Ltd. (“Corporate Debtor”). The Adjudicating Authority 
appointed- Mr. Anil Agarwal as Interim Resolution Professional (IRP) vide its said order dated 10.06.2022.  
 
The Committee of Creditors in its first meeting of Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) held on 08.07.2022 approved the 
appointment of undersigned as Resolution Professional (“RP”). Thereupon an application was filed by the CoC, before 
Hon’ble NCLT, for the appointment of undersigned as Resolution Professional in the captioned matter. Subsequently, the 
Hon’ble NCLT allowed the application and appointed the undersigned as Resolution Professional in this matter vide its 
Order dated 29.07.2022 (copy of the same was received on 04.08.2022). 
 
The Resolution Professional pursuant to the approval of Resolution No. 2 i.e. Resolution plan submitted by Ajay Bikram 
Singh through Baumann Dekor Pvt. Ltd. in the last COC Meeting, filed an application seeking exclusion of the period of 
CIRP from 07.12.2022 till 30.01.2023 i.e. 54 days, before Hon’ble NCLT on 07.03.2023. The RP thereafter filed an 
application before the Hon’ble NCLT on 09.03.2023 seeking approval of the Resolution plan submitted by Ajay Bikram 
Singh through Baumann Dekor Pvt. Ltd under Section 31(1). The said application is pending before Hon’ble NCLT. 
 
The Company is under the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process .. Internal control systems are regarded as being 
adequate and are continuously reviewed for further improvement. Our team is committed to the Board’s dictates on 
standards of conduct as well as good governance and exercise of due diligence including compliance with all relevant 
regulations and laws. We record our appreciation of all our sincere employees, gratefulness to our Shareholders, lenders 
and banks and other stakeholders, concerned Government and other authorities and our channel partners for their 
continued support and to customers for their reposing faith and confidence in us. 
 
Company Outlook:  
 
The Company hopes to turn around its performance on approval of the Resolution Plan by Hon’ble NCLT.  
 
3. RISK MANAGEMENT 
 

Risk Management are is presented in the Director’s Report of the Company which forms an integral part of this 
Report. 
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4. SEGMENT WISE AND PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE  
 
The Company’s business activities falls within a single primary segment viz. Textiles. The Company does not have any 
other segment as of now. The products and dealings are closely related with textiles and its allied products.  
 
5. HEALTHY, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT 
 
The Company accords significant importance to health, safety and Environment and related issues are taken up on priority 
basis. The Company ensures compliance of all statutory regulations related to Health, Safety and Environment. The 
Company’s business activities falls within a single primary segment viz. Textiles. The Company believes in environmental 
protection and maintaining ecological balance. All discharges are closely monitored and were well within the statutory 
norms during the year under review.  
 
6. MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS IN HUMAN RESOURCES / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS FRONT, INCLUDING  
               NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 
 
The Company strongly believes in the importance of Human Capital and nurturing the same. To match with the fast-paced 
technological changes and also the changes in their business environment, the employees are provided regular training 
for upgradation of skills. The Company understands the importance of multi-skilling and job rotation and hence 
scientifically moves its employees in various roles thereby creating a versatile work force.  In the year under review, the 
Company had a strength of 289 permanent employees. 
 
7. INTERNALLY CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY . 
 
The Company has established Internal Financial Control System for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the 
business including adherence to Company's Policies, the safeguarding of assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of reliable Financial 
Statements. 

 
8. FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE (Forms part of 
Director’s Report) 
 
8(ii)     FINANCIAL STATEMENT 

 
In accordance with SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations 2018, the 
Company is required to provide details of significant changes (a change of 25% or more as compared to the previous 
financial year) in key financial ratios, along with detailed explanations thereof. The key financial ratios are given below: 
 

Key ϐinancial ratios 2022-23 2021-22 Difference (%) 
Debtors’ turnover 1.96 3.03 (35.17%) 
Inventory turnover 0.78 1.22 (35.95%) 
Interest coverage ratio Not Applicable, since the Company has no Borrowings in pervious year involving 

interest coverage. 
Current ratio (in times) 0.36 0.42 (13.78%) 
Debt equity ratio (in times) 10.15 10.33 (1.70%) 
Operating Proϐit Margin (in %) (35.03) (7.83) (347.38%) 
Net proϐit margin (in %) (37.97) (9.39) (304.56%) 
Return on net worth (in %)** Refer Note 1** 

 
Note 1**Since Net worth is negative and denominator is negative, the Return on net worth shown as Nil  
(-). 
 
The reason of the Operating Profit, Net Profit Margin and Return on net worth is more than 25% or more as compared to 
the previous financial year due to decrease in the sales, non-supportive markets, varied changes in the customer 
preferences and initiation of CIRP by NCLT wide order dated 10th June 2022 which effected the marketability of the 
Company. As the global textile market is interconnected, this outbreak has a global impact on the business. 
 
9. CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 
 
Certain statements in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company's view about the 
industry, objectives, projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ from those implied therein. Important factors that could make a 
difference include economic developments within India and countries with which the Company conducts business, 
government regulations and tax regime, availability of raw materials and prices and other incidental factors. 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to RegulaƟon 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (LisƟng ObligaƟons and 
Disclosure Requirements) RegulaƟons, 2015) 

 
I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Eastern 
Silk Industries Limited having CIN L17226WB1946PLC013554 and having registered office at 19, R.N. Mukherjee Road, 
Kolkata – 700 019 (hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of 
issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.  
 
In my opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification 
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the 
Company and its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the 
Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023 from the period 01/04/2022 to 10/06/2022 has been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 
Sl. No Name of Director DIN Date of appointment in Company 

1 Sundeep Shah 00484311 25-10-2002 
2 G.D. Harnathka 01360829 24-07-2000 
3 Madhu Kant Sharma 01836989 30-03-2019 
4 Pankaj Kumar Deorah 03426417 30-05-2019 
5 Megha Shah 07172597 01-04-2015 
6 Abhishek Haralalka 08836412 29-08-2020 

 
Further the Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process (“CIRP”) was initiated, on a petition filed by Export-import Bank of 
India,  against Eastern Silk Industries Limited (“Company/Corporate Debtor”), which was admitted vide an Order dated 
June 10, 2022 (“Insolvency Commencement Date”) of the Hon’ble National Company Law Tribunal (“NCLT”), Kolkata 
Bench, under the provisions of section 7 of the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 read with the rules and regulations 
framed thereunder (“the Code”). The Hon’ble NCLT vide its order no. CP (IB) No 588/KB/2020 dated June 10, 2022 
allowed initiation of CIRP of the Company and Mr. Anil Agarwal, IP Registration No. IBBI/IPA-001/IPP00270/2017-
2018/10514 was appointed as an Interim Resolution Professional (“IRP”) for the Company.  
 
The members of the Committee of Creditors (“CoC”) in its first meeting held on 08.07.2022 has approved the appointment 
of Mr. Anil Kohli as Resolution Professional in place of erstwhile IRP. The appointment of Mr. Anil Kohli was confirmed as 
Resolution Professional vide order of Hon’ble NCLT passed on July 29, 2022 the National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT) 
vide order dated 10th June 2022 has initiated Corporate Insolvency Resolution Process under Insolvency and Bankruptcy 
Code on 2016 of the Company. Further the above mentioned NCLT’s Order and pursuant to section 17 of IBC, the power 
of Board of Directors of the Company stood suspended and such powers were vested with interim resolution/ Resolution 
Professional.  
 
           
                                                                                                                                           SD/- 
                                                                                                                                           Garima Gupta 
                                                                                                                                           Practicing Company Secretary 
Place: Kolkata                                                      Mem. No. A23738 C. P. No. 9308 
Date: 30th May 2023                                                                                                           UDIN:A023738E000422510 
                                                                                                                                            Peer Review No:3519/2023 
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B; K. SHROFF & CO.
CHARTEREO ACCOU NTANTS

23A, Neta]i Subhas Road
3rd Floor, Room No-15
Kolkata-700 001.
Phone:2230-0751 152
. nn-,, . bkshroffkol@gmait.com

lalrtshrott@ymarl com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To

The Members of
Eastern Silk ln d ustries Limited

Report on the Audit ofthe Financial Statements

Qualified Opinion

We have audited the accompanying lnd AS financial statements ofEastern Silk lndustries Limited
("theCompany"), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31st lvlarch 2023, and the statement of
Profitand Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year then
ended,and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of signlficant accounting
policies andother exp la n atory inform ation.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explana ons given to us,
except for the possible effects of the motter described in the "Moteriol Uncertointy Reloted to
Going Concern, Bosis for QuoliJied Opinionond the Emphdsis of Motter porogrophs,, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
lndia, of the state of affairs of the Company as at I\larch 31,2023 and loss, changes in equity and
its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

MaterialUncertaintyRelatedtoGoingConcern

on 10th June, 2022, the Notionol Compony Low Tribunat (NCLT), Kolkoto Bench, directed to
lnitiote corporate lnsolvency Resolution process (clRp) ogoinst the compony by odmitting the
opplicotion under section 7 of tnsolvency ond Bonkruptcy Act, 2016 filed by Export-import Bonk of
lndio one of the Finonciol Creditors os stoted in Note 37 (a) to the lnd AS financiol stotements.
Further, Resolution Plon submitted by one of the prospective Resolution Applicont wos olso
opproved by the committee of creditors (CoC) members in their meeting held on 03rd Morch
2023 and the opplication for opproval oJ soid Resolution plan wos filed with Hon,ble Notionol
Company Low Tribunal on 09th Morch 2023 ond the some is pending for opprovol as stoted in
Note 37 (e) to the lnd As t'inonciol stotements.

Note No. 52 to the lnd As finoncial stotements also indicote thot the Net worth of the Compony
hos been fully eroded.

The obove conditions indicote the existence of moteriol uncertointythot moycost significant
doubt obout thecompony's abilitytocontinueosogoingConcern. However, the finonciol stotements
of the compony have been prepored on o going concern basis for the reoson stoted in Note No.
i7 (f) to the lnd AS Finonciol stotements, in view of ongoing ctRp, the outcome of which con not
be presently ascertoi ned.
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Basis for Qualified Opinion

We drow ottention to

o) Note No. 35 (o) to the tnd AS finoncior stotements which stotes thot the compony hos notprovided interest to lenders omounting to Rs. 4,g52.3g Lokhs for the period uptoMorch'202j os per the monogement estimotes.

b) Note No. 35(b) to the tnd As finoncior stotements which stotes thot the compony has notprovided interest on borrowings from ARC'S omounting to Rs. 3,7g3.6g lokhs for the period
up to 31't Morch 202 j.

c) Note No' 41 to the lnd AS finonciol stotements which stotes thot totol deferred tox ossets
(DTA) for the period up to 37't Morch, 2023 is Rs.7,58i.97Lokhs out of which Rs.4,572.g8
rokhs hove been recognized in these occounts ond borance Rs.i,010.ggLokhs hos not beenrecognised in these dccounts. As there ore existence of indicotors of moterior uncertointyobout compony's obirity to continue os going concern os stoted obove in ,,Moteriot
unceftointy Reroted to Going Concern" porogroph, in our opinion, the eorrier recognized
DTA of Rs. 4,572.98 tokhs required to derecognized by the Compony.

The totor impoct of quorificotions (o) to (c) resurted in understotement of ross for the yeor ended ondoverstdtements of Net worth by Rs.12,60g.05 Lokhs,understotement of Totor Borrowings byRs'80j6'07 Lokhs, overstotement of Defened Tox Assets by Rs.4572.gg Lokhs os ot 37,t Morch,2023.

we conducted our audit in accordance with the standards on Auditrng (sAs) specified undersection 143(10) of the companres Act, 2013. our responsibirities under those Standards arefurther described in the Auditor's Responsibirities for the Audit of the Frnanciar statementssection of our report. we are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethicsissued by the rnstitute of Chartered Accountants of rndia together with the ethicar requrrementsthat are relevant to our audit of the financiar statements ,nle,. *," provisions of the companiesAct, 2013 and the Rures thereunder, and we have furfi|ed our other ethicar responsibirjties inaccordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. we berieve that the audit evidencewe have obtained 
'ls 

sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our quarified oprnion.
Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to

a) Note No. 37

application un

a)to the lnd AS Financial Statements which states that pursuant to the
er section 7 of lnsolvency and Bankruptcy Act, 20L6 fi ed by Export-lmport

Ban k of tndia one of the Financial Creditors, being CP (tB) No 58S/KB/2020, the NationatCompany Law Tribunal (NCLT), Kolkata Bench, admjtted the application vide order dated
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against the Company. CA Anil Agarwal, (t}Bt/tp A_OO1,1}_1OOZTO/20I7_1,8/10514) has
been initially appointed as the tnterim Resolutjon professional (lRp). Upon
commencement of crRp, the powers of the Board of Directors of the company stand
suspended and management of the company vest in the rRp/Resorution professionar (Rp).
Further as per order no. Cp (lB) No 58S/KB/2020 and lA (j.B.C)/713(KB) 2022 dated
29.07 .2022 Mr. Anil Kohlj has been appointed as Resolution professional.

b) Note No. 37 (e) to the rnd AS Financiar statements which states that in the 11th coc
l\'4eeting held on 03rd March 2023 in which Resorution pran was approved by the CoC
members through E-voting on o6th lrurarch 2023 and the application for Resolution plan
approval was filed with Hon'ble National company Law Tribunal on 9th lVarch 2023 and is
pending for approval. The final impact of the said Resolution plan to be account for by the
Company as and when the plan is approved by Hon,ble NCLT.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professionaljudgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whore, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

There are no key audit matters to communicate other thon the motters those ore described under
the Moteriol lJncertointy Reloted to Going Concern, Bosis for euatified Opinion ond Emphosis of
lvlotter porogrophs.

lnformation other than the Financiar statements and Auditor's Report rhereon

The Compony's Board of Directors (now suspended) under the direction of the Resolution
Professionol (rgP/ is responsibre for the preparation of the other information. The other
information comprises the information incruded in the rvanagement Discussion and Anarysis,
Board's Report including Annexures to Board's Report, Business Responsibility Report, corporate
Governance and Shareholder's lnformation, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

ln connection with our audjt of the financjal statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of our audit or
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lf, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. we have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Financial Statements

The Compony's Boord of Directors (now suspended) under the direction oJ the Resolution
Professionol (RP,)is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the companies Act,
2013 ("the Act") with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true
and fair view of the financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, lncluding
the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statement that give a true and falr view and are free from material misstatement.
whether due to fraud or error.

ln preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the company,s
ability to continue as a gorng concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relatedto going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no rearistic arternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors (now suspended)/Ma n agements are also responsible for overseeing the
Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud oT erTor, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a hlgh level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with sAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professionalskepticism throughout the audit. We also:

' ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of n
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting fro
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erroT, as fraud may invorve colusion, forgery, intentionar omissions, misrepresentations, or theoverride of internai control.

' obtain an understanding of internar contror rerevant to the audit in order to design auditprocedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the companiesAct,2013, we are arso responsibre for expressing our opinion on whether the company hasadequate internar financiar contrors system in prace and the operating effectiveness of suchcontrols.

' Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

' conclude on the appropriateness of management,s use of the going concern basis ofaccounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether . .rturiur uncertainty existsrelated to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company,s abirity tocontinue as a going concern. rf we concrude that a materiar uncertainty exists, we are required todraw attention in our auditor's report to the rerated discrosures in the financiar statements or, ifsuch disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. our concrusions are based on the auditevidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

' Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, includingthe disclosures, and whether the {inancrar statements represent the underrying transactions andevents in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

l\4ateriality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually or inaggregate/ makes it probabre that the economic decisions of a reasonabry knowredgeabre user ofthe financjal statements may be influenced. we consider quantitative materiality and qualitatrve
factors in (i) pranning the scope of our audit work and in evaruating the resurts of our work; and(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financiar statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, theplanned scope and timing of the audit and significant audi't tindings, incruding any significantdeficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

we also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compried withrelevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them allrelationships and other matters that may reasonabry be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine thosematters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the currentperiod and are therefore the key audit matters. we describe these matters in our auditor,s reportunless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rarecircumstances, we determine that a matter shourd not be communicated in our report becausethe adverse consequences of doing so wourd reasonabry be expected to outweigh the pubricinterest benefits of such communication. t$RO
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Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the companies (Auditor's Report) ordel 2020 (,the orcrer,,), issued by the centrarGovernment of rndia in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 0f the Companies Act, 2013, wegive in the "Annexure A" statement on the matters specified rn paragraphs 3 and 4 0f the order,to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best ofourknowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.
b) rn our opinion, except for the effect of the motters described under the Materiot

uncertointy Reroted to Going Concern, Bosis ror Quorified opinion ond Emphosis of Motterporogrophs,proper books of account as required by law have been kept by theCompanyso far as it appears from our examjnation of those books
c) The Balance sheet, the statement of profit and Loss, statement of Changes in Equity andthe cash Frow statement deart withbythrs Report are in agreement with the books ofaccou nt.

d) rn our opinion,except for the effect of the matters described under the MoteriorUncertointy Reloted to Going Concern, Bosis for euolified Opinion ond Emphosis oy Utotterporogrophs, the aforesaid financial statements compry with the rndianAccountingstandards specified under section 133 of the Act, read with rerevant ruresthereu nder.

e) The motters described under the Materior rJncertointy Reroted to Going Concern, Basis forQuolified opinion ond Emphosis of rttotter porogrophs, moy hove on adverse effect on the
functioning of the compony.

f) No written representation received from the directors as on 31st March, 2023and takenon record by the Board of Directors (now suspended )/rva nagem ents stating that none ofthe directors is disquarified as on 31st r,Aarch, 2023 from being appointed as a director interms of Section 164 (2) of the Act, as Corporate tnroluen.y 
"n"rolri 

;;;;;;;i;;; ;ongoing agarnst the company and power ofthe Board are suspended under clRp.

g) The quolificotion reloting to mointenonce of occounts & other motters connectedtherewith ore os stoted in the bosis for quotified opinion porogroph obove.

h) With respect to the a

the Company and th
Report ln "An nexu re
and operating effecti
re port ing.
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8". Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy
veness of the Company,s internal financjal controls over financial
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i) with respect to the other matters to be incruded in the Auditor,s Report in accordance
with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended:

ln our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the expranations givento us,the remuneration paid by the Companyto its directors during the year is in
accordance with the provisions of section 1g7 of the Act.

with respect to the other matters to be included rn the Auditor,s Report in accordance
with Rure 11 0f the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rures, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

The Company has discrosed the impact of pending ritigations on its financiar position
in its lnd AS Financial Statements _ Refer Note No. 29to 33, 37, 39(b),50& 51to the
fin ancia I statements.

The company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any materialforeseeable losses.

There has been delay in transferring amounts which are required to be transferred tothe lnvestor Education and protection Fund by the Company due to closure of
Dividend Account for the year 2009 & 2010 by the HDFC Bank Ltd. durjng the F.y.
2016-17 resurting in non-transfer of the uncraimed amount for the year zooi a zoroto the rnvestors Education & protection Fund - Refer Note No.42 to the rnd As
financialstatements.

i)

iv a)The management has represented that, to the best of it,s knowredge and berief,
other than as disclosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies),
including foreign entities (.,lntermediaries,,), with the understandlng, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the lntermediary shall, whether, directly orindirectry rend or invest in other persons or entitie; identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (,,Ultimate Beneficiaries,,) or provide anyguarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented, that, to the best of it,s knowredge and berief,
other than as discrosed in the notes to the accounts, no funds have been received bythe company from any person(s) or entity(ies), jncluding foreign entities (.,Funding
Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in wiiting or otherwise, that thecompany sha[, whether, directry or indirectry, rend or invest in other persons orentities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding party
("ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the rike on beharf ofthe Ultjmate Ben eficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has consjdered reaso nable and
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to believe that the representations under sub_clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material mis-statement.

ln our opinion and based on the information and explanation provided to us, no
dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companjes (Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books
of account using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trair (edit
log) facility is appricabre to the Company with effect from Aprir 1-, 2023, and
accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014 is not a pplica ble for the fina ncia l year ended March 3L,2023.

ForB. K.SHROFF &CO.

Chartered Accou ntants
Firm Registration No.: 3021G6E

I d -r'r.. .'y' I

PIace: Kolkata
Date: 3othlt4ay, 2023
UDIN : 23050742BGPTHR251 6

(1. K. Shroff)
Pa rtn er

lvlembership No.:060742
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Annexure "A" referred to in paragraph l under'Report on other Legal and Reguratory Requirements,
section of lndependent Auditor's Report of even date on the lnd As Financial statements

(i) (a) (e) eTh oc m na ah s am n a n de op e er oc ds hs n fu ap p rti uc a s n c du n au tnp atit VEq
ed ta s na sd t au t no fo o rte nta na edp u em n sp p q p

(i) (a) (g) The company does not have any intangibl
not applicable to the company.

e assets and hence provisions of clause (i) (a) (B) are

(i) (b) (h) verifica rtY'
nied duuipm P. ver,

(i)
regording tn rifi of roperty,

uipm fino

A s5 tedto n o,v Nte 3o. 7 tto eh n ncio o estot menfi It, tion Proysicaph ntPlool 'Pe
E, e& nt osh nbee coq out n het courSe c, Rng H weoof on suchreport

ioncot sha bnot nee toveriJi ous dn enh ceprovided we unddre ebt, to comme onnt USclo e (b')ht e orderof o dnd tIreq theuency h I ve'iscrep ncy cotion Pp ysica
'loP tn na d en t th ookb 5 ndccou otEg dn ts tmol no het c,n a stI eotpdcts ments.

(i) (c) The title deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements are held in the
name ofthe company

(i)(d) During the year, the company has not revalued
right to use assets) or intangible assets or both
applicable to the company.

its property, plant and equipments (including
and hence provisions of clause (i) (d) are not

(i) (e) According to the information and explanation
company no proceedings have been initiated
any benami property under the Benami Trans
rules made there under.

given to us and the records maintained by the
or are pending against the company for holding
actions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 1988) and

(ii) (a) As stated in Note No. 37 (h) to the fiinonciot
been carried out during the course oI ClRp,
provided to us ond hence we ore unable to
lrequency ond discrepancy in the physical
ond its impacts on the Iinanciol statements.

statement, physicol verification of lnventories has
However, report on such verilicotion has not been
comment on clouse (ii) (a) of the order regarding
verilicdtion ol lnventories with books of account

(ii) (b)

fi

ti fo
fo

fi

uo fn o n no na d ca oc rdp n ot ht e n fo am t no na d ex a an no VEnp ot sU na d e rdco s
am nta en d ht come a n d fuby n t eh np a cn a th ce mo n hayea s on bt ee npa s na ct no de
ork n ac ta m t n xe ecp ss fo sR c o5 00 anse fe te mo b na kga s o nfi a anct

ns tU no os tn h sba s sof uec fo uc rer tn as sset T eh e e n ou o n o an dn ca rdco top ng
ht e n ma t on na d xe na ta on ntve tp o su na d e oc ds am n ta ned the oc m n onby pa

eu ts on ot uf nq sh au rte rl e ut nrq os st ta me ne ts b ht e mco a t bh na kp s ro nnany c a
nst utit o sn ra se ds Iu n t eh a ar dn h e cen roye s no ofs c ua esp b of ht oe erd a re on t

a c ba e ot ht ce mopp a np

(iii) oAcc d ot he fon arm ting o an dn xe na at no ro ed dp t uo s dp u r n ht e ae ht ce mo a h sap ny
otn ma ed nVE s mt ne ts n fo ro ed d a au rap nt ee ro sny E e uc n o ra ent d na oaty sn fo
da a n c se n ht e an ut e of noa s es uc ed o nu usec ed to oc m n se fi rms m t depa ba ty

nrt rse h orpa ot eh r rta ste na dps h ne cep ro s o sn fo c uap se tof he rd re rea otn a c ba epp
Lo ht ce mo a np
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(iv) ln our opinion and according to th
investments, guarantees and security
2013 has been given by the company.

explanations given to us no loans,
on 185 and 186 of the Companies Act,

e information and
covered under secti

(v) According to the information and expl
deposit or amounts which are deemed
of clause (v) of the order are not applic

anation given to us, the
to be deposits from the
able to the compa ny.

company has not accepted any
public. Therefore, the provisions

(vi)

fa

e ah e rob da re e ed t bhe oo ofks ccoa ntu am n ta en d ht coe m a u suby a tont htp ny ep
o ed r m da e ht e Ce nt ra Gby ove mrn nte ffo het am n e an cn e fo oc st e rdco s u n ed sect on
1 t fo ht48 Coe m na es 20 31 na dp Act, WC rea fo ht oe n no ht at mn a cp e ht e esp c bn dep
cca uo tsn na d eco sd ah VC ebe n am ed na d ma n ta en d H VEowe h vea not am ed a
eta edd exa m an tio ofn us hc ca Uco nts na red oc ds

(vii) (a) hT e oc m a s e n e fa rep ny u a n de os t ith ht ep a rong a et uta hp p o it es nUp d s u dep
ast ut ot d eu s nc udty ood s na dng se ces xta ro d nte uf dnp me es tas te sn u nap oye ec

n mco tae x sa se ta se xtax, ud cof ust mo ud of cex se a uty ae dd de t ec ss na adax, ny
o h re sta utt o ud se a ca b e Accto t ord n otpp ht e rnfo am t no na ed na ta o sn tve tn uoxp sg
no ndu s u et ad om nu s ap b le rn es ect hepa ofep oe tsu nta d n sa ta L3 s aM hrc 02 fo23 f
a e ofd om tre ah sn xp m hnt fso o tm eh ad et ht b ce ma e a baey ep

own to note no. j7(g), since Corporote lnsolvency R
t the compony, the suits or continuotion of suits ogoinst

Nam the e e Amount
(Rs. in lakhs)

Period to
which the
amount
relates

Forum where dispute is
oendino

Central Excise Act Excise Duty and Penatty 26.72 2002-03 Deputy Commissioner,
Central ExciseEmployees State

lnsurance Act
Employees State
Insurance

6.03 1995-96 &
2002-o3

t. Director, ESic

ustom Outy Act Custom Duty 109.77 2001-02 Hon'ble
Karnatka

High Court

ustoms Duty Aci Custom Duty 154.50 2005-06 CommissionEi oi ciEi6
(Port), Kotkataustoms Duty Act Custom Duty 28.70 2003-o4 Commi ssioner of Custom

customs Duty Act custom Duty 44.O7 2002-03 Commi ssioner of Custom

customsDuETEI- Custom D 205.00 2010-11 cE T T KoLKATACustoms DuO AEf- Custom Du '15.87 20't4-15 cESTAT N EW DELH ICustoms Duty Act ustom Duty 69.'19 2014-15 CESTAT ,NEW DELHIservrce tax Service TaI 73.68 2015-16 CESTAT KOLKATA
Attention is dr
initioted ogoins

esolution Process (CtRp)
compony o re prohibited.

cA rdco n to t eh cre o sd tof h e mco n ud es refepa e tod n Us cb a su e a h ch ah VE on
b ee dn e eosit od n a occ nup o af n d s eut a ae us dn Iep

ticA rdco n t ht e n ffo am oti n na d xe na a no s OVp d de op su the e e re on rt na as octi snh h,c WC ne ot coe d de n ht be koo s of ca co nu at nd ah ve be ne us nrre de e od f d sc o es ad sn oc m ud nne t eh a I n ht tae axye 5s se ms ne st nu ed eh n oc me aT x Act 91 1,6
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ln our opin
defaulted i

thereon to

ion and according to the informatio
n repayment of following loans or
any lender :

n and explanatio
other borrowing

ns given to us, the company has
s or in the payment of interest

# lncludes lnterest provided as well as lnterest not provided in the Books of Accounts.*Represents lnterest not provi ded in the Books.

Nature of the
Borrowings Name of the Lender

Amount
not paid
on due
date

(Rs. ln
Lakhs)

Whether
principal

or
lnterest*

Due Since
Remarks

, if any.

oTs
Edelweiss Asset
Reconstruction Company
Ltd.

479.O0 Principal
or.07.20!8
onwards206.67 lnterest*

oTs
Edelweiss Asset
Reconstruction Company
Ltd.

2,7 45.OO Principal
31.05.2018

onwards1,010.54 lnterest*

oTs
Omkara
Reconstruction
Limited

Assets

Private
3,130.00 Principal

31.05.2020
onwards975.34 lnterest*

oTs Kalptaru Fincap Ltd.
60.00 Principal 30.o4.2022

onwards74.28 lnterest*

oTs ASREC (lndia) Limtted
785.00 Principal 31.01.2018

onwards7,279.25 lnterest*

Term
Loan/FITL

Export lmport Bank of
lndia

3,478.4L Principal 20.o8.20L4
onwards5,].37.28 lnterest *

(ix) (b) According informat Export
lndiaol inlormed Co regdrdingoI terc/directo ,n listL(sBfs/ct

defou (R 38)

to ,ht e records ht e comol n o dnpd v on or ndt.on venexplo to u.lt s,m ort Bdnkp de emoi, ddted st7 2022February ht e m npa vthe nc, u.5 on mno e t.hol e n ond tscompo ov prom rs R R olwilfulIters. Note noeler

(ix) (c ) oAcc d to ht ree oc d ofsnB ht e com a na d nfo armp ny no na ed x a atn on ne tp o su on et mroa ns ah e eb ne erec dtve the oc mby na d ru n t ehp a ar dn eh nye ce sovt o sn cof a up se x cof ht oe ercl a e no a bca e ot ht epp com nap

(ix) (d) coAc rd n o ht e er oc srd tof eh mco n a dn n rmfopa tia no a n ed x a an no ep tn o us f nu sda s de no h5 rto te m ab s hs aVC otn eb ne u z foed r no te m u eos sp rp

(ix) (e) cAc o d n ot ht e orec srd fo ht e c mo a n na d n of mp ta on a dn xe na at onp n o su hetgr
mco a n has onp t ka ne na fu dn s f om a ne orny ors onty n a ope u tn fo o ot eme tt ehbo ti no ofs sit8a us sb d a en s a sso acl et os r VCnt ntu re

(ix) (f) Acc rdo n tto he cre ords fo he mco a a dnp n rmfo any t on a nd xe na ta onp n ot us ht eErvecom n ah ns rot a spa ed ao dn5 u n t eh ea no ht e ed ofe cse rup t e hs e d n sts bu s d 1a seo nt ne u sre r a5SO act oc m na esp
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(x) (a) ln our opinion, moneys raised
debt instruments) have been ap

ti ffeb wa fo n a u b c o r o fp u hrt fe ub c ffeop nc du n
e fod the up so s fo h chp p the e e obta en d

(x) (b)

rti

Accord n ot ht e eco sdc tof eh mco a a dn n of mp ny ta o an dn Xe na a on enp o sU d u nht e a ht ce moye n h sa otn am edpa na re fe ntre a a otp m nte fo r a et ap ce em ntp of hs a re so fu a a o or tp o anly c no e rtp b de e be tn u es

(xi) (a) According to the informatior-
company by its officers or empl

nd explanations given t
oyees has been noticed

o us, no fraud by the
or reported during th

company or on the
e year.

(xi) (b) oN re ort u n ed rp us sb ect no 17 f s cte on 437 tof eh Com na es Act np fo m DTA -4 saresc eb d U dn ep uR e t 3 tof he mCo a n se A dup t A& du it n uR e 2s L0 h4 sa eb ne lefi d hitht e Ce tn a G Iove mn ne dt U ht e ra u&ng to ht-ye de ta ep of ua d it

(xi) (c) According to the records
whistle blower complaints

tof he oc m na na dp nfo mr tia no na d xe na a on VE np o us on
ha e be ne e ec VE d ht ce mo a n dby u nnp eh a rye

(xii)
nforAcco rd n ot ht e e occ ds fo ht e com a a dnp mny ta on na d xe na at onp VC n o su ht eoc m n s npa ot Na dh mCo a h ne cep OV sny o sn fop c ua se to ht e o d re a ne to a b epptto eh com nap

(xiii) n uo ot n no a t a np s cta ons t-h ht e re a et d a rtie as rep con m na ecp it seh c o 1n 77 na d8t fo8 omc a n se Act 2p 01 h ree a ca b e napp d ht e etd a s ah VC eb n d sc o dse n ht efina cn a st e em tn s aetc s re u dre b ht eq a ca b e capp uco tn n s at nda sd

(xiv) (a) fooAcc d to t eh nng mat no na ed x a atn o snp nVC ot su nc uo r o n no ht ep com n ah as npan rnte a ua itd s me co mm eyst n us ate ht ht se z ae nnd ta u ofe sit ub s en ss

(xiv) (b) We have considered the re
by the company.

ports of internal auditors fo r the period und er audit provided to us

(xv) According to the record
company has not entere
with him.

s of the company and
d into any non-cash tra

n of mat on na d ex a n onp nrve ot su ht e
sn acti no s hit d ectors ro e so cons np n eect d

(xvi) (a)

Bank of lndia Act, 1934. Hence
applicable.

not required to be registered und
, reporting under clause 3(xvi)(a),

n our opinion, the Company is er sectio
(b) and

n 45-lA of the Reserve
(c) of the Order is not

(xvi) (b) n uo of n no ht e re s np o oc re n est em nt mco n hit npa ht e G ou as d fie enp d tn eh oc en stVE m tn mCo a n se Re esp Brve na k D ect ons 2 1,0 6 na ad ccord n re rtinly nu dpo e clr a u es3 d of t eh U ed r s n aot ac b epp

(xvii) The company has incu
under audit and has al
financial year.

untinS to Rs. 1,147.38 Lakh
of Rs. 284.50 Lakhs in the i

rred cash losses amo
so incurred cash loss

s in the financial year
mmediately preceding
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(xviii) During the year there has been no resignation of t
hence provisions of clause (xviii) ofthe order are not

he statutory auditors of the company and
applicable to the company.

"Moteriol lJncertdinity Reldted to Going concern" parograph in our lndependent Auditors'
Report, financiol rotios, overdues ftnancial ossets, moterial uncertainty exists on the dote ol
oudit report thot the compony is copoble ol meeting its tiabilities existing ot the date i!
bdlance sheet.

ng CIRP & on the basis of effects ol the motter described ir*treAs the Company is undergoi

(xx) explanations given to us, during the year, provisions of
Section 135 of the companies Act, 2013 not appricable to the company. Hence, reporting under
clause 3(xx) the Order is not applicable for the year.

According to the information and

(xxi) sidiary, associate or joint venture and there is no
requirement to prepare consoridated financiar statements. Accordingry, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xxi) ofthe Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company does not have any sub

For B. K. SHROFF & CO.

Chartered Accou ntants
Firm Registration No.: 302166 E
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(1. K. Shroff)

Pa rtne r
Membership No.: 060742

Place: Kolkata

Date: 3othMay, 2023

UDIN : 230607428GPTHR251 6
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Annexure B referred to in paragraph (II) (f) under the heading of .,Report on other Legar andRegulatory Requirements" of our report of even date to the members of Eastern SiIkIndustries Limited on the standarone Ind AS Financiar statements ro. ttu yur. ended 31stMarch 2023.

Report on the lnternal Financial controls under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of theCompanies Act,2013 (,,the Act,,)
we have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Eastern silk lndustries Limited (,,the

fi:T:ilm::lYfjilrll 2023 in coniunction witr oui 
",oii 

or tn"lin"n"iar statemenis or'th-e- company ror

Management,s Responsibility for lnternal Financial Controls
The company's management is responsible for establishing anJ maintaining internalfinancial controls based on"the internal control over financial reporting criteria estJtetrld by the 6orp"nv 

"on.lo"ri-n-g 
the essentialcomponents of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of lnternal Financial controls overFinancial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") issued by the lnslltute of chartered e"corntrni" oilndia (lcAt),,.These responsibilities include the design, irpter"nt"trn 

"nJ 
maintenance of adequate internat financialcontrols that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct ot' rts- Lusin-ess, inctuoingadherence to company's policies, the safeguardini or t" a""lt", the prevention and detection of frauds anderrors' the accuracy and completeness of thl accotinting recoras, and the timely preparation of reliable financialinformation, as required under the Act.

Auditors' Responsibitity
our responsibility is to express ar opinion on the company's internal financial controls over financial reportingbased on our audit we conducted our audit in 

"""oio"ri"" 
*iih the Guidance Note and the standards onAuditing' issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed uno", 

"""tion 
1a3(10) of the Act, to tre extJnt appticauteto an audit of internal financial controls, oottr applicaoie io an auoit of lnternal Financial controls and, bothissued by the lcAl rhose standards ana tne euioance rloi" r."qrir" that we comply with ethical requirementsand plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 

"..rr"nl" about whether adequate internal financial
;T::i :J$.,I3tcial 

reportins was established ano maintaineJ and ir such controri operaieo eitectivery in arr

oxr audit jnvolves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financialcontrols system over financial reporting and their operating 
"ttu"tir"n"... 

our audit of internal financial controlsover financial reportins included obtaining an unde;ta;;in'g;iliternar rinancial controts ;;;;n;;ial reporting,assessing the risk that a materiar weakness exists, anj i".iing ,no 
"r"ruating 

the design and operatingeffecljveness of internal control based on the assessed rist.-ine proceoures selected depend on the auditor,s

i,1,Ti,llijj; li ll|.lli 
the assessment of the risks or materiar ,i.-"t"t"m"nt or tne financiai siaiements, wr,etner

we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my /ouraudit opinjon on the company's internar financiar 
"ontros.f.i".'Jrer financiar reporting.

Meaning of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial ReportingA company's internal financial control over financlal reporting is a process designed to provlde reasonableassurance regarding the reliability of Jinancial reporting and thE pieparation of financial statements for externalpurposes in accordance with generally 
""."pt"d 

a"co-rnting prii",ples. A company,s internal financial controlover financial reporting includes those policies and pro""OrrJ.'tf,"i'

a) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect thetransactions and dispositions of the assets of ih" Corp"nV;
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b) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principtes,'ano irri receipts andexpenditures of the company are being made only in accordance wiih authorisations of management
and directors of the Company; and

c) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use,
or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

lnherent Limitations of lnternal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial re-porting, including the possibility
of collusion or.improper management override of controls, material misstatements d-ue to erro-r or fraud mayoccur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control ou"i tr"n"i"i ,"porting maybecome inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance *itn tt" poli"i"a o..procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
ln our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial conlrols system overfinancial reportinq and such internal financial controls over financial reporting *"r" op"r"ting eff"ltively as at31"rMarch,2023, based on "the internal 

.control over financial reforfing criteria established by the companyconsidering the essential components of internal control stated in the Gu-idance r.rote issuLJoy tie'i6nr,.

RO

For B. K. SHROFF & CO.

Chartered Accou ntants
Firm Registration No.: 302166 E

,('/. (/.. -/1
(1. K. Shroff)

Pa rtner
Membership No.: 060742

t o
o

Place: Kolkata

Date: 3O'hMay, 2023
UDIN : 23060742BGPTHR25t 6
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EASTERN SILK IN USTRIES LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 3'ST MARCH. 2023

Note No. 31st March. 2023

ASSETS

l. Nonturrent assets

({ in lakhs)

3rst March. 2022

3,805.88
235.63

4,087,2E
239.12

4.36
1,572.98

105,25

5.04
4,572.98

,t05.57

(i)Properly, Plant A Equipmenl
(ii) Righl of Use Assels
(iii) Financial Assets

(iv) Deleffed Tax Asset
(v) Olher Non-Curent Assels

ll. Current assets
(i)lnvento.ies

(a) Trade receivables
(b) Cash and cash equivalenls
(c) Bank Balances olherlhan (b) above

(iri) Curenl Tax Asseis(net)
(iv) OiherCurenl Assels

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

l. Equity
(i) Equily Sharc Capital
(ii) Olher Equily

ll.Liabilities
Non-Cu.rent Liabilities
(i) Financial Liabilities

Borrowings
(ii) Provisions

Current Liabilities
(i) Financial Liabililies

(a) Borrowinss
(b) T€d€ payables

Tot6l outstanding dues ot MStltE
Toral outslanding dues ofolherthan tllstvE

ic) Others
(ii) Olher current liabililies
(iil) Provisions

5

2
3

4

6
7
8
9
l0

2,89S.69

1,519.35
320-41

1,080.06
35.69

632.03

3,577.96

2,356.77
371.34
491,52
41.87

609.2?t

15.213.33

13,,176,41

16,458.69

11

12
1,579.05

15,900.46)

1,579.05
(4,155.95)

t3
14

1,400.00
24.4

1,,100.00
16.07

15 13,566.41

16
'16

17
t8
19

B

27.41
147.28

4.76
4,525.68

224.72

445,18
4.76

3,734.99
178.19

-______l-94!:!3
't6,458.69

Significant Accounting Policy
The Notes a@ an integral part of finan c iat stateme nts

As perout report attached
For B. K. SHROFF & CO
Firm Registration No : 302166E
Chartered Accountants

II /_ </-_.*

For and on behalf of the Board
(Company under CIRP)

) at--
(L. K. Shrofo

(Mem.No.060742)

Sundeep Shah
otN 00484311

Chai.man & [ranaging Director

iPower unde r suspension)

Megha S
DtN 07172597

Wholelime Dhector
(Power undcr suspension)
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Prateek haria
ny Secretary Chiel FinancialOflicer

AnilKohli

Resolulion Pmfessioan
(Taken on record)
I of Easlern Silk lnduslies Lld

Place : Kolkata
Oate : The 30th May, 2023 Reg. No. IBBUIPA-o01/tp-pOOt 12t2O17 -j't 1O21g
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EASTERN SILK INDUSTRIES LIMITED

STATE]ITENT OF PROFIT & LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31ST MARCH.2023

Revenue from operations
Other lncome
Totallncome

20
21

3,80129
145.16

!glg!9: 3'lst Marct. 2023

(t in lakhs)

3'lst March. 2022

7,314.03
144.29

3,946.45 7.454.32

Cost of malerials consumed
Purchase of Stock-in-Trade
Changes in invenloriesof finished goods,work-in-progress
and Stock-in-Trade
Employee benef il expenses

Oepreciation and Amortizalion expense

Total Expenses

22
23

24
25
26
27
28

906.24
453.07
'H2.00
296.05
991.16

1,307.63
468.26
112.00
402.00

1,353.45
277.90

2 627.74
733.47

2 493.68
5,389.87 I 144.42

Protit / (Loss) betore exceptional llems and tax

Exceptional ltems

Profit / (Loss ) before tax

Total Comprehensive lncome forthe period

Cunentlax
Oeferred lEx
Eadier Year Taxation

Profit / (Loss) lorthe year

OtherComprehensive lncome
ttems thatwill not be reclassified to profit and loss

- Remeasurement of Posl Employment Benefit O bligalion
- Changes rn FarrValue of Equily lnstrumenl
- lncome Tax rclating to above jtems

(9.6r)
0.68

(26.11)
(0.72)

1r443,42)

14,413.12)

0.01

(686.50)

(686.50)

(686.50)

{1.434.50}

(r.83)

(6s9.67)

Earning perequily share:
aasic & Diluted (in {)

Signifi cant Accounting Policy
The Notes are an integral part of financial statements.

48 (0.87)

B

As pet out report attached
l-or u. 11. sttt<ut-F at (;o
Firm Regiskation No : 302166E
Chartered Accountants

Forand on behalf oflhe Board
(uompany under clRP)

(L. K. Shrotf)
Partner
(Mem.No.060742)

Sundeep Shah
DtN 0048431't

Chairman & Managing Director
(Power under sLrspension)

. {r.\'-
Y\J(./)* /

ll/leqha Shah
DtN 07112597
Wholetime Director
(Power under suspension)

)tt

'--1-- . I
4lut*cN

BaSrlJaiswal
Company Secretary

Pratee
Chief Finan

ria

i 'tt.,
\

Anil Kohli
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Place : Kolkata
Dale : The 30lh l\,lay, 2023

(Taken on record)
Resolution Professioanlof Eastern Silk lnddstries Ltd
Reg. No. laBYlPA-oo1/lP-POO1 1212017 -1an0219
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Eastern Silk lndustries Limited---------------=_
Statement of Chanqes in Equitv . rhe Deriod ended 3lst March, 2023

a. Equityshare capital
(t ln l-akhsl

galance as at 1April2021
Changes in equity share capitalduring 2021-22
Balance es et 3l March 2022
Changes in equity share €apital during 2022'23
Balance as at 3l March 2023

1,579.05

1,579.O5

b. Otherequity

Particulars

I

l{ in takh'}
R€5erves and 5urplus

T0talCapital
Capital

Redemption
Securities

ll,-,".....
I I sr',*
I ln"a"rption

ll**-"

Retained

earnings

Equity

lnstrument
through Other
Comprehensive

Other
Comprehensive

Balance as at 1April2021

Total Comprehensive lncome forthe year

Aalance as at 3l March 2022

Balan.e as at 1April2022

TotalComprehensive lncome for the year

Balanc. as at 31 Mar.h 2023

\482.77 1,400.00 LL,42A.7S 1,400.00 119,865.31)

-686.50

1,400.00 L1,428.79 1,400.00 {20,5S1.811

1,400.00 t1,428.75 1,ir00.00 (20,5S1.811

/.1,M1.431

1,4O0.00 lL,424,75 1,400.00 2L,99s.241

3.94

4.72

(56.44)

26.17

(3,806.291

(6s9.67)

7,842.77 4.66 130.331 (4,455.951

L,aa2,7' 4.66

(0.68)

(30.33)

9.61

(4,46s.961

(1,434.50)

7,442.t7 3.98 l2o.17l (s,9c0.46)

A3 psr our repod attached
For B, K. SHROFF &CO.
Firm Registration No : 302166E
Chartered Accountants

Forand on behalf ofthe Board
(Company under CIRP)

(1. K. Sh,of0
Partner
(Mem.N0.060742)

Sundeep Shah
DIN 00484311

Chairman & Managing Director
(Power under suspension)

., -t,
\'\ril'-Ar''x

Megha$hah
DIN 07172597

Wholetime Director
(Power under suspension )
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Chief
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offiCompany Secretary

\ ;. .-;
l.\1i1,-*o*.'

ft oI

ts

ROF

(K

@

*

Place : Kolkala
Date : The 30lh May, 2023

(Taken on record)
Resolulion Professioanl of Easlern Silk lndustries Lld

Res. No. lBBlilPA-001/lP -P0O1 1212017 -181 10219

7,519.O5
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3lst March,
2023

({ in lakhs)
31st March,

2022
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES :

Net ProIit, ( Loss) Before Tax

Add : AdjustmenG for :

Depreciation

Provision for DoubtfulDebts (net)

Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)
Less : Adjustments for :
lnterest & Dividend Received
Sundry Balances Adjusted
Operating Profil Belore Wo.king Capital Changes

(lncrease)/Decrease in lnventories
(lncrease)/Oecrease in Trade Receivables
(lncrease)/Decrease in Olher N on-Current Assets
(lnctease)/Oecrease in Other Bank Balances
(lncrease)/Oecrease in Other Cuflent Assets
lncrease/(Decrease) in Trade Payables
lncrease/(Decrease) in Other Curent Liabilities
Increase/(Decr€ase) in Non Cunent Provisions
lncrease/(Oecrease) in Current Provisions
Cash Generated From Operations

11,443.421 (686.50)

402.00

27 _55

296.05

127.41

3.49

11,33
0.34

8.34
35.15

('r,028.r4)

878.27
710.00

0.32
(s88.s4)

(22.80)
(270.49)
791.05

4.41
60.14

(300.44)

477 _61

121.56

\2s.44)
(9.18)
29_11

(266.98)
't 54.81
(21.19)
(30.12)

334-22

(6.r7)

129.74

10.86Taxes paid (net of Refund)
Net Cash Flow From Operating Aclivilies

B. CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Add : lnflows
Sale of Fixed Assets
lnteresl Received
Dividend Received
Less : Outflows
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Net Cash Used ln lnvesting Activities

C. CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
lncrease / (Oecrease) jn Cunent Borrowings
Net Cash Used ln Financing Activities

Net Changes l Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)
' Cash & Cash Equivalents - Opening Balance
' Cash & Cash Equivalents - Closing Balance
' Represenls Cash & Cash Equivalents as indicated in Note No.7

3,14.39 118.88

10.96
14.27

0.06

2A_O4

8.29
0.05

27.61 166.82
{5.32t

(390.00)

1130 44)

17.00
(390.00) 17.00

(50.93)
371.34

5_44
365.S0

320.41 371.34

As pe. our report attached
For B. K. SHROFF & CO.
Firm Registration No : 302166E
Chartered Accountants

For and on behall oI the Board
(Company under CIRP)

/z '.! 1, ' ,
) LL---t(

(1. K. Shrolt)
Pa(ner
(Mem.No.060742)

Sundeep Shah
DrN 00484311
Chairman & Managing Director
(Power under suspension)

, i. lr[,
..,, . \ ;.t-',/
\*1-

Meghdshah
DIN 07172597
Wholetime Direclor
(Power under suspension)

fu./-, Pratee h
Chief Fina

ha

r. Anil Kohli
(Taken on record) -,--,,
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Place : Kolkata
Oate: The 30th May, 2023

Resotution Professioanlof Eastern Silk lndustries Ltd
Reg. No. IBB UIPA-001/lP -P0O11212017 -18110219

EASTERN SILK INDUSTRIES LTD.

Cash Flow Statement for the Year Ended 3lst March. 2023
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Notes to Ind AS financial statements for the uear ended 3ld March. 2023

A. COMPANY'S OVER!'IEW

Eastern Silk Industries Limited (referred to as "the Company" hereinafter) was incorporated
under the laws of the Republic of lndia with its registered office at 19, R.N Mukherjee Road,
Kolkata 7O0O01. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed on the National Stock
Exchange (NSE). The Company is engaged in the manufacture of silk yarn, fabrics and made-
ups, home furnishings, fashion fabrics, handloom fabrics, double width fabrics, scarves,
laces and belts, and embroidered fabrics.

B. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING PoLICIES

i) Basis of prepatatlon and presentatlon of financial statemente ln compliance
with Ind AS.:

The financial statements have been prepared in accordalce with Indian
Accounting Staldards ('Ind AS') notified under the Companies (lndian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2016, as applicable.

The financia.l statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for
the following:
1) certain financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value;
2) assets held for sale - measured at lower of carrJaing arnount or fair va_lue less
cost to sell;
3) defined benefit plals - plan assets measured at fair value;'

Fair va-lue is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in arr orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorised into Level l, 2, or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair
value measurements a-re observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
va.lue measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

l€vel 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active ma_r.kets lor identical assets
or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

All assets and liabilities have been classilied as current or non-current as per the
Compaly's normal operating cycle (twelve months) and other criteria set oui in the
Schedule III to the Act. All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and
notes have been rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the requirement of
Schedule III, unless otherwise stated.
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Notes to Ind AS financial stqtements for thE ended 31il MarcfL 2023

ii) Functional and presentation Currency

These Ind AS Financial Statements are prepared in Indian Rupee which is the
Company's functional currency. All Iinancial information presented in Rupees has
been rounded to the nearest lakhs with two decimals.

iii) Use of Estimates :

The preparation of finarrcial statements requires estimates and assumptions to be
made based on the current working that alfect the reported amount of assets and
liabilities (including contingent liabilities) on the date of financial statements and
the reported amount of revenues arld expenses for the reporting period. Difference
between the actual and the estimates, if any, are accounted for in the period in
which such differences are known/materialized.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision aifects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions conceming the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and Liabilities within the next financial year:

a) Useful llfe of property, plant and equipment: The Company reviews the useful
life of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. This
assessment may result in change in the depreciation expense in future periods,

b) Defered tax assets: The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at
each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

c) Employee Benefits: The cost of defined benefit plans are determined using
actuarial va-luations. The actuaria.l valuation involves making assumptions aboui
discount rates, expected rates of retum on assets, future salarlr increases,
mortality rates and future pension increases. Due to the long-term nature of these
plans, such estimates a-re subject to significant uncertainty.

d) Trade Recelvables: Furthermore, the management believe that the net carrying
amount of trade receivables is recoverable based on their past experience in thi
market and their assessment of the credit worthiness of debtors at Balance Sheet
date. Such estimates are inherently imprecise and there may be additional
information about one or more debtors that the management are not aware of,
which could significantly affect their estimations.

el Provisions & Liabllities: Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period
when it becomes probable that there will be a futr.rre outflow of funds resulting
from past operations or events that carl reasonably be estimated. The timing o-f
recognition requires application ofjudgement to edsting facts and circumstanies
which may be subject to change. The amounts are deteimined by discounting the
expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability.
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Notes to Ind AS fin o.ncial statements for tlLe uear ended 31"t March- 2023

iv)

v)

vi)

Q contlngencles: In the normal course of business, contingent liab ities may arise
from litigation and other claims against the company. poientia.l riabilities that are
possible but not probabre of crystarising or are very difficurt to quantify reriably are
treated as contingent liabilities. Such liabi[ties are disclosed in the notes bui are
not recognized.

Property, plant and equipment:

Property, p-lant and equipment are stated at its purchase price including direct
expenses, finance cost till it is put to use net of recoverable taxes. If the pioperty,
plalt afld equipment are revalued then they a-re stated at revalued amouni.
Accumulated depreciation, impairment loss, if any, is reduced from the property,
plant and equipment ald shown under the net asset va_lue on the reporting'datl.
The cost including additions, improvements, renewals, revalued amourit and
accumulated depreciation of assets which are sold and/or discarded ad/or
impaired, are removed from the fixed assets ald any proht or loss resulting there
from is included in the statement of profit & Loss and the residual varue"of the
revalued amount is withdrawn from such reserves created for the purpose through
Other Comprehensive Income.

Capital Work in progress includes cost of property, plant and equipment under
installation/under development as at the Ba_lance Sieit date.

Leased Assets :

On account of adoption of Ind AS 116, the company as a lessee has reclassified
the leasehold land as Right of use Assets "nou jrssit'. The company depreciates
the right-of-use asset on a straightline basis from the rease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the usefur life of the right-of-use asset or the end of thelease term. The Company also assesses the rilht-of_use asset for impairment
when any indicators exist.

Horvever, earlier to adoption of Ind AS 116, Leased assets a_re stated at premium
paid on such assets. Rentals, if any, are expensed with reference to ihe leaseterms and other conditions. No amortization of the le"se premium in respect ofLand is done in cases where conditions are stipulated for conversion from
leasehold to freehold.

Depreclation methods, estlmated useful llves and resldual value :

Depreciation is calculated on all the property, plant & equipments based on the
method prescribed under Schedule II of the iomparies aci, iOtS. Depreciation onthe assets hitherto calculated on Written Oown Value/ Siraight Line method is
charged based on the remaining usefur life of the assets as piescribed under theAct. Depreciation on assets- added w.e.f. Olst April, 2014 is provided ;" p;;
Straight Line Method on the basis of useful life ofihe assets as prescribed under
th-e.. said Schedule and on pro rata basis. Depreciation on the asset" ai"posea
off/impaired during the year is provided on pro-iata basis.

Depreciation on the revalued assets (if any) is calculated at the rates prescribed
under Schedule II of the Act and such depreciation is aJlusted through OtheiComprehensive Income & Reva_luation Surplus.
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Notes to Ind AS financial state ts for th,e uear ended 31 st MarclL 2O23

The estimated useful life of assets are as follows:-

vi) Impalrment of Assets:

viii) Forelgn Currency TranaacHons & Translatlons :

An asset is treated as impaired when the carrying cost of the asset exceeds its
recoverable value being higher of value in use and nit selling price. Value in use is
computed at net present varue of cash flow expected over thi barance useful life ofthe assets. An impairment loss is recognized as an expense in the Statement of
Profit &_Loss in the yea-r in which an asset is identilied as impaired. In case ofimpaired reva.lued assets, the impaired loss on the residual value is withdrawn
from such reserves created for the purpose through Other Comprehensive Income.
The.impairment loss recognized in earrier accouiting period is reversed ir there
has been an improvement in recoverable amount.

a)

b)

c)

The financial statements are presented in Indial rupee (INR), which is
Company's functional and presentation currencv.
Transactions denominated in foreign currenciei are recorded at the exchange
rate prevailing on the date of transaction.
Year-end balalce of assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at
the year-end rates and difference between year-e'nd balance and such restated
ba.lance are dealt in under Exchange rate difference in the profit and loss
statement,
The- difference arising out of the actual settlement on realization / payment are
dealt with in the Statement of profit & Loss under Exchange Rate Difference
arising on such transactions.

d)

i") Financiallnstruments

il Flnancial Assets

A, tia.l ition m ent: All finarcial assets arld liabilities are
ln1tially recognized at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable tothe acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities, which are notat fair value through profit or loss, are adjusted to the fair value on initial
recognition. Purchase and sale of financia-l assets are recognised using trade dateaccounting.

B. Subsequent measurement:
a) Financial assets carried at amortised cost (AC): A financia.l asset is measured atamortised cost if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold theasset in order to collect contractual cash flows afid the contiactual terms of the

-.- t
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Particulars Estimated life of assets
Buildi 60 ars
Fact Buildi 30
Plant & Machine 15
Motor Car 8
Two-wheelers 10
Com uter Ha-rdware 3 s
Com uter Softwat'e 6 s
F\rrniture & Fitti S 10 S

Office ul ment 5 years
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tes to s

xi)

end .t Ma o'1

tial rec tion m nt: All financial liabilities are recognized atfair value ald in case of l,oans, net of directly attribu table cost. Fees of recurring
nature are directly recognised in the Statement of profit and Irss as finance cost.

state or t

Ilnancial asset give rise on specilied dates to cash flows that are solely payments ofprincipal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI): Afinancial asset is measured at FVTOCi if it is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both couecting contractual cash flows and seling rrnancial
assets and the contractual terms of the hnancial asset give rise on specified datesto cash flows that are solely palrnents of principal and interest on the principa.l
amount outstanding.

c) Financial assets at fair value through proflt or loss (FVTpL): A financial asset
which is not classified in any of the above iategories are measured at FVTpL.

C. Investments: Equity oriented investments are measured at fair value, with value
changes recognised in 'other comprehensive Income', whereas investments otherthal equity are measured at cost.

ii) Financial Liablltties

x)

B. Subseqqgnt . meAsurement: Finaacial liabilities are caried at amortized costusrng the ettectlve rnterest method. For trade and other payables maturing within
one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying amounts approximate fJr valuedue to the short maturity of these instruments.

iiil Derecognltion of llnancial lnstrumenta

The. C-omplny derecognizes a hnancial asset when the contractual rights to thecash flows from the financial asset expire or it transfers the financiat as-set and thetralsfer qualilies for derecognition unter Ind AS 109. A Iinalcia.l liability (or a partofa fina,cial liability) is derecognized from the Company,s BJa,ce Sheet when theobligation specified in the contract is discharged or iancelled or explres.

Inventories:

Items of inventories such as raw materials and Stock_in_Trade, Finished Goodsare measured at lower of cost or net realizable value after providing foiobsolescence if aly. Work-in-progress is valued at estimaiea cost and stocks &spare parts, dyes & chemicals, packing materials etc. are valued at cost onweighted average basis.

work-in-progress comprises of cost of purchase, cost of conversion and othercosts including manufacturing overheads incurred in U.lrgi.rg them in theiipresent condition.

Revenue RecognlHon :

Revenue.from sale of goods is recognised when the significant risks and rewards ofownership have been transferred 1o the buyer,.""Ju"ry oi the consideration isprobable, the associated cost can be estimlted r.IaUty, it ere is no continuingeffective control or manageda.l involvement with th; C'"Lj",- "ra the amount ofrevenue can be measured reliably.
Revenue from rendering of services is recognised when the performalce of agreedcontractual task has been completed.
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to Ind As al statements for the ended 31! March. 2023

Revenue from sale of goods is measured at the fair varue of the consideration
received or.receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms of payment
ald excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the government.
Export benefrts entitlement to the Company such as Duty Drawback, DEPB, DFIA
etc is recognized in the year of export on accrual basis wherever it is ascertainable
with reasonable accuracy,
Reyenue from operations includes sale of goods, services, export benefit
entitlement and adjusted for discounts (net) if aly.

Interest income
Interest income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest rate
method.

Dividends
Revenue is recognised when the Company,s right to receive the payment has been
established.

Others
Earnest deposits from customers are recognized as Revenue on obligatory failures.

Employee Beneflts :xii)

a) ort-term ts
Short-term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits payable within one year) are
recognized in the period in which employee s".uices are rendered.

b) Post emplor.rnent Benelits

1) D ed Con

2) D 1ned

tion

t Plans

Contributions towards provident funds are recognized as expense,
Provident fund contributions in respect of certain 

"-ploy"es are made toTrust administered by the Company, the interest iati payable to the
members of the Trust is not lower than the rate of inierest declared
gnlally by the Central Govemment under the Employees, provident
Funds and Miscellaneous provisions Act, 1952 and ;hortfall if any, is
made good by the Company. The remaining provident fund contributions
are made to goyemment administered provident fund towards which the
Company has no further obligations beyond its monthly contdbutions.

Contribution to Central Government administered Employees, State
Insuralce Scheme for eligible employees are recognized u" 

"h*g".

Liabjlity 
-towards gratuity, covering eligible employees is provided and

funded through LIC managed Group Gratulty eoUcy on the basis of year
end actuaria.l valuation.

Remeasurement gains and Iosses arising from experience adjustmentsond changes in actuaria_l assumptions are recognised in the period in
which, they occur, 

-direct.ly in other comprehen-sive income. ihey are
rncluded rn retained earnings in the statement of changes in equity ald
in the balance sheet.

3) Other Benefits
Accrued liability towards Leave encashment benefits, covering eligible
employees, evaluated on the basis of year-end actuarial valuation is
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Notes to Ind AS financtal statements for the uear ended 31d March 2023

recognized as a charge. Remeasurements as a result of experience
adjustments and chalges in actuaria.l assumptions arc recognised in the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

xiii) Borrowlng Cost:

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they
are incurred. Capita.lization of borrowing costs ceases when the qualifying asset
is ready for intended use .

xiv) Tax Expense :

Tax Expense for the period are recognised in proht or loss, except when they are
relating to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or direcily in
equity, in which case, the tax expenses are also recognized in oiher
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively
- Current tax: Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax
rates and laws that are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet
date.

- Defered tax: Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the
carrying amounts of assets arld liabilities in the hnancial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities a,d assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the end of the reporting period. The carrying amount of deferred iax liab ities
and assets are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,

xv) Earning per Share :
Basic earning per share is calculated by dividing the net prolit for the year
attributable to equity shareholders (after deducting the dividend on redeemable
preference share) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the year.

Diluted earning per share is carcurated by dividing the net profrt attributable to
equity shareholders (after deducting the dividend on redeemable preference
share) by weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year
after adjusting for the effects of dilutive options.

xvi) Eventa occurring allter Balance Sheet Date :

Events occuring after the ba.rance sheet date have been considered in the
preparation of financial statements.

xvii) Prowisions & Contingent Liabllities:
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it is probable ih^t an ou1flo* of resources
will be required to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliablv estimated.
Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of management,s best estimate ofthe expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting penod. The discount rate used to determine the present value is a pre
tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and
the risks specifrc to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage
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Notes to Ind AS financial stqtements for the rlear ended 31"t March. 2023

xviii)

Contingent Liabilities are disclosed by way of notes to the financial statements in
respect of possible obligations that arise from past events but their existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Company or where any present
obligation cannot be measured in terms of future outJlow of resources or where a
reliable estimate of the obligation cannot be made.

Statement of Cash Flows :

The Company adopts the Indirect Method in preparation of Statement of Cash
Flows. For the purpose of Statement of Cash Flows, Cash & Cash equivalents
consists of Cash on Hand, Cash at Bank, Term Deposits & Cheques in Hand.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 319! !!!I9!!!?1

Note 1:-

Total

8,036.21

166.82
101.81

4,101.24

3,660.66
399.51

16,21
4,013.96

293.56
32.t6

4,275.06

(l in lakhs)

Total

8,282.80

ProDortv. Plant & Equipment -Tanqible Assets
Land

Freehold '
Building

379,86 2,192.66 5,20A.42

Plant E
Machlnery

Electric
lnstallatlons

Office
Equipmeht &

Furnituae

Right of l,rse
Assets -

Leasehold Land

82.70 18.64
GROSS BLOCK
At 3lst March 2021
Transfer "
Additions
Sales/Deductions
At 31st March 2022
Transfer "
Additions
Sales/Deductions
At 31sl March 2023

Depreciation
At 31st Maich 2021
Charges for th€ year
Disposals

At 31st March 2022
Charges for the year
Disposals

At 3'l sl March 2023

379.86 2,192.66

379.86 2,192,66

552-23

25-24
45.52

5,256.36

'165.'16

96.94
5,276,64

2.20
'151.74

153.93

151-74

61.18

1.66
1.74

82.62

50.17
4.79
0.80

54.16
5.04

59.20

246.59

246.59

246.59

'166.82

101.8'i
8,347 -E2

0.93
17.71

2-37

84.99
1.39

16.32

27,61
46.91

8,08t.93

414,29
70.77

42.99
9.31

485.06
67.'17

52.30
8.88

3,143.32
3'13.22
it4.98

3,41't.s5
211-10

31.59
3,59't.06

9.89
1.43
0,43

10.89
1.37
0.88

11.38

4.98
2.49

7.47
2.49

27.61
46.91

8,328.51

3,665.64
402.00

16.21
4,02',1.43

296.05
32.46

4,245-029.96

NET BLOCK
At 31st March 2022
At 31st March 2023

379.86
379.86

',,707.60 '1,865.09

1,640.43 1,665.29
9S-,14

90.56
24.4G
25.79

6.82
4.9,r

4OA7 -24
3,806.88

239.12
236.63

4,326.39
4,043.49

'During the FY 2017-18 the lease hold land of Bommasandra has been converted to freehold land.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

(< in lakhs)

Note 2:- Non-Current lnvestments

lnvestments at Fair Value throuqh OCI
lnvestmenls in Equitv lnstruments
Quoted
Tata Consultancy Services Ltd.
Equity Shares of < 1/- (P.Y. < 1r)each fully paid up

Unquoted
lndia Exposition Mart Ltd.
Equity Shares of(5 (P.Y. ( 10/-) each fully paid up

Aggregate amount of quoted investments
Market value of quoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoled investments

Note 3:-Deferred Tax (Liability) /Asset :- *

Deferred Tax ( Liability) / Asset :

On Account of Unabsorbed Losses under l.T. Act '1961

Net Deferred Tax ( Liability) / Asset
* Refer to Note ; 41

Advance olher than Capital Advance
Security Deposits
Others

Note 5 :- lnventories

Raw Materials and components
Work-in-progress
Finished goods
Stores and spares & Olhers

ote 6:- Trade Receivables

Unsecured and Considered good
Having significant increase in Credit Risk

4.11

4.11

0.25

4.79

4.79

0.25

102.20
3.05

102.52
3.05

4 572.98 4,572,98
4,572.98 4,572.98

Nos.

128

5,'140

31st March,2023

105.25

779.53
181.08

1,838.09
100.99

2,899.69

1,5'19.35
6,105.02

7,624.37

6,105.02

3lst March 2022
Amount Nos Amount

4.11 12A 4,79

o.2s 5,140 0.2s

4.36 5.04

105.57

1,014.48
258.87

2,147.46
157.15

3,577.96

2,356.77
5,977.61

8,334.38

5,977.61
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Less :Allov{ance for Credit Losses

1,5't9.35
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Note 4 :- Other Non4urrent Assets
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Notes on Financial Statements for the vear ended 31st March 2023

Note 6:- Trade Receivables contd ..
Allowance lor Crcdil Losses
As per Lasl Balance Sheet
Add I Provided during lhe year

Less : Bad Debt Writlen Ofl during the year

Trade Receivables n Schedule as at 31st March 2023

Trade Receivables ei Schedule as at 31sl March 2022

5,977,61

6,105.02

6,105.02

Outstandin for followi ods from due date of ent

31sl March.2023
(( in lakhs)

3'1sl March.2022
Amount

5,977,61
127 -41
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Particulars
Less
than 6
months

Total

505.29 1 5't9.35

6 months -'l 1-2
years yeanr

991.86

Outstandin
Not Due

for followi

22.20

ntriods from due date ol
23

waf
More than 3
years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk

127.41

(iii) Undisputed Trade Reqejvables - credit impaired
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables-considered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Tr!de Receivables - credit impaired

5,97i.6',t 5,977.61

22.20 505.29 991.86 7,624.376,105.02
Less: Allowance lor doubtful trade receivables 6,105.02
Total Trade Receivables 22.20 505.29 991.86

6,'105.02
'1,519.35

Particulars
Nol Oue Less

than 6
months

6 months -1

year
1.2

years
2.3

years

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables - considered good 1,612.92 481.60 6.71 128.26

More than 3
years

Total

2 356.7?12tt.65
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - which have
significant increase in credit risk
(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired
(iv) Dispuled Trade Rec6ivables--{onsidered good
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables - which have significant
increase in credit risk

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables - credit impaired

5,977.61 5,977.61

6,'t03.26 8,334.381,6't2.92 481.60 6,71 124.26 1.63
Less: Allowance lor doubtful trade receivables 5,977.6'l5,977.6'l
Total Trade Receivables 1,612,92 481.60 6,71 128.26 1.63 't2s.65 2,356.77

AIIti!D
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5,977.61

5,977.61
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Notes on Financial Statements for the r ended 3lst March 2023

Note 7:-Cash & Gash Equivalents

Cash Balance
Cash on hand

Balance with banks
Current Account
Foreign Currency Account

Note 8:-Other Bank Balances

Earmarked Balance (Refer Note no. 42)

Deposits with Banks
-Held as margin/security with original maturity of
more than 3 months having remaining maturity of less
than 12 months from balance sheet date

Term Deposit as Margin money
Term Deposit as No-lien Deposit
Term Deposit as No-lien Deposit (utilised for adjustment by Banks)

Note g:-Current Tax Assets (Net)

Advance Tax & TDS
Less:

Provision for lncome Tax
lncome Tax Payable
F.B.T. Payable

Note '10:-Other Current Assets

Advance other than Capital Advance

Others
Gratuity Fund

3lst March,2023
({ in lakhs)

3lst March,2022

0.53 0.41

319.22
0.66

370.27
0.66

320.41 371.34

93.64
589.07
392.59

4.76 4.76

89.21
4.96

392.59
1,080.06 491.52

57.2851.10

7.00
7.34
1.07

7,00
7.34
1.07

35,69 41.87

605.1'l
26.92

593.47
15.77

632.03 609.24
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Notes on Flnanclal Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Fln l.k&)

2022
4!!9!!!

3lsl M.rch,2023
44.S!!1

I % R€d€€mabls CumuH v6 Prere€r'co

Equily ShaE oll Z- each

Equily Shares of { Z' €ach

15.00.00.000

20,00,000

3,000.00

2,000.00

15,00,00,000

20,00,000

3.0@.00

2,000.00

7,91,10,120 1,5€2.20 7,91,10,120 1,592.2A

Sub$ribed a Paid Up
Eqoily Sha.es ol I Z- each 7,89,52,G20 i,579.05 191!3C9 ---!!1949

31sl March 2022

a) -rhere 
is rE char€e/movemenl in nmber oi shares odstandirE al ttE begirnlrc ard al lhe eM ol lhe Eporling period.

b) The Company h6s lwo class ol issued shares i.e. Eqlity Sharcs ol { Z- each and R€de€rnable Cumulative Pre,erencs Shares of
1100/- each.Every Equily Shae is entled to me vote 6nd equal righl lo. dividend aiter paymenl o, prefereme dividend io
prelereme sha€ hotle6.Th6 dividend prcposod by lt'€ Board ot Di€clors is subjst to appmval of shareholders in lhe emuins
Annual Ger€ral Moeling,oxcspl in cass ol inbnm dividend.ln lhe evsr ol lhuidation,the sha.o holdoF ac €ligibl€ io EBiv6 rho
remairing assels oI the Conpa.y alter payment of all p.elerontial amounts n proportio. to the r sharcholdl.g,

c) Tho Company does nor h3v€ any Bohing Compaiy.

d) Detalls or sharoholdsls hold ng nore lran 5% sha€s in lhe Comparry.

Eouilv SharB of { Z- each fullv oaid 31sl March 2023

le.gLSt4E ?, or Holdins
71,39,205 9.04
5t,21,170 6.74
76,69,580 9.71
95.75,51'0 12,13

No. olShares %ol Hohim
71.39,205 9.04
53.24.110 6.t4
76,69,580 9.71
95,75,500 12.13

Oi3closure ot shareholdin 2023 & March 31 2022 is as follow3
Name of Promol3r(s) ctange

duringthe31st March

zo23
31st March

2022

31st March
2023

31st March
2022

Megha Shah

Varun Shah

Neha Shah

Pramod Kumar Shah
PreetiShah
Kavita Shah

Vijoy Trading Company
Sundeep Shsh

Gin;a Devi Shah

Shyam Sunder Shah

P X Teffles Limiled
Lucky Gold Si,ar Company Limited
Elhics Commercials Limited

Gemini Oversoas Llmilsd
Tarun Fab cs Limited

33,750
1,20,0O0
r,68,750
2,65,000
5,01,240
6,62,750

13,96,750
16,64,000
53,24,t7O
7 t,39,205
15,27,380
17,51,580
26,48,696
76,69,580
95,75,500

33,750
1,20,O00
I,68,750
2,65,000
5,01,240
6,62,7sO

13,96,750
16,64,000
53,24,170
7r,39,205
15,27,380
17,51,580
26,44,696
76,69,s80
95,75,500

0.04
0.15
o.2L
0.34
0.63
0.84
t.77
2.t I
6.74
9.04
r-93
2.22
3_41

9_71
12.13

o.04
o.15
o.2L
0.34
0.63
0.84
1.77
2.t I
6.74
9.04
r-93
2.22
3.41
9.7r

r2.13
4,04,88,351 4,04,88,351 51.28 51.28

e) No Equily ShaEs havo b€en resefred lo. isse under optiom and cornracls/(Mmitments lor the sale of shares/disinvestmert as al
the Bab.co Sheet date,

0 No sha€s have besn allotrod or has b€en bougtt back by ths Company du ng the 5 yeaB p.e@ding th€ datB a! utrch Batanc€

g) No sscurilies conveilble into Equity/Peleenco shar€s issued by lhe Comp€ny dur ng the y€ar

h) No calb a€ unpaid by any Dnecbr or Otficar of lhe Cmpany duing the ,€a.

l) DL/ing199t96lhe company ollered 1,18,13,725 Equity SMres otl Z- eacn lo the existing Shareholders in lhs raiio of 1 share ior
€ve.y 2 shares heH, al a premium ofl6l p6r sh.€ as per letler of ofler chted Demb€.21, 1995. Out of lhe above shares
allotment 016,000 Eqlny Sha€s are kepl in abeyaoce unde, Cen Oder.

j) Tho Promot€rs sharcholding .emains ercumbercd ln favou of lndian sank (66twhil6 Allahabad Bank), Leder Baok or consonium
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Notes on Financial Slarements f9!lhejgar eqqg! 11!t March 2023

31si March.2023
(l in lakhs)

3'1st Marqh-2022
Nots 12 r Other Equity

aa2.77

an accounton lhe balance sheel to peparc the company
inflalion. instabllity, .eed to erpand the business, orio get inlo a n€w and uryent prcjecl.

opening Balance
Closing Balanc€

Capital Rcdemplion Reserve'
Opening Balanc€
Closing Aalance

1,882.7f
1,442.77

1,400.00 1,1o0.00
1,i100.00 1,/t00,00

Where a cornpary purchases its own shares out ot frce.eserues or securjlies prcmium account, a sum equal
to the nominalvalue of lhe shares so purc}tased shall be transfened to lhe capital redempiion reserve accounl
and delails ofsuch lransfershallbe disclosed in the balance sneel.

Securlli€s Prsmlum Accounl'
Op€n ng Bal€nce
Closing Balance

11,124.75 11.124,75
11,424.75 11.424,75

Sharc Premium is the d ference beiween ihe issue price snd the parvalue of Ihe stock and is also knoM as
secLrriiies premium. The shares are said io be issued ai a premium when lhe issue price of the share is
grcalerthan ils face value or parvalue. This premium is lhen crediled to the share prcmium accountolthe

Preterence Share Redemptlon Reserve
Open ng Balance
Closing Balance

1,400.00 'tr400.00
't,400.00 1,400.00

Wh€n lh€ company proposes to redeem the preErence sharesoutofthe profits, illransfers an amount€qual
to ihe nominalvalue of the redeemable preierence shares to the Capilal R€demptaon Reserve,uc oui of ihe
proliis of the cornpany.

RetEined Earning
opsning Balanc€ {20,551.81)

Retailled eamings (RE)is &e amount o, net income lefr over for ihe business att6iit has pEl<i out OtviOenOs to
ils shareholders. A business generates earnings thatcan be posilive (prciils)or negative (loss€s).

Net Proit / l toss ) For the Year
Closins Balance

{1,443.+3}
{21,995.24)

(19,86s.31)
(686.50)

(20,551.81)

4.66

(0.68)

3.94

0.72

Other comprehensive income is those revonues, sxp€ns€s, gains, and loss€s und€r both conorally Accept€d
Accounling Principles and lndian Accounting Slandardsthat ar€ sxclud€d lrom n€t incomoon lis incomo
stat€mont. This means lhal lhey ars instoad listed afl€r nstancom€ on th6 incomo statomsnt.

Equity lnstrument through Other Comprehensive lncome
Opening Balance
Add/(L€ss) :

Changes in FairValue ot Equily lnstrumenls for lhe year
Closing Balanc€

Other ltem. ol Comp.6hon6iv€ lncome
Op€oing Balanc€
Add/(Lcss) :

RBmeasurementof Posl Emploimenl B€nefit Obligaiioo lor rhe

ClGing Balance

3.98 4.56

(30.33) (56.44)

9.61
{.20.721

26.11---(30rat
(5,900.46)

Note't3 r Non-Curent Borrowinqs

8 % Redeemable Cumulalive Preforence Shares oll l00/-each 1,400.001,400.00

1,400.00

!e&.

6,00 000 Redeemable Cumulative Prefersnce Shares were allolted bylhs Companyon 21.01.2004, 2,00,000
Redeemable Cumulatjve Preference Shares were s lotled by Elstwhile Easlern Jingyir8 Lrd. on 09.02-2004 &
6,00,000 Redeemable Cumul6rive Prefercnc€ Shares were alloned by Elstshile Sstotta Sitks Ltd. on
26.03.2005. All lhe Preferenc€ Sharcs are carrying dividend at the rate of 8%. The date of redemprion of att
the prelerence shares which were due for redemption on 25th March, 2010 and lst Aprii, 2010 were extended
uplo 1sl April, 2020 with lhe consent ol all ths p,eferen€e shareholders. However redemplion of the
preference shares can ooly be made a,ler the enlire dues of Banks & lnsljlulions arc repaid. Accordingly the
redemption of preference shares have been furiier exts.ded till 31st March, 2025 wilh the consent of lhe
prelersnce shareholdels.
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

Note '14:-Non- CUrent Provisions
Provisions for Employees Benefit
Leave Encashment

Nsle 15 i- Current Borrowinqs
Secured
Loan from Banks

Term Loan
Funded lnterest Term Loan

2,984.60
493.81

7,199.00

2,984.60
493.81

7,589.00

329.00
2,170.00

329.00
2,170.00

3lst March,2023

24.44

({ ln lakhs)
3lst March. 2022

16.07

24,48 15.07

Loans from olhers
[rnsecured
Loans From Directors
Loans From Promoters

13,566.41
Nalure of Secudty :.
Team Loan
i) Pari passu first charge over ent re movable fixed assets excluding assets charged to olher lenders.
ji) Pari passu second charge over the company's enlire cu.rent assets excluding assets charged to other lenders.
iii) Equitable [4ortgage of the Company's Property No. 84 in Sl. No. 39 measur]flg to an extenl ot 4 Acres 34 guntas situated at
Kammasendra,Agrahara,Village- Kasaba Hobli,Anekal Taluk, Bangalore Dist together with all buildings & struclures lhereon and all
plant & machinery attached to the earth; both present & Iuture.
iv) Equitable morlgage ofthe company's property on Plot No:209 in Bommasandra lndustrialArea, AnekalTaluk, Hosur
Road,Bangalore,admeasuring '10896 sq.mtrs together with all buildings & structures thereon.
v) Personal guarantee ofShriS.S.Shah and SriSundeep Shah.

Loans rcoavable on demand

i) Hypothecation of entire currcnl assets including book debts oflhe company on firsl charge basis ranking pad passu with Bankeas
without any preference or priority of one over the other.

i) Hypolhecation ofrealizable non-current assets of the company on first charge basis rankrng pari passu.
iii) Hypothecation of alltangible, moveable plant & machinedes,equlpment,etc.localed at the Company's unit at Anekal Unit I & ll on
second charge basis ranking pari passu.

iv) Exclusive pad passu charge on specifc plant and machinery installed atAnekalunit, Kamataka crealed oul ofsale proceeds of the
Company's Norda unit.

v) Second Charge on the company's Plot No: 209 in Bommasandra lndustrial Area, Anekal Taluk, Hosur Road, Bangelore,
admeasuring '10896 sq.mtrs together with all buildings & structures thereon.
vi) Secured against flrst pari-passu charge on all Assets, excluding assets exclusively charged to respective
lenders.
vii) Equitable Mortgage of the Company's Property at Plot No.'l1A of Nanjangud lndustrial area situated in St.
No.184,185 and 169 of Kallahally Village,Chikkaiahna,Chatra,Hobli,Nanjangud Taluk, Mysore District containing

xi) Second charge on the Company's property at 41 1, Telugarahalli Road,Anekal,Bangalore-562106.
x) Second chargs on the Company's property at Kammansandra Agrahara Kasaba Hobli,Anekal, Bangalore-
562106.
xi) PersonalGuaranlee of Shri Sundeep Sha1.
Loah from otheas

Secured on ihe Company's assets as menlioned under the securily of setted Term Loan/ WCTL and by residualcharge to the extent
ofsatisfaclion under OTS with Banks & Othsrs.

Loan from Directors

Loan from Dkectors (free of lnlerest ) repayable on demand
RO
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Loan trom Promote6
Promoters Contribution (tee of interest) remain subordinate to the Bank & Other Secured Loans
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 3'lst March 2023

F in lakhs)
3'l3t March.2022

Note'16:-T e Pavables

Total outstanding dues of Micro and Small Enterprls€s
Tohl or/tstanding dues of olher than Micro and Small Enterprises

27.11
147.28 445.14
174.69 445.14

Trade P les n Schedule as at 31st March 2023

Trade Payables Agelhg Schedule as at 31st March 2022

Particul
ars

Outstanding for tollowing periods from due date of payment Total
Not Due Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More

Others 219.71 225.10 0.0't 0.36 445.1A

Total 219.7'l 225-10 0.0't 0.36 it45.18

The iniotmaiion regading Micro, Small and Medium Enterprases as required to be disctosed under lhe Micro, Sma[ and Medium
Entery ses Development Act, 2006, to the extent such pa(es have been idenlified on ihe basis of information avaitabte with the
Company, is given below

Parricularc
Pincipalamounl due outsianding as at end of year
lnterestdue on above and unpaid as al end of year!
lntercst paid to the supplier
Payments made to the supplier beyond the appointed dayduring

lnterest due and payabl€ for the period oldelay
lnlerest accrued and remaining unpaid as at end olpeiod

' Nol ascedajn due to underyoing CIRP (Refet Note 37)

3'lst March 2023
27.41

1-76

Note 17 : her Current Financi Liabilities

Unclaimed Dividend

Note 18:.Olher urrenl Liabilities

1.76
4.76 4,76

Advance from cuslomerE
Advanco from olhers
Slalulory Dues
Dividend Payable on Preference Shares
Olhers

7328

1,344.00
2,3't0.39
araas

220.56
5.32
2.44

168.90
5.53
3.76

178J9
RO
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Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymentParticul
ars Not Due Less than 1 yoar 1-2 years 2-3 years More

than 3
years

Total

MSI\4E 27.41 27.41
Others 107.67 39.60 0.0'1 147.28
Dispute
d dues-
MSME
Dispute
d dues-
Others
Total r35.08 39.60 0.0r 174.69

Provi6ion ,or omployee b€nefils
Salary and Reimbursemenl
cont bulion lo P.F. & ESlc

22A.72

\-:i:r;--:.-'

*
+ F

3131March.2023

Nole 19 :- Current Provisions

289.67
54t.52

7.65
1,455.00
2,t90.84
4.525.68

(? ln lakhs)
3'l st t arch,2022
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023
(t in lakhs)

31st March,2023 3l st March 2022

Note 20:-Revenue From Operations

Sale of products
Sale of Service

Other Operating Revenue
Drawback & Other incentives

Note 21:- Other lncome

lnterest lncome
On Bank Deposits
On Other Deposits
Dividend lncome
On Long Term lnvestment
Other Non-Operating lncome
Exchange Rate Difference(net)
Sundry Balances & Liabilities No Longer Required
Written Back
Rent Received
Profit on sale of Fixed Assets
Other Miscellaneous lncome

9.09
2.18

4.57
3.72

3,735.68
62.94

2.67

7,00r.98
128.01

184.04

3,801.29

0.06

23.O2

0.34
106.t2

4.35

0.05

27.74

35.15
70.16

1.56
1.34

145.16 't44.29
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Notes on Financial Statements for the ar ended 3'lst March 2023

Opening Stock

Less : Transferred lo Finished Goods
Less: Closing Stock

't,014.48
1,637.58

519.08
779,53

Note 22:- Cost of Material Consumed

Raw Matsrlal Consumptlon

Note 23:-Purchase of Stock in Trade

PLJrchase of Finished Goods

Note 24:4hanqes in lnv€ntories of Finished
WP E Stock in Trade

(lncrease) / Decrease in Stock

Note 25:.Emplovees Benefit Expenses

Opening Slock olWork ln Progress
Opening Stock of Finished Goods
Add rTransfered Frcm Raw Material

254.87
2,147.46

519.08

841.92

1,805.17
2,e25.41 _.1r999!L

LessrClosing Slock oIWork in Progress
Closing Stock of Finished Goods

254.87
2,o1s.17 Jlllg

(l ln lakh3)

31st March.202231st March. 2023

1,353.45

271.90
277.90

906.24

t,20t.t6
3,507.97
't,066.87
t,01it.4a
2,62f-fA

2,627.14
2,627-fA

733.47
733.47

3.713.96

2,406.33

t,307.63

Salaries and incenuves
Conhibutions to Providenl & Other Fund
Conlribuiion to G€tuily Fund
Slafi wefarc expenses

396,38
20.99
22.17
2A.72

468.26
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Notes on Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March 2023

31st March, 2023

(( in lakhs)

3lst March. 2022

Note 26: -Finance Cost
Dividend
On Redeemable Preference Shares

Note 27:- Depreciation & Amortization Expense
On Property, Plant & Equipment
On ROU Assets

Note 28:- Other ExDenses
Manufacturinq Expenses
Wages
Conversion, Machining & Other Direct Expenses
Stores, Spares & Accessories Consumed
Dyes & Chemicals Consumed
Power & Fuel

@ld$r3!jvjg@
Legal, Professional & Syndication Charges
Rent
Rates & Taxes
lnsurance
Travelling Expenses
Mailing & Communication Expenses
Bank Charges & Commission
Directors' Meeting Fee
Managerial Remuneration
Auditor's Remuneration for

Statutory Audit Fee
Tax Audit Fee
For Other Services

Miscellaneous Expenses
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (Net)
Software Development Expenses
Repairs & Mainlenance

Building
Plant & Machinery
Others

lrrecoverable Balances written off
Provision for Bad & doubltful debts
Remeasurement ol ARCS' Liability

Sellinq and Distribution Overhead
Brokerage & Commission to Selling Agents
Sales Promotion
Freight, Packing, Forwarding, etc.

293.56
2.49

399.51
2.49

112.OO 112,00
112.00 112.00

296.05 402.00

904.53
80.51
88.72

133.22
291.56

943.87
'150.00
131.31
167.61
312.81

1,498.54 1,705.60

72.50
17.33
21.44

5.53
30.58

4.50
2.84

4.04

4.00
0.85
1.20

99.42
3,49

19.72

2.61
28.04
7.89

127.41

18.48
38.40

9.51
10.42
43.81

4.31
5.49
1.27

24.26

4.00

1.20
182.',17

29.',t1
7,87

4.14
48.08
12.48
68.96

67.00
453.39 580.96

1.64
37.59

14s.'t4
0.70

6'1,28
39.23 207.12

1,991.16 2,493.68

(H

A(C

RTERTD

UNTANI!

o

?.
A1

e
o.lr

ROF

(K

@

*
o

89



2022-23
{ In Lakhs

2021-22
( In Lakhs

(u) Guarantees giYen by the Bankers 49.50 49.s0

(b) Excise, Sales tax, Custom Duty, ESIC & Other Claims 778.53 778.53

29 Cont Liabilities not ided for in re ect of:

30) The Company had executed bonds worth { 5,403.04 Lakhs in favour ofPresident oflndia being the customs duty for
import ofcapilal goods under the EPCG License. Under the said license it is obligatory on the part ofthe Company to
export products wonh 1 43,224.32 Lakhs over a period of 8 years from the date of issue of the license i.e. between
20th December, 2002 to l9t\ February, 2019 for availing the concessional rate of customs duty on imports. The
Company has completed the entire export obligation of { 43,224.32 Lakhs up to the year ended 3 I'r March, 2012. On
completion of the export obligation bonds executed by the Company to the extent of { 5,378.96 Lakhs (P.Y. t
5,378,96 Lakhs) have been released and the balance bonds oft 24.08 Lakhs (P.Y. t 24.08 Lakhs) is under process of
being released by the Commissioner of Customs. Further, during the year the Company had executed bonds worth (
14.54 Lakhs in favour of President of India being the customs duty for import of capital goods under the EPCG
License. Under the said license it is obligatory on the part of the Company to export products worth { 87.22 Lakhs
over a period of 8 years.

3l) Claims against the Company not acknowledged as debts:
i) Demand by the Department of Commercial Taxes, Govemment of Karnataka, levying a sum of ( 20.00 Lakhs, as

Entry Tax on lmport ofPlant & Machinery. The Company has obtained a Stay Order from the Hon'ble High Court of
Karnataka during 1996.

ii) Demand by the Commissioner of Customs, Bangalore for t. 109.77 Lakhs have been stayed by the Customs, Excise
and Service Tax Act Appellate Tribunal, Chennai. The Company has deposited a sum of {. 38.00 Lakhs with the
Customs Authorities trnder protest.

32) Lining Fabrics valued at { 93.78 Lakhs were imported in 2002-03 for usage in manufacturing of products for export.
Due to the non-acceptance by the Customs Department of the methodology adopted by the Company for the co-
relation between the material used and the material imported, an amount of< 154.50 Lakhs was paid in protest towards
Customs Duty on the said imports and shown under Advances. Since the final liability amount is unascertained and
not acceptable by the Company in principle, no provision has been made in the accounts. The Adjudicating authority
has passed an Order confirming the demand of the customs department. The Company's appeal before the CESTAT
was heard and an Order has been passed setting aside the Order of the Adjudicating Authority. On remand of the
Order, the Commissioner of Customs (Port) has once again confirmed the Order in original and the Company's second
appeal before the CESTAT is being heard. In the opinion of the management, no liability is likely to occur in this
regard.

33) Export of goods made by the company from SEZ unit on specific order from the overseas customers have become
subject of dispute in relation to its valuation. A show cause notice issued by DRI Kolkata was heard and adjudicated
by the Customs Appellate and the matter was adjudicated imposing a fine and penalty amounting to <.205.00 Lakhs.
The order ofthe Adjudicating authority has been challenged by the company before the CESTAT and a pre-deposit of
{ 5.00 Lakhs have been made and shown as an advance and no provision has been made against adjudicated liability
of( 205.00 Lakhs in the statement ofaccounts.

34) As per the Court order dated 7tr'February' 2005 ofHon'ble Kolkata High Court and l4th December' 2005 of Hon'ble
Kamataka High Court, all the assets and liabilities of Erstwhile Eastern Jingying Ltd. and Sstella Silks Ltd.
automatically stands transferred in the name of the Company. Based on the Order, the Company has taken necessary
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35)

Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank) (Lead Banker) took the symbolic possession ofthe Company Assets on
3'd November, 2015, whereas, assets physically remained with the Company and the Company continued its
operations. During the F.Y 2016-17, Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank) has obtained the order for taking
the physical possession of the propedy of the company at Bangalore and Mysore from the Hon'ble court o]
Chief Judicial Magistrate at Bangalora and at Mysore respectively. The order of the Hon'ble Court of Chief
Judicial Magistrate at Bangalore and at Mysore was challenged by the Company before the Hon'ble High Court
of Kamataka, Bengaluru and deposits of {.700.00 Lakhs has been made by the company to the Indian Bank
(erstwhile Allahabad Bank) in terms of the interim order passed by the Hon'ble High court of Karnataka,
Bengaluru till May, 2017 and the said deposits T. 700.00 Lakhs was allocated by the Indian Bank (erstwhile
Allahabad Bank) to the respective Consortium members pending settlement. The Company duly adjusted these
deposits with the respective banks/financial institutions against their outstanding dues in terms ofthi settlement
arangement arrived with them except with the leftover Exim Bank. The deposit attributable to the Exim Bank
has been shown by the company under Bank Balances (Refer Note No. g) pending adjustment pertaining to
settlement \yith them.

Further the Company's petition before the Hon'ble High Court of Karnataka, Bengaluru was disposed offwith
the remedy of filing an application under Section l7 ofthe SARFAESI Act,2002. Accordingly, the Company
filed the application under Section l? ofthe SARFAEST Act,2002 before the Hon'ble Debt R-ecoverv Tribunal
at Bengalunt.

d) 'No Lien Term Deposit' with the consortium bankers for l. 2,400.00 Lakhs towards 5% deposit ofthe amount
outstanding against the offer of one-time settlement were made, of which l. 392.59 Lakhs have been
appropriated by few banks towards recovery oftheir overdue interest. The same has not been recognized by the
company and no adjustment has been made and the principal amount ofdeposit is continued to be ihown as .No
Lien Term Deposit' without accounting for interest accruals. In view of the arbitrary and unilateral decision of
the Banks' no provision for interesl accrued has been made in the Statement ofAccounts.

36) D-uringlhe year, the Company incurred remeasurement loss of{. Nil (P.Y. T.67.00 Lakhs ) included underNote No.
28 "Oth€r Expenses" for incremental liability provided towards amount payable on account of new setlement
arrangement entered with one ofthe Asset Reconstruction company who acquired the company bo*owing.

37) (a) Proceedings ofCorporate Insolvency Resolution Process ("CIRP") under Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code
2016 (lBC) was initiated by the National Company Law Tribunal Kolkata Bench (.,NCLT') on lOth june 2022
and pusuant to Section l7 of the IBC the power ofthe Board of Directors ofthe company riooo .u.p.no"a uno
such powers are vested with the Interim Resolution Professional ('lRP) CA Anil Ajarwal, (IBBylirA-0o1/lp-
P00270/2017-l8ll05l4) to carry_ or(, the clRP ofthe Corporate iebtor. Further u. [.r o.j"i no. -n 

1re; No
588/KB/2020 and IA (l.B.c)/713(KB) 2022 dated 29th July 2022. Thereupon, i\4r. Anil Kohli has been
appointed as Resolution Professional in place of erstwhile IilP by coC in itr iu Coc meeim!-*nicr, was
approved by Hon'ble NCLT vide ils order daled 29.07 -2023 to carry out the CIRP of the Corpora:te Debtor in
accordance with the provisions ofthe IBC Code. Accordingly, the powers ofthe board of directors vested with
the Resolution Professional in accordance with the provision-s ofthe Code.

(b) The Committee of Creditors (CoC) have been constituted oo 7th July,20l2. The meeting of Committee ofcreditors was held on 8th luly 20t2,27rh July 2022,17th August 2022, t4th september 2022,2oth october 2022,
3rd November 2022' I st December 2022, 3rd January 2023, 30t-h January 2023, t:ih neuruary ztiz:, 3rJ uarcl 202:,25th April2023 and I lth May 2023 respectively foigiving the update to CoC regarding the ClRFgroceedings alongwith taking up the other mafters in terns ofthe applicable frorlsions ofth" coae. ''-'l'"'-*'

a) The Company has been categorised as Non Performing Asset and stopped debiting interest on their outstanding
debts by the existing lender banks/financial institution as per the Prudential Norms on Income Recognition
issued by the Reserve Bank of lndia. Accordingly, the Company has not recognised interest expense oo such
borowings amounting to 1. 4,852.38 Lakhs till 3l st March, 2023 as per the management estimates.

b) In terms ofthe Settlem€nt Arrangement arrived with the ARC's, the Company failed to meet certain scheduled
payment oflnstallments within the stipulated time. However, the management were continuously discussing the
present position of the Company with the ARC's for waiver of interest before initiation of CIRP process against
the Company (Refer Note 37). Consequently, provision for intercst amounting to {. 3,183.69 lakhs for the
period up to 3lst March 2023 has not been made in the books ofaccounts

c)
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(c) The members ofthe COC in its 3rd COC Meeting convened on 17.08.2022 approved a resolution for publication
of-FORM G thereby inviting Expressions of lnterest (EOI) from Prospective iesolution Applicants (pRAs). The
said FORM G was published on 24.08.2022.

(d) On the basis of the claims received, collated and verified as on l3th March 2023, the list of creditors is
enumerated as under:-

i) The admitted claims of Secured Financial Creditors as on l3th March 2023 is t. 8,93,90,99,403/- (including
Interest).

ii) The admitted claims ofUnsecured Financial Creditors as on l3th March 2023 is {. 40,6E,13,000/-.

iii) The admitted claims ofOperational Creditors (Government and Non- Government) as on l3th March 2023 is {.
48,11,77,895t-

(e) In the I lth COC Meeting held on 3rd March 2023 in which the Resolution Plan submitted by Mr. Ajay Bikram
Singh through Baumann Dekor Private Limited was approved by the CoC members through E-voiing on 6th
March 2023 and the application for Resolution PIan approval was filed with Hon'ble National Company Law
Tribunal on 9th March 2023 and is pending for approval.

However, as per the terms of the said Resolution Plan, till 3lsr March,2023, the respective Resolution Applicant has
deposited a total amount of {.5,81,51,600/- as EMD & Performance Security with the Company (disclosed as
"Advance from others" under Note, No.l8 - "Other Current Liabilities") and such amount has bein deposited by the
company with State Bank of India included in "Term Deposit as No-Lien Deposif' urder Note No. 8 - ,,Other Bank
Balances". The overall & final impact ofthis Resolution Plan on financial position ofthe Company to be ascertained
after approval ofthe said plan by the Hon'ble NCLT.

(t) The Company's ability to continue as a going concern is dependent upon maoy factors including continued
support from the Company Officials/Management, ernployees, operational creditors, customers andiubmission
of viable resolution plan by the prospective Investor. Under the CIRP, th" resolution plan has been approved by
the COC and thereafter was filed with Hon'ble NCLT for seeking their approval. Wher"upon, in accordance
with the CoC & NCLT approved plan, the Company will be handed over to the successful resolution applicant
upon full implementation of approved Plan. In view of the opinion of the management, the CoC approved
resolution plan, the revival of the Company is possible in the foreseeable future. Accordingly, the financial
statements of the company have been prepared on going concern basis as plant is working and'the decision of
Hon'ble NCLT on approval ofResolution plan is pending.

(g) There shall be moratorium under section I4 ofthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,20l6 till the completion
ofthe CIRP or until the Adjudicating Authority approves the resolution plan under sub section (l) ofseciion 3l
ofthe IBC or pass an order for liquidation ofCorporate Debtors under section 33 ofthe lBC, as ihe case may be.
The Company had received regulatory Enquiries Notices/ Summons /Show-Cause/Demand,/ Orders from
various government authorities such as Coods and Services Tax, Income Tax, ESIC and EpF etc. ln view of
Company's admission under CIRP all existing civil legal proceedings will be kept in abeyance as moratorium
u/s l4 ofthe Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code,20l6 till the conclusion ofCIRP. iherefore, no impact has been
considered in these statements as ofnow.

(h) 
.During the course of CIRP, physical verification of major Property. Plant & Equipment & Inventories have been

caried by the professional appointed through IRP/RP after approval of COC ioi asce*aining the valuation of
Prcperfy, Plant & Equipment & Inventories.

38) Export Import Bank oflndia vide email dated lst February 2022 informed the Company regarding the inclusion of
name of the company and its promoters/directors in RBI'VCIRLC's list of wilful defiultirs. Furttrei, the company in
disagreement with their assessment. The Board of the Company has decided to file case against ihe lender in the
Calcutta High Court.

39) (a) The company has created provision for bad and doubtful debts amounting to< 127.41 lakhs during the year and
total proYision for bad and doubtful debts stands as on 31.03.2023 < AJOs.zz lakhs ({ 5977.6i Iakhs as on
3 I .03 2022) against total debtors outstanding amounting to < 7,624.36 lakhs as on 3 I .03.202i 1< sf:+.:t lakhs as on
31.03.2022).ln the opinion ofthe management the provision is adequate and no further proviiion is required to be
made in the books ofaccounts.

(b) The money suites filed before the Hon'ble Kolkata High Court are actively pursued to recover the amount from
the overseas buyers towards sale consideration ofthe goods exported amounting to ( 22,506.43 Lakhs.

t:3,

!

o
*

t 5

r
*

e
ttR o

t,(A1

o

::\. -.-.'\

*

92



40. DIS'LO5Uf,E' A5 REAUNED BY IIIDIAX ACCOUXr|TC SIANOARO {IIIO ASI I' EMPTOYEE BENEFIT'

p.lin.d o.Ent Pl.n

!4gq
20?2-23

9d!!&eoqD!!e!-ph!l
Amu^r ot172.42 bkhs (pBvous )€..l79.10lskhs)is ecociis€d as an axpenso 6nd indud.d in Ehdoy.. b€reflr.xp€@ s. un&r
conrftutm ro P.F. a Eslc and in lianufa.iudnq E4enses ]ndud€d unds w.96s .

Th. Emp5ya.s gr.luity lu.d schoms managed by Th6 Lire lnsoEne capo.arlon of lndi. (Llcl) is . dslin.d b€reril dan. rho ,6*nr
v6Le ot oblisalion i! detemr.ed b&ed o^ Ec{uaid valu.lDn $i.g the PBlecled unir credl Meobd, rhich e@gnE6e..cn pd6d oi
setoice .s givhg ,ie b 5dd irbn al un ol ehproyee benefitentG@ tlylobuilduplhelindobloaio.

The oblisatim lor leaw enc*hment 
's 

l@gniz€d in Ih€ sam mannerar sEtuly.
I in Lakhs

atr4. h pr.Bnt v.lk ol d€0n.d b.n.ft obllaalion du.ht lh. y..r
Pre'enr viluE ofdatired ben.ft oblt3r o.atthe beg.nin8olrheyear

B.n.na Daid dt.ctlv bv emolov.r

Adua a chaBe5.nriqIrcm.haryesindemqraph.atumpuons
Aduana .ham.sarisiq fbm chaqes in financials$umprlons

Acruari. chamesarni.g frcmchaEes in€rpeden.e adjustmenls

?.*ni v.l@ of d.llEi be..ft oblL.tlon .a ti. .nd .l ih. yBr
Ct.q. i^ f.n v.tu. ot p].n .stl donn3 lh. y..r
f an vatu. of plan as€ts ar thebeg nningolthey..r

Contl bdio.s pa d by lh€employer
B.n€tiB pad iiom the fund
A$€r5 i€ndered oul/ dryenmenlt
Rerumo. p an arseaek ud'^g i^rer€n in.ome
f.tellol pl.^.$.$.r rh...d o, the y..r
Net.rd/ (rLblriry) r..o3nrs.d ln rh€ b.hn.€rhe.r
Prcsentvalue oldern€d benelit obE6r o. Cur€nt
Pr.ie Varu. ofd.fined b.net obrigar on- Noncui.enr
Prcsenr vdl'e o'd.t.€d be.elir obltar o1d rhe e.n o'r\eled'

Amunt lM.rL.d in tho b.l.na rh.el
Erpene.!E.o3nk.dlnrh.sbemehrol proillandlost

lnt.reltcojton b€nent obrisrt on (Nel)

A.lurri.l.han8esr rin8too.hanges indemo[raphc irumption5
Acl!ari. .hansera 5insfrcm change5 inIin.nciala$umprion!
Adu.nal.haGesrisiqnom.b.ges in€xpene...adiu*m..B
Rdum onplln a$els erclud ngint.rert income

T.Ll .rr..6 lrlod a. .orlo!.. b.mlits tlPen$
Etp....r E os&.d in rh. orh.r .onprehcndve l..om
Acluair .hin36arking tom chrnges ih demogriphk i$umpr ons

A.rua a (htrues:rieirufrcm.hang€s i.fi nrncial a$umpl ons

adua a changesTlsingfi.mchanSes in experiEi@ adjunhenB
Reluhon phn asrets€x.lud'ng hteren incom€

i@td3.d b oln.r cmp..lEniv. incom.

2421-22
t.!v..n6shm.ir

1,42

(5.52)

(4.12)

(9.84)

(13.93)

(tL?2t

5.r5 (1.43)

19,8t

121.211

1S7.25
'12.52

70.93
(13.30)

(0.02)

2a,g?

I2E7) (13.30)

22,11

(0.35) (9,30)

15.r6

0.70)

13.09 la2

1o,12) (0.74)

(2r.!2) (1s,33)

(5.52)

11.12)

lo,51l

(9.34)

03.93)
2-24

G5.u)

l!t!4l]la$E!4t
2027.24 202142

saldlr

Rar€ of hcraere in sa arv (ei p.a.) 5.00

7,30

(ii) oidnr Ere b b.sed on r,\€ pBv€li.o Bt€r yields ol lndGn Govemmonr s€.uriri.! .s .t rh. bdae sl".€r dar. lo. $o esimat€d

t.morr.Dni. Ar$mptiont
Mon.lity Rare (e6 or lAtM 2012-1a)

ftntionRale,basedonase{xp.a) roral Ae€s

Erp.cr.d @irnbuftn to rh. d.ltr.d 5.n.h pbn lor rt. ndr.nnual
(i) Th. {tuad6l v.luation ol plan s*ts .nd $. pr*nr v.l6 ot th. r,€iin.d b€nor( oblEation @@ €rned our ar 31st Madr, 2023. Ih6
pE*nl valu. of r,\. d.lin6n benelii ob$9.lion and Ge retat€d curent setoic @sl and pasl seM@ @sr, Nre Easued usino rhe
PDj€.1.d Unit cEdil M€thon.

(iii) Th€ *lary $cabron Gre 6 . ired afler rokin! into consneElion the *nioity, rhe pomorion and orhor Elevanr lacroB, *ch *,
CHA IERI[l

ACC0 TA

e+ o
o

*
FL K

RO

@

*demand and suoDt n ehDhinenr ma*er,

l.:: l o

o

93



4l) ln terms of Ind AS-12, turther Defeffed Tax Assets (DTA) of( 3,010.99 Lakhs (P.Y. < 4,289.23 Lakhs) is required to
be recognized during the year. The Company has so far recognized DTA aggregating < 4,572.98 Lakhs. Earlier
recognitions rvere made based on future profitability and projections. The Company is of the opinion that net DTA of
< 4,572.98 Lakhs as recognized in the books is sufficient for future income and as such, the current year's DTA has not
been recognized.

{ In Lakhs

Particulars Amount Deferred
Tax
@

26.000h

Amount Deferred
Tax
@

26.00"h
2022-23 2021-22

Deferred Tax Liability
Difference Between W.D.V. of P.P.E. as per I. Tax
Act and Companies Act

719.72 187. l3 593.37 154.28

Deferred Tax Asset
Provision as per Sec 43B to be allowed as per
payment basis

342.04 88.93 350.91 91.24

Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 6, 105.02 1,587.31 5,977.61 1,554.1 8

Unabsorbed Losses 23,441.76 6.094.86 28.3s0.26 7,371.07

Net Deferred Tax Asset 7,583.97 8,862.21
Net Deferred Tax Asset Already Recognized 4,572.98 4,572.98

Net Deferred Tax Asset to be recoqnized this vear 3,010.99 4,289.23

42) At the instance of Indian Bank (erstwhile Allahabad Bank), HDFC Bank Ltd. closed all the bank accounts of the
Company during the F.Y. 2016- l7 which included closure of the Dividend Account for the year 2009 and 2010 also.
The Company \vas pumuing the mafter with The Reserve Bank of lndia & HDFC Bank Ltd to reinstate the Dividend
Accounts in order to facilitate the Company to deposit the Unclaimed Dividend amount for the year 2009 and 2010
with lnvestor Education and Protection Fund to comply with the required provision ofthe Companies Act,20l3. The
Company has received the Manager's Cheque for the balances held in the said account for the year 2009 and 2010 are
still shown under Bank Balances (Others) reported under Note No.8. The Company has been pursuing the matter with
the Ministry of Corporate Affairs for depositing the said Manager's Cheque to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund.

43) A reconciliation between the opening and closing balances in the balance sheet for liabilities and assets arising from
financing activities is illustrated below as per IND AS 7 amendments.

in lakhs

44) Reconciliation of Fair Value oflnvestments using different Level ofinputs through OCI is illustrated below:-

Level l:

q
.k
o

o
9
*

Particulars Opening Balanc€
as on 01.0,1.2022

Net (Payments)
/Receipts during the

year

Closing Balance
as on 31.03.2023

Term Loan 2,984.60 2,984.60
Funded Interest Term Loan 493.81 493.81
Loan from Others 7,589.00 390.00 7,199.00
Loan from Directors 329.00 329.00
Loan from Promoter 2,170.00 2,t70.00

Particulars Amount(? in lakhs)
Value oflnvestment as on 31.03.2021 4.32
FVTOCI ofincrease in value oflisted shares as on 31.03.2022 0.72
Value oflnvestment as on 31.03.2022 5.04
FVTOCI ofdecrease in value of listed shares as on 3 t.03.2023 (0.68)
Value oflnvestment as on 31.03.2023 ,/. 4.36
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Level 2:

Particulars Amount(( in lakhs)
Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Scheme as at 3l'r March 2022 under Ind AS
19 Recognized as stated below:-
Total Employer expense recognized in lncome Statement zz.t7
Total Employer expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (26.1l)
Actuarial Valuation of Gratuity Scheme as at 3l't March 2023 under Ind AS
l9 Recognized as stated belorY:-
Total Employer expense recognized in Income Statement 13.46

Total Employer expense recognized in Other Comprehensive Income (e.61)

45) The dues to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises as much to company's knowledge amounts to are7.27.41 Lakhs for
Trade Payables & {. t8.32 for Others Payable on the basis of conhrmation & declaration received from the parties for
micro small and medium enterprises which are outstanding for more than 45 days as at 3l't March 2023. This
information as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act,2006 has

been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis ofinformation provided by the supplier.

46) As the Company's business activities falls within a single primary business segment viz. Silk, Textile yarn, Fabrics
and Made-ups, no fi.rther reporting is necessary as per IND AS - I08 on Operating Segment.

47) Related Party Disclosure as per IND AS - 24
List ofRelated Parties Name ofthe Person

Key Management Personnel
(Suspended under CIRP)
and relative ofsuch personnel :- Shri Sundeep Shah (Chairman & Managing Director)

Miss Megha Shah (Executive Women Director)
Late Shyam Sunder Shah (Father ofCMD Sundeep Shah)
Late Cinia Devi Shah (Mother of CMD Sundeep Shah)

Transaction du'ins the year :-
Remuneration Paid { 4.04 Lakhs (P.Y. t 24.26- Lakhs)

Balance outstanding as on 31.03.2023
Unsecured Borrowings
(interest free)

( 1,759.00 Lakhs (P.Y. t 1,759.00 Lakhs)

48 Earnin Per Share EPS in Lakhs

49) No depreciation has been provided on the assets located at the Falta & Nanjangud units. In the year 2012-2013, assets
located at the said units were impaired and both the units are inoperative since then.

50) An operational creditor filed a case with the Hon'ble Karnataka High Coud against the Company. The creditor has
managed to obtain adverse judgement against the company in O.S.No.882l/2013 read with Order dated 16.10.2017 in
Misc.No.65l /2013 pending in the file of the execution petition No.l234l2018. On receipt of order of the Hon'ble
Court, the Company has obtained a stay in the matter via DD payment of t. 25,00,000/-. The company is contesting

2022:23 2021-22
ProfiV(Loss) for the year (1,443.43) (686.s0)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each 7,89,52,620 7,89,52,620
Earning Per Share (Basic & Diluted)(in Rs.) (1.83) (0.87)
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5l) A legal case filed by the local person who has lodged the claim during the Financial Year against the Company
wherein he is claiming that Survey No. 410/2 and 410/3 part ofthe plot of Unit I to be his property and he is the legal
owner of the said part. In response to the claim filed, the Board ofthe Company has decided to file case against claim
for land encroachment.

52) Considering the continuing substantial losses incurred by the Company, its lret worth has been eroded. However,
having regard to better operational performance expected in future and ongoing CIRP, the financial statements ofthe
Company have been prepared on the basis of going concern and no adjustrnents are made to the carrying value of
assets and liabilities.

53) Additional Disclosues

i) Title deeds ofall Immovable properties are held in the name ofthe Company.

ii) The company does not have any investment property

iii) During the year the company has not revalued its property, plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets).

iv) The company does not have any intangible assets

v) During the year the company has not granted any Loan or advance in the nature of loans to promoten, directors,
KMPs and the related parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other
person that are:

a. repayable on demand : or

b. without specifying any terms or period ofrepayment,

vi) The company does not have Intangible assets under development

vii) No proceeding has been initiated or pending against the company for holding any benami property under the
Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of I988) and rules made thereunder.

viii) The company has bonowings from banks or financial institution on the basis of security of curent assets.

However, no any quarterly returns or statement of cuffent assets filed by the company with banks or hnancial
institutions.

ix) The company has not entered into any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of the Companies
Act,20l3 or section 560 ofCompanies Act, 1956.

x) No charges or satisfaction yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

xi) The company has no any number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 ofthe act read with companies
(Restriction on number oflayers) rule 2017.

xii) During the year, the company has not entered in any Scheme of Arangements which requires approval by the
Competent Authority in terms of sections 230 to 237 ofthe Companies Act, 2013.

xiii) Utilisation of Borowed funds and share premium:-

A) The company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either borowed funds or share premium or any other
sources or kind of lirnds) to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (lntermediaries) with the
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the lntermediary shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other pemons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or
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54) The K

B) The company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on
behalfofthe Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalfofthe Ultimate Beneficiaries

xiv) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR): NA

xv) The company has not traded or invested in Crypto Curency or Virtual currency during the year.

xvi) The company does not have any transaction, not recorded in the books ofaccounts that has been surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Ta-r Act l96l

Ratios are as Under : -

7o Variance
Reason for
VarianceS.No. Pa iculars Numerator DeIlominator

Current
Year

Previous
Year

o.42 -13.7tYoI
Current Ratio (in
times)

Total Current
Assets

Total Current
Liabilities

0.36

2
Debt Equity Ratio (in
times)

Total Debts Total Equity I0.15 10.33 -t.70Y"

Debt Service
Coverage Ratio (in
liLmes) (Reler Note
Belot;)

Earning for Debt
Service = Net
Profit after taxes
+ Depreciation +
Interest

Debt service
= Interest +
Principal
repayments

4
Return on Equity
Ratio (ino/o) (Refet
Nole Belo\r)

Profit after tax
Average total
equity

5
Inventory Turnover
Ratio (in times)

Cost ofgoods
sold or sales

Average
Inventory

0.78 t.22 -35.95o/o

6
Trade Receivable
Turnover Ratio (in
times)

Revenue from
opqrations

Average
Trade
Receivables

1.96 3.03 -35.t70/o

7

Trade Payable
Turnover Ratio (in
times)

Cost ofGoods
and other
expeDses

Average
Trade
Payables

5.96 6.46 -7.74vo

8

Net Capital Turnover
Ratio (in timas)
(Re/er Note Belot)

Revenue from
operations

Working
capital

9
Net Profit Ratio (in
o/o)

Profit for the
year

Revenue from
operations 137.97) (e.3e) 304.56%

l0
Return on Capital
Employed (in %)
(Refer Note Below)

Profit before tax
and finance costs

Capital
employed =
Net \vorth +
Lease
liabilities +
Deferrad tax
liabilities

ll Return oo lnYestment
(in %)

Income
generated from
investments

Time
weighted
average
inveslments

t.28 t.07 19.480/.

Decrease in
turnover and other

market factors.
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55 Eamin In Forei Cu

56) Expenditure in foreign curency

SI
No.

Particulars 2022-23
Amount

(T in Lakhs)

2021-22
Amount

(t in Lakhs)
I

Overseas Travelling 19.00 I l.l8

2 Commission to Agents 136.87 214.28

3 Others 0.92 9.57

5',7 Value olim orts calculated on CIF basis:-

5 8) Miscellaneous Expenses shown under "Other Expenses" (Refer Note No.28) do not include any item of
expenditure rvhich exceeds 10lo ofrevenue llom operations,

59)Previous year figures have been re-aman ged and / or regrouped wherever necessary(s)

Particulars 2022-23
Amount

({ in Lakhs)

2021-22
Amount

(t in Lakhs)
Export ofgoods calculated on F.0.B. (accrual basis)

243.79 1,205.89

Particulars 2022-23
Amount

(< in Lakhs)

2021-22
Amount

({ in Lakhs)
Yam

85.65

Fabrics
980.93

Capital Goods(Plant & Machinery)
114.04

As per our report attached
For B. K. SHROFF & CO.
Firm Registration No : 302'166E
Chartered Accountants

I
L /< < l.,-.'tt

(L. K. Shroff)
Partner
(Mem.No.060742)

For and on behalf of the Board
(Company under CIRP)

Sundeep Shah
Chairman & Managing Director
(Power under suspension)

,,trl'-l*2
Megha'Shah

Whbletime Director

Prateek
Chief Fin

hh
Co pany Secretary

\
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, I Anit Konti
(Taken on record)

Resolution Professional of Eastern Silk lndustries Ltd
Reg. No. IBBUIPA-001/lP-P001 12l2017 -'t 8t10219

(Power under suspension)
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Place: Kolkata
Date: The 30th May 2023
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